ingthereipd‘Mzryhavingheenkepthmmconﬁne-
ment. The town is situated on the declivity of a steep
hill, to the west of the river Lea, and consists of one
principal - street, intersected by a smaller, which are,
during the winter months, lighted with oil. A silk-mill,
worked by a steam-engine, furnishes employment to
about two hundred persons, chiefly children ; and there
is a papa-nill on the river Lea. The market is on
: fairs are held on the 28rd of April and the
Sth of October. - The town is within the jurisdiction of
the ‘county magistrates, who hold here a petty session
for the division; and a court leet is held by the Marquis
of Salisbury, who is lord of the manor. The living is a
rectory with the perpetual curacy of Totteridge, in the
of Huntingdon, and diocese of Lincoln,
ntud in the king's booksat £36. €. 1., and in the pa-
tronage of the Earl of Salisbury. The church dedicated
to St. Ethelreda, stands on ‘the summit of a hill on
which the town is situated; on the north side of the
chancel is the sepulchral chapel of the family of the
Marquis of Salisbury, in which is a fine marble monu-
‘ment to Robert Cecil, first Earl of Salisbury, and Lord
Treasurer in the reign of James I.; and on the
south side is lchnpel belonging to the proprietors of
Brocket hall, in this parish. There is a place of wor-
‘ship for . A National school for boys
{is kept in a room over the market-house ; and there is
a school of industry for girls, with an endowment given
in 1783, by Anne, Countess of Salisbury. There are
also six almshouses for widows, founded and endow-
ed by the families of Boteler, Serancke, and Salisbury.
‘Hatfield house, the mansion of the Marquis of Salis-
bury, is a fine specimen of the domestic style of archi-
‘teeture in the reign of James 1.

. HATFIELD (GREAT), a township partly in the
parish of SiceuesTmORNE, but chiefly in that of Mae-
pLETON, northern division of the wapentake of HoLper-
ness, East riding of the county of York, 11 miles
(E. by N.) from Beverley, containing 127 inhabitants,

HATFIELD (LITTLE), a township in the parish of
SiceresTHORNE, northern division of the wapentake
of HoLperness, East riding of the county of Yorx,

{
{
|
|
{
{

104 miles (n. N.E.) from Beverley containing 25 inha-
WLDMBJOAK,& HATFIELD-REGIS,
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HATFIELD-PEVERELL, a parish in the hundred

of Wrraam, county of Essex, 84 uﬂpd&;&eﬂmﬂg 8

from Witham, containing 1101 inhabitants,

is a discharged vicarage, in the- ~of Col-

chester, and diocese of London, rated in ﬂnﬁlgh‘

books at £8, endowed with £1000 private

£200 royal bounty, and £2500 grant.
J. Wright, Esq. was patron in 1823. The church, de-
dicated to St. Andrew, has received an addition of two
hundred sittings, of which one hundred and

one are free, the Incorporated- Society for the

ment of churches and chapels having granted ﬂlﬂ‘

towards defraying the expense. ‘A school was endowed

in 1638, by Sir Edward Alleyne, with £5. 10. per annum;

Miss Loveman, in 1820, erected four tenements for two

aged married couples and two single persons, enduwz :

them with eighteen shillings a week for the former,
twelve shillings for the latter. ~ Here was a. college for
Secular canons in the time of William Rufus, founded
by Ingebrica, wife of Rannlph Peverill, and dedicated
to St. Mary Magdalene; it was converted by her son
into a Benedictine monastery. The only remains of the
buildings consist of the priory church, now parochial,
which has a Norman door. = The Chelmar and Black-
water navigation passes along the sonthern boundary of
this parish, where it receives the river Ter.

HATFORD, a parish in the hundred of Gﬂtmw
county of Brrks, 34 miles (E.by8.) from Great »'lb
ringdon, containing 182 inhabitants. The living is a

‘rectory, in the archdeaconry of Berks, and diocese of

Salisbury, rated in the king's books at £12. 17. 6., and
in the of ¥Francis Paynter, Esq. The church,
dedicated 1to St. George, presents. a‘ few :uniu of
Saxow architecture,

HATHERALL, county palatine of Lucmu.-—-
See HOTHERSALL.

HATHERLEIGH, a market town and in ﬁe
hundred of Brack TorringTON, county of Drvow, 29
miles (W.N.W.) from Exeter, and 200 (W. by 8.) from
London, containing 1499 inhabitants. The manor ori-
ginally belonged to the abbey of Tavistock : one of the
abbots bestowed upon the inhabitants the common of
Hatherleigh, which is said to comprise an extent of four
hmdud and sixty acres, and on m“mw

 chiefly
m‘mz.m
very fertile ; and about a
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g -is @ vicarage,

m are mmauchmtable beqnesf.s Jasper
Mayne, equally noted as a preacher and as a dramatic
m,w born here in 1604, and died in 1672.

" HATHERLEY (DOWN), a parish in the upper di-
vigion of the hundred of Dupsrone and Kine’'s Bar-
TON, county of GrovcesTER, 34 miles (N.E.byN.) from

, containing 170 inhabitants. The living is a
vicarage, in the mhdeaconry and diocese of Gloucester,
rated in the king's books at £8. 14. 4%., and in the pa-
3 de wn. The church is dedicated to St.
L Christi. -

‘ Vv!’w E&’!!IERLEY (UP), a joint chapelry with Great
‘Shurdington, in the upper division of the hundred of
Dupsrone and King's BarrTon, county of Grouvces-
TER, 2% miles (8. w. by8.) from Cheltenham, containing

82 inhabitants. -

" HATHERN, a parish in the western division of the
hundred of Goscore, county of Leickster, 24 miles
(N.W.) from Loughborough, containing 1144 inhabitants.
The “is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Leicester,
and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £12.
€. M. Phillips, Esq. was patron in 1810. The church,
dedicated to St. Peter, has received one hundred and
seven additional sittings, towards’ defraying the expense
ﬂmuawma Society for the enlargement
of churches and contributed £60. There is a

‘of worship for W Methodists.
mmmw, a Mhduyi:nthe hundred of Bricur-

weLLS-Barrow, county of GroucesTer, 3 miles (N.)
mm containing 200 inhabitants. The living is
a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Gloucester,
mwummmuno, and in the patronage
of the Hon. Mr. Ponsonby. The church is dedicated to
W ‘The river Coln passes through this parish.

- HATHERSAGE,; a parish in the hundred of Hieu
'm county of Dersy, 53 miles (N.by E.) from Stoney-
‘Middleton, comprising the chapelries of Darwent and
-Middleton; and the hamlets of Bamford, Hather-

, and Outseats, and containing 1856 inhabitants.
\ living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry
erby, and diocese of Lichfield and Coventry, rated
in’ 1 ‘“ ing's books at £7. 0. 5., endowed with £200
: e benefactio "l.moroyalbaMy and £2000 par-
,and in the of the Duke of

""" u.mbs;e’gimdwmnm
steled:stru mthohmstyhofhn
""m“gafnmve,idedlh,

ith .epire : in the chancel are several

umn altar-tomb, -
f Eyn, ‘who fc

' the  manor, (at which time the favourite companion of ‘Robin Hood the-body:of

””'5“”" family of - Eym,mm of the -

‘this -
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of 'wnnhip for Wesleyan Ilethodhu, and anhqnl.ﬁ
Roman Catholics. . This parish is in the huuwd'
Tutbury, duchy of Lancaster, and within the
of:conrtofpleuheldutChapelenh th every
third Tuesday, for the recovery of debu\mdcrﬂ)t In
1718 a school was erected by subscription, on a piece
of land given by B. Ashton, Esq., who endowed it with
£5 per annum for the schoolmaster ; the premises
become dilapidated, the school has been discontinued,
and the arrears of annuity amount to ahout £100.
There are several bequests for the use of the poor.
Here are manufactories for needles, buttons, and calico.
The river Derwent flows through the parish. Eastward
from the church is Camp Green, a circular enclosure
encompassed by a single mound and moat, evidently of
Danish origin. In the vicinity are some irregular rocks,
called ing stones, or rock basins.

HATHERTON, a township in the parish of Wypun-
BURY, hundred of NanTwich, county palatine of Cags-
TER, 4% miles (S.E. by 8.) from Nantwich, containing
418 inhabitants.

HATHERTON, a township in that part of the parish
of WoLvErHAMPTON Which is in the eastern divigion
of the hundred of CurTLESTONE, county of STA¥FORD,
4 miles (S.E.) from Penkridge, containing 320 inhabit-
ants, This township is within the jurisdiction of the
royal peculiar ecclesiastical court of Wolverhampton.

HATLEY (COCKAYNE), a parish in the hundred
of BiGGLESWADE, county of BEprorp, 6 miles (N. by E.)
from Biggleswade, containing 117 inhabitants. The liv-
ing is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Bedford, and
diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £8.
Earl Brownlow was patron in 1806. The church is de-
dicated to St. John the Baptist.

HATLEY (EAST), a parish in the hundred of Ar-
MINGFORD, county of CAMBRIDGE, 4% miles (E. by N.)
from Potton, containing 108 inhabitants. The living is
a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Ely, rated
in the king's books at £7. 16. 8., and in the patronage
of the Master and Fellows of Downmg College, Cam-
bridge. The church is dedicated to St. Denis.

HATLEY (ST. GEORGE), a parish in the hundred
of Lonestow, county of CAMBRIDGE, 4 miles (E.N.E.)
from Potton, containing 105 inhabitants. The living is
a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Ely, rated
in the king's books at £8, mdmt.hepdxonageofJW
Quintin, Esq.

HATTERSLEY, a township in the parish of m
TrAM in Lonepen-Darg, hundred of MAccLEsS¥FIELD,
county palatine of CmesrTer, 63 miles (E. N.!.) &nm

‘Stockport, containing 563 mhabiunu Vil

"HATTON, a township in’the parish voﬁWAm
lower division of the hundred of Broxrox, county pa-

latine of CarsTEr, 6 miles (G.'E.) hﬁm

ing 157 inhabitants. S
HATTON, a township in thoﬂrhl dm
‘hundred of Buckrow, 4}

miles (8. by W.) from W
habitants. hﬂMi
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Doye, bundred of ArpLETREE, county of Dnuw, 10

miles (W. 8. W.) from Derby, containing 225 inhabit-
ants,

.HATTON, a pmsh in the eastern dmuon of the
wapentake of WraGGox, parts of Linpsey, county of
LancoLn, 3% miles (E. by 8.) from Wragby, containing
165 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's
books at £7. 10. 10, and in the patronage of Col.
Sibthorp. The church is dedicated to St. Stephen

HATTON, a hamlet in the parish of East BepronT,
hundred of SeerrTHORNE, county of MippLESEX, 3
miles (W,) from Hounslow. The population is returned
with the parish.

HATTON, a township in the parish of SHIFFNALL,
Shiffnall division of the hundred of BrimsTrEE, county
of Sanor, 2% miles (8. E. by 8.) from Shiffnall, contain-
ing 588 inhabitants.

HATTON, a parish in the Snitterfield division of the
hundred of BarrLicuwaAy, county of Warwick, 34 miles
(N.W. by W.) from Warwick, comprising the chapel-
ries of Beausall and Shrewley, and containing 806
inhabitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the
nrchdeaconry and diocese of Worcester, endewed with
£400 private bepefacfion, and 400 royal bounty, and
in the patronage of Mrs. Baker. The church is de-
dicated to the Holy Trinity. In 1722, Willam Ed-
wards bequeathed a' rent-charge of £20 for the use
of a schoolmaster, to teach male children born within
the liberties and precincts of Hatton, Shrewley, and
Bursall. The school-house was built by the widow of
the testator: the annual stipend of the master is £10,
and he occupies the school-house rent free. The par-

-house was the residence of the late learned Dr.
Samuel Parr from 1763, when he obtained the living,
until his death in 1825.

HATTON (HIGH), a township in the parish of
Stanron upon Hine Hearn, Whitchurch division of
the hundred of Braprorp (North), county of Savop,
7% miles (E.S.E.) from Wem, containing 193 inhabitants.

HAUGH, an extra-parochial liberty, in the Marsh
division of the hundred of CaLceworrtm, parts of
l«mmm’, county of LincoLn, 24 miles (w.) from Al-
ford, containing 7 inhabitants. The living is a perpe-
tual curacy, rated in the king's books at £4, endowed
with £1200 royal bounty, and £200 parliamentary
grant, and in the patronage of H.Horsfall, Esq. The
church is dedicated to St. Leonard.

HAUGHAM, a parish in the Wold division of the
hundred of Lourn-Eske, parts of Lixpsey, county of
LincoLn, 3} nnleu (s) from Louth, containing 100 in-
habitants. is a discharged vicarage, now
aoqnumted mthe nryanddlooeseofLmeoln
rated in the king's books at £8. 1. 8., and endowed
~with £400 royal bounty. The church, dedicated to All
Saints, has fallen to ruins.  Here was an Alien priory,

a cell to the Benedictine abbey of St. Mary San Sever, Ri

in France, valued at the n at twelve marks

gqannum,md mﬂzdupmtbn%thum pﬁsryof .
P

is chiefly supported by vol

and dxoeen%ch Mx“h. W ?
at £7. 9. 2. . The Rev. E. Ward was mmwe.
The church is dedicated to St. Mapys, A m n‘!"h‘

HAUGHTON, a township in that pm :
of Buxsury which -is in the first division. ot' m,m
dred of Epn1ssury, county palatine of CHESTER; 5 miles
(N. W. by W.) from Nantwich, containing 175 inhabitants.

HAUGHTON, a township in the parish of Simoxn-
BOURN, north-western division of TinpaLE ward,
county of NoORTHUMBERLAND, 6} miles (N. by W.)
from Hexham, containing 127 inhabitants, Haughton
castle is a strong, spacious structure, surmounted by
five square turrets: it was formerly surrounded by
walls, and there are yet the ruins of a chapel about
three hundred yards from it. A paper-mill was built
here in 1788, which is now in operation.

HAUGHTON, a parish in the western division of
the hundred of CurrLEsTONE, county of STAFFORD, 4
miles (8. W, by W.) from Stafford, containing 473 inha-
bitants. The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of
Stafford, and diocese of Lichfield and Coventry, rated
in the king's books at £9. 14. 8., and in the patronage
of James Royds, Esq. The church is dedwated. to
St. Giles.

HAUGHTON le SKERNE, a parish eomprxsmg ‘the
townships of Barmpton, Great Burdon, Haughton, and
Whessoe, in the south-eastern division of DARLINGTON
ward, and the chapelry of Sadberge, and the township
of Coatham-Mundeville, in the south-western division of
SrockronN ward, county palatine of Durmam, and con-
taining 1245 inhabitants, of which number, 466 are in the
township of Haughton, 13 mile (N. E. by E.) from Dar-
lington, The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Durham, rated in the king's books at £ 53, 6. 8.,
and in the patronage of the Bishop of Durham. ' The
church, dedicated to St.Andrew, presents several traces
of early Norman architecture. There is a customary
manor attached to the beneﬁee, in the ] ~of
Haughton, but the ancient services are fallen into - de-
suetude. Several of the inhabitants are employed in
weaving coarse linen for the manufacturers at Darling-
ton. A place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists was
erected in 1825. A charity school was established by
subscription about 1768, which has a small endowment
of £7 per annum: in 1816 commodious school premises
were erected, comprising separate rooms for boys and
girls, and apartments for the master; the latter have
-since been enlarged into a dwelling-homaﬁe.ndwol

untary contributions.

HAUKSWELL, a parish in the western
thewn.penuke of Hang, North riding of the
York, comprising the townships of , Garriston,
East Haukswell, and West Humm, and containing
334 inhabitants, of which nmhmvm!mh_ town-

\\\\\
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HAULT-HUCKNALL, county of Derpy,—— See
AULT-BUCKNALE: ! 74 boies o el ek
: ; a township in the parish of Crirron-
CampviLLe, northern of the hundred of OrrrLow,
“county’ of Srarrorn, 4% miles (N.N. E) from Tam-
‘worth. The population is returned with the parish.

This township is in the honour of Tutbury, duchy of
‘Lancaster, and within the jurisdiction of a court of pleas
‘held at Tutbury every third 'Tuesday, for therecovery of
~debts under 40s.

HAUTBOYS (GREAT), a parish in the southern
division of the hundred of ErrineuaMm, county of Nor-
YoLK, § of a mile (N.W. by N.) from Coltishall, contain-

‘ing 102 inhabitants. The living is a discharged rectory,

in the archdeaconry and diocese of Norwich, rated in the
“king's books at £4. 6. 8., and in the patronage of Sir
*J. W. Lubbock, Bart. The church is dedicated to St.
Theobald. A maison Dieu, for a master and poor per-
‘sons, was founded here about the reign of Henry IIL.,
by Sir Peter de Alto Bosco, Knt., and dedicated to the
Virgin Mary ; it was subordinate to the hospital at
Horning,. %

HAUTBOYS (LITTLE), a parish in the southern
‘division of the hundred of Errinaram, county of Nor-
‘¥oLK, 2 miles (N. W. by N.) from Coltishall, containing,
‘with the parish of Lammas, 284 inhabitants. The living
(is a discharged rectory with Lammas, in the archdea-
‘econry and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books

at £7. The Rev. P. Candler was patron in 1764.
The church is dedicated to St. Mary.
-+ HAUXLEY, a township in that part of the parish
“of Warkwonrra which is in the easternd ivision of Mor-
. PETH ward, county of NORTHUMBERLAND, 103 miles
(8.E.) from Alnwick, containing 114 inhabitants.

+ HAUXTON, a parish in the hundred of THrRIPLOW,
ccounty of CAMBRIDGE, 44 miles (8. %yl vlvl.) from szln
“bridge, containing 236 inhabitants. e living is a dis-

charged with that of Newton, in the archdea-
wonry and diocese of Ely, rated in the king's books at
#£6. 16., and in the of the Dean and Chapter
of Ely. The church, dedicated to St. Edmund, is prin-
< cipally in the Norman style.

. HAVANT, a market town, parish, and liberty, in
the Portsdown divj of the county of SourHAMP-

ron, 214 miles (E. by 8.) from Southampton, and 64
(8.w.) from London, containing 2099 inhabitants. The
' town, ‘situated on the high road from  Southampton

o IRBIT

‘on to some extent. The market, granted by
, but now very inconsiderable, is held on Sa-
fairs on Jape 22nd and October

HAV®

8. E.) from Bolton le Moors, 'with a tower rising from the intersection : the archi-

tecture is of different periods; the chancel has a hand-
some groined ceiling, and at the east end a painted
‘window has been recently put up, the gift of Sir John
Staunton, Bart., of Leigh park, in this parish. The
church has lately received an addition of one hundred
and seventy free sittings, towards defraying the expense
of which, the Incorporated Society for the t
of churches and chapels contributed £20. There are
places of worship for Independents and Roman Catho-
lies. A National school for about one hundred boys
and seventy girls is supported by subscription: there is
likewise a school on the Lancasterian system. About
four years since a swing-bridge was erected, at an ex-
pense of nearly £12,000, across the channel which con-
nects Langston harbour with that of Chichester, thus
affording a communication with Hayling Island, which
lies about a mile to the south of Havant. Vessels of two
hundred tons’ burden enter Langston harbour with coal,
oysters, &c.

HAVENGORE-MARSH, an extra-parochial liberty,
in the hundred of Rocmvorp, county of Essex, 7
miles (E. by 8.) from Rochford, containing 23 inhabit-
ants,

HAVENINGHAM, a parish in the hundred of Bry-
THING, county of SurroLK, 5% miles (8.W. by W.) from
Halesworth, containing 411 inhabitants. The living is
a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry of Suffolk,
and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
£11. 6. 8., and in the patronage of the Crown. The
church is dedicated to St. M 3

HAVERAH-PARK, an extra-parochial liberty, in
the lower division of the wapentake of Craro, West
riding of the county of York, 8 miles (W.8.W.) from
Knaresborough, containing 87 inhabitants. It is within
the peculiar and exclusive ecclesiastical jurisdiction of
the court of the honour of Knaresborough.

HAVERBRACK, a township in the parish of Beer-
uaM, KEnpaL ward, county of WesTMORLAND, 2 miles
(8.8.w.) from Milnthorpe, containing 127 inhabitants.

HAVERCROFT, a joint township with Cold Heind-
ley, in the parish of FeLkirk, wapentake of Stain-
cross, West riding of the county of York, 63 miles
(N. E. by N.) from Barnesley, containing 189 inhabit-
ants,
HAVERHILL, a parish (formerly a market town),
partly in the hundred of Hinckrorp, county of Essex,
but chiefly in the hundred of RissrinGe, county of Sur-
FOLK, 28 miles (8. W.) from Bury-St. Edmund’s, and
58% (N.N.E.) from London, containing 1649 inhabitants.
! place was formerly of greater extent than it is at
present, and had a castle, of which the only memorial is
preserved in the name of a farm now occupying the site;
and tradition reports the existence of another church,
of which there are at present no visible traces. The
greater part of the town was destroyed by fire in
1665, from the effects of which, though it has recently

“experienced some improvements, it has not entirely re-

-

covered. The town is pleasantly situated in.a
and consists of one B - .
b b g
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dviexuhiibal: ndfu-un.wmamm“
m 4 The market, fomeﬂy'm«m

discontinued : the fairs are, May 12th, for mle‘ﬂl-

toys, and October 10th, for toys only. Constables, le-
tasters, and other officers, are annually appointed at the
court held for the manor. ‘The living is'a «
in the archdeaconry of Sudbury, and diocese
of Norwich, rated in the king’s books at £6. 5., and
Wnage of Lady Beaumont. The church,. dedi-
to St. Mary, isa ancient structure. There
are places of worship for Baptists and Independents.
A National school for boys, and another for girls, in
each of which about sixty children are instructed, are
- HAVERHOLM-PRIORY, an extra-parochial liberty,
in the wapentake of FraxweLry, parts of KesTEVEN,
county of LiNcoLN, 4 miles (N.E.) from Sleaford. It
consists of an island, formed by the river Slea, contain-
ing about three hundred acres, Here was a priory
of nuns and canons of the strict order of St. Gilbert
of Sempringham, founded in 1139, and dedicated to
the Virgin Mary, the revenue of which, at the disso-
lution, was estimated at £88. b, 5.
HAVERING atte BOWER, a parish in the liberty
of Haverine atte Bower, county of Essex, 3 miles (N.)
from Romford, containing 352 inhabitants. The living
isa ual curacy, in the peculiar jurisdiction of the
for the liberty, endowed with £400 private bene-
on, and £ 600 royal bounty. John Heaton, Esq. was
in 1784. The church is dedicated to St. John
the Evangelist. A free school is endowed with £10 per
, but the house is dilapidated, there being no trus-
tees. This place was originally held in ancient demesne
by the -Saxon kings, and was the favourite residence of
Edward the Confessor, who built a paluce here, of which
there ave still some vestiges. The name is derived, from
a ring given to the Confessor by a pilgrim, according to
& legendary tale, the particulars of which are recorded
in basso relievo on a screen which separates the chapel
of Edward from the altar in Westminster abbey. The
%mpﬂm also the parishes of Hornchurch and
MHAVERINGLAND a parish in the hundred of
‘Evnsvorp, county of NorvoLk, 44 miles (8.E. by E.)
from Reepham, containing 174 inhabitants. = The living
is a discharged vicarage, now sequestrated, in the
archdeagonry of Norfolk, and diocese of Norwich, rated
in the king's books at £4. 12. 1., and endowed with £400
royal bounty. The church was dedicated to St. Peter,
Here was a chapel dedicated to St. Lawrence, founded
hy William Gisneto, and afterwards given to the con-
vent of Wymondham, to which it became a cell for a
prior and Black canons; at the dissolution itiomo-ed
‘to have been given to Cardinal Wolsey.
- HAVERSHAM, a parish in the hamdnul-#frsﬂnw-
;;u,connty of Bvomaum, 3 mﬂut‘mm

'ary.unt and in the patronage of

Society for building and enhtgmgchuchol MM
contributed £200.

HAW, a hamlet inthepamhof Txm,lwmﬁ
vigion of the hundred of DEerBURST, county of Grou-
CESTER, 4 miles (S.W. by 8.) from Tewkub\n'y. The

population is returned with the parish,

HAWCOAT (above Town), a township in the pll'llh
of Darron in Furness, hundred of Lonspavrk, north
of the sands, county palatine of LaANcAsTER, 2% miles
(8.w. by w.) from Dalton, containing 710 inhabitants.

HAWERBY, a parish in the wapentake of Bran:
LEY-HAvERsTOE, parts of LinpsEy, county of LiNcoLN,
10} miles (N.N.W.) from Louth, containing, with the

parish of Beesby, 55 inhabitants, The living is a dis-

charged rectory with that of Becshy consolidated, in
the archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated in' the
king’s books at £5. 7. 11., endowed with £200 private
benefaction, and £200 royal bounty. The church is
dedicated to St. Margaret,

HAWES, a chapelry in the parish of Bunu«-
THWAITE, ALLERDALE ward below Darwent, county
of Cuunnnmm), 6% miles (N.N.W.) from Keswick.
The population is returned with the parish. The
was founded and endowed by the inhabitants in 1471.

HAWES, a market town and chapelry in the pa-
rish of AvsearTH, western division of the wapentake of
Hang, North riding of the county of Yonx, 174 miles
(w.) from Middleham, and 2514 (N.W. by N.) from
London, containing 1408 inhabitants. This place is
pleasantly situated near a branch of the river Ure, and
the houses, which are in general built of stone, display
the appearance of neatness and respectability,  Here
is a well-selected subseription library, - Hardraw Scarr,
or Force, a magnificent cascade, falling perpendicularly
one hundred and two feet, is at & short distance from
the town. In the nenghbourhood are lead mines, which
are worked, but are not very productive, The principal
articles of manufacture are those of knit hosiery, caps;
&e., with some other kinds of woo! ‘l'& goodm A m
is held on Tuesday; and there are
and the 28th of September ; buldum ﬁiﬂ every
alternate Tuesday from the last Tuesday in February
until Whitsuntide. The living is a perpetual curacy, in
the archdeaconry of Rxchmond, and ﬂ«nﬁ.ﬂ“ Wy
mdowedvnhinmynlbouncy,MMOO arliam ]

The chapel is a low plain edifice, Here are pls
worship for the Society of dedwnm
A charity school was founded in 1764, wit]
ment of £10. 10. per annum : - the-
built by
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to St. Jtshn the Baptut ahibiu
W’N’m style of architecture, with insertions in
the uﬂyndhterE lish styles, and various modern
_ alterations. This parish is bounded on the north-west
by the river Ax: on Lambert's Castle hill are some
remaing of an ancient fortification.

HAWKEDON, a parish in the hundred of Rirs-
BRIDGE, county of SurroLk, 6 miles (N.N.E.) from
Clare, containing 329 inhabitants. The living is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Sudbury, and diocese
of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £7. 10. The
Rev. William Gilly was patron in 1788.

- HAWKESBURY, a parish in the upper division
of the hundred of GrumBALD's AsH, county of Grovu-
CESTER, comprising the tythings of Little Badmin-
ton, Hawkesbury, Hillcott, Hillesley, Saddlewood,
'l\'éel'nm and Upton, and containing 1834 inhabit-
ants, of ‘which number, 389 are in the tything of
Hawkesbury, 33 miles (E.S.E.) from Wickwar. The
living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Gloucester, rated in the king's books at
£20. 14. 2. The Earl of Liverpool was patron in
1813, The church, dedicated to St. Mary, has por-
tions in the early and later English styles. Here
is a small endowment of £6 per annum, being the inte-
rest of £100 bequeathed by Daniel Walker, in 1734,
- which is divided t the teachers of two or three
small schools. Hawkesbury confers the title of baron
dl“ﬁe family of Jenkinson.

" HAWKESDALE, a township in the parish of DaL-
sroN, ward and county of CumserLAND, 6} miles
(..s W.) from Carlisle, 336 inhabitants.

 HAWKESHEAD, a parish in the hundred of Loxs-
DALE, north of the mh, e of LaNcas-
TER, com, ‘the market town of Hawkeshead, the

-~ chapelry of Satterthwaite, and the townships of Claife
and Monk-Coniston with Skellwith, mdoontmningﬂou
inhabitante, of which number, 829 are in the town of
Wud, 28 miles (N.N.W.) from Lancaster, and
268 (N.N. w.) from London. This place, the origin of
which isnot satisfactorily known, is in respect of impor-
u&,ﬁefm&h towninthediutrietofhmeu and
tleoxhtenceoftheabbeyof Furness it was go-
appointed by the abbots, who dispensed

thwholeof that district, in a court-room over
y of & house inhabited by some of the monks

?-';

eservation. Inthenlgnéflﬂi—
Mihud,m  with

'dwmmw

ward, 'em
. NORTHUMBERLAND, 3 miles (E.by8.) lnu lm&

Esq. The town is pleumtly M uehev‘bﬂ" i
Esthwaite-water, a smooth lake beautifully w
with ricllly-wooded promontories, luxuriant

and corn fields, aud nearly in the centve of a fertile
vale, almost surrounded by the fells of Furness, and
dﬁmded by those of Coniston from the north and north=
west winds. The environs abound with pleasing and
picturesque scenery, bordering on the lakes of Winan-
dermere and Coniston to the east and west, and
bounded on the north by the river Brathy, which

separates the counties of Lancaster and Westmorland.

The hills in the vicinity are rich. in mineral produce,
and extensive iron-works are carried on, affording
employment to a considerable number of workmen ;
there are also very spacious quarries of slate, and
some copper mines, the latter of which are not very
productive. Several females in the town and parish
were formerly employed in spinning yarn; but since
the application of machinery to that purpose, the trade
has declined, and the wool produced from the nu-
merous flocks which are fed on the neighbouring hills,

‘is sold in the fleece, to be used by distant manufac-

turers. The market is on Monday ; and the fairs are on
Easter Monday, the Monday before Ascension-day, Whit-
Monday, and Oct. 2nd, chiefly for cattle and pedlary.
Hawkshead, formerly a chapelry to the vicarage of
Dalton, was constituted a parish in the reign of Elizabeth,
by Archbishop Sandys. The living is a perpetual curacy,
in the archdeaconry of Richmond, and diocese of Ches-
ter, and in the patronage of the King, as Duke of Lan-
caster. The church, dedicated to St. Michael, and sup-
posed to have been founded about the time of the
Conquelt was repaired and modernised by Archbishop
Sandys, in the reign of Elizabeth. The grammar school
was founded in 1585, by the same archbishop, who en-
dowed it with houses and lands producing about £150
per annum; it is free toall sons of parishioners, who pay
a certain sum per quarter for writing and arithmetic, and
open to sons of persons not resldmgmthepanshon
payment to the master of four guineas per annum and
two guineas entrance: the management is vested in trus-
tees, who appoint the master, subject to the approval of
theBwhopofChester There is also a sum of about
£60 per annum, arising from divers benefactions, which
is appropriated to boarding and clothing a proportionate

number. The Rev. Thomas Sandys, in 1717, hu;uenl-
ed a collection of books for the use of the school; and

in 1816 the Rev. William Wilson left £100, the interest
of which is annually distributed in prizes to the scholars,
The Rev. Dr. Wordsworth, Master of Trinity College,
Cambridge, received the rudiments of his educ:ﬁvn u
this school.
HAWKHILL, a joint township with

Mpmdthepllﬁhofhnnvnrm&hﬁt
southern division of BamsroOUGH : of

576 inhabitants,
HAWKHURST, a parish p'ﬂthhnﬁulof
He~xmurst, rape of Hastines, county of Sussex, but
Mum«mmmwmu Barn-

m,hﬁeofscunm m (c.s.w.
from Cranbrooke,

m.&%wm:w ot
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deaconry and diocese of i :
£1000 private benefaction, amwﬂ how a
£1100 and in the ‘
the Dean and Canons of Christ ‘

church, dedicated to St. anrme,halpadmedi-
fice in the early style of English architecture, with
portions in the decorated style, In 1718, Sir Thomas
Dunk bequeathed land for the site, and £2000 for
the erection and endowment, of a school and six
almshouses, the former for the instruction of twenty
poor boys in reading, writing, and arithmetic, with ac-
commodation for the master, the latter for six inmates :
this endowment was sub-eqnently augmented by Wil-
liam Richards : the net annual income of the school is
£216. 6. 10. ; thirty boys are instructed, and the stipend
of the master is £ 62 per annum: the surplus of the in-
come is. i to the maintenance of the pension-
ers, and for repairs. A fair is held on August 10th for
cattle and pedlary. An estate called Fowlers was the re-
sidence of Richard Kilburne, an eminent lawyer and ma-

and author of the Survey of Kent, in 1650.

. HAWKINGE, a parish in the hundred of FoLkz-
srong, lathe of Smrrway, county of Kent, 24 miles
(N.) from Folkestone, containing 132 inhabitants. The

is a disc rectory, in the archdeaconry and

of - Canterbury, rated in the king's books at

+ 7. 10., endowed with £400 private benefaction, and
aoo royal bounty, and in the patronage of the Arch-
bl-hop of Canterbury. The church is dedicated to St.

QwHAWKLEY, a parish in the hundred of SELBORNE,
1 (North) division of the county of SouTHAMPTON,

imﬂu(n‘ ) from Petersfield, containing 253 inhabitants. .

living is a perpetual curacy, annexed to the vicarage
of Newton-Vallence, in the archdeaconry and diocese of

Winchester. The church is dedicated to St. Peter and
St. Paul. - There is a place of worship for Independents.
- HAWKRIDGE, a parish in the hundred of Wiw-
LiToN and FREEMANNERS, county of SOMERSET, 44 miles
(W. N. w.) from Dulvenon, containing 50 inhabitants.
The living is arectory, in the u'ehdeacom-y of Taunton,
and diocese of Bath and Wells, rated in the king's
books at £18. 8. 4. Miss Wood was patroness in 1801.
The church is dedicated to St. Giles, *Castle bridge, so

from its vicinity to an ancient fortress called
Monceaux castle, crosses a stream which separates this
parish from Dulverton: near it is an old encampment

e&d&%
a townshlp in that part of the
M‘Mcmwhwh is in the western division

of the w of Srtaincrirre and Ewcross, West

ﬁdhgbﬁﬁaeomyof%!m, 124 miles (Nwll.byn.)

from Settle, containing 86 inhabitants. 2, ¢

- HAWKSWORTH, a parish in m;mmou

of BingHAM, of NorriNen
);nn
- e m l
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; WKSWORTH, a township :
X panshofo'rm which is in the upper di
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a to - in that

wapentake of Skyrack, West riding of muwﬁg{
York, 34 miles (S. W.) from . Otley M ',-J
habitants, 8

HAWKWELL, a parish in tbehundnd,d‘ Roclm
rorD, county of Essex, 13 mile (N. W.) from Rochford,
containing 362 inhabitants. The living is a rectory; in
the archdeaconry of Essex, and diocese of London,
rated in the klngs books at £13. 6. 8, - Bristow,
Esq. was patron in 1791, The church is dedlcn.ull to
St. Mary.

HAWKWELL, a township in the parish of Snn-
FORDHAM, north-eastern division of TinpAnLe ward,
county of NORTHUMBERLAND, 12 miles (N. W. by W.)
from Newcastle upon Tyne, containing 136 inhabitants.

HAWLEY, a tything in the parish of Yarery, hun-
dred of CronpaLL, Basingstoke division of the: :
of Sourmampron, 5 miles (E. by N.) from Hartford-
Bridge, containing 661 inhabitants. t

HAWLING, a parish in the lower divigion of the
hundred of KirrscaTe, county of GLoOUCESTER, 4§
miles (S.E. by 8.) from Winchcombe, containing, with
the hamlet of Rowell, 227 inhabitants. The living is a
discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Gloucester, rated in the king's books at £ 10. 3. 8%. W..
Wyndham, Esq, was patron in 1808. The church is
dedicated to St. Edward. ikt

HAWNBY, a parish in the wapentake of BirnrorTa,
North riding of the county of York, comprising the
townships of Arden with Ardenside, Bilsdale-Westside,
Dale-Town, and Hawnby, and contmnmg 620 inhabit-
ants, of which number, 286 are in the township of
Hawnby, 6 miles (N.W.) from Helmsley. The living
is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry of Cleve-
land, and diocese of York, rated in the king's books at
£7.18. 6§.  Lord George Cavendish was patron in
1823. The church is dedicated to All Saints. There
is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.

HAWORTH, a chapelry in the parish of Braprorp,
wapentake of MorLzy, West riding of the county of
Yorxk, 4 miles (8.W.) from Keighley 4668
inhabitants.  This chapelry is situated in a district
abounding with manufactories for cloth and worsted:
Fairs are held, July 22nd and October 14th, There are
places of worship for Baptists udwmw

HAWRIDGE, & parish in the hundred of Corres-
LOE, county of BuckinGguam, 8 miles m.hyw.)m
Cbmhun, containing mm “The
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~_thep e of Mrs, Gosling. The church is dedicated ,mvmﬁ,i; pui;h ‘am hund;‘edotSnnmt;
“toAll Seints, © At Havstead Place, now & ferm-house;’: Sherborne division of théicon s, 3 miles.
Queen Elizabeth was entertained in one of ogresses. (E.8.E.) from Sherborne,»m' ?3;"" '

] WTHORN, a township in the parish of Easine-
ToN, southern division of Easingron ward, county pa-
F latine of Duruam, 10§ miles (E. by N.) from Darham,
B containing 140 inhabitants, The village is situated
about one mile from the German ocean, on a dangerous
rocky shore, broken into deep caverns. A small stream
runs through the glen, and forms, at its junction with
. the ocean, a creek, on the southern gide of which is an
eminence called Beacon Hill, where fires were formerly
lighted to warn mariners from the rocks. On the north-
ern side of the creck is a bay, called Hawthorn Hive,
formed by a projecting rock, termed the Skaw, and
capable of being converted into a secure harbour. On
the 5th of November, 1824, nearly fifty vessels were
wrecked within a short distance of the Hive, and the
crews of all, except one, perished. A school for eight
children was endowed, in 1738, by Robert Forster, of
this place ; the number has been increased to twelve :
the master’s fixed salary is £12. 12. per annum, and he
has a rent-free residence.
~ HAWTHORP, a chapelry in the parish of IrNmHAM,
wapentake of Berrisvog, parts of KesTEVEN, county
of LincoLw, 4% miles (N,E. by E.) from Corby, con-
taining 58 inhabitants,

HAWTON, a parish in the southern division of the
wapentake of Newark, county of Norrincaam, 2
miles (8. by W.) from Newark, containing 216 inhabit-
ants. The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of
Nottingham, and diocese of York, rated in the king's
books at £17. 13. 4., and in the patronage of the Duke

 of Portland. The church, dedicated to All Saints, has
portions in the early style of English architecture, with
decorated and later insertions; the tower is lofty, with
rich tracery in the later English style: the chancel is
wholly in the decorated style; on the south side are
three stone stalls, and on the north a lofty arch, having
deep and rich mouldings, fine tracery, and crockets;
beneath is the effigy of a

W
S

ight in armour.

- HAXBY, a parish within the liberty of St.PETER
of York, East ri though locally in the wapentake
A of Bulmer, North riding, of the county of York, 43
miles (N.) from York, containing 417 inhabitants. The
living is a perpetual curacy, within the peculiar juris-
diction and patronage of the Prebendary of Strensall
in the Cathedral Church of York. There is a place of

worship for Wesleyan Methodists. ‘
- HAXEY, a parish in the western division of the. wa-
pentake of MaNLEY, parts of LiNpsEy, county of Liu-
~ ©coLN, 8 miles (N.N.W.) from Gainsborough, containing
inhabitants. The living is a vicarage, in the arch-
' Stow, and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the

i

»

The living is a discharged vicarage, in the ar juris-
diction of the Dean of Sarum in theiking'sb%
at £5. Earl Digby was patron in 1810. The church is
dedicated to St. Catherine.

HAYDON, aparish in the hundred of UrTLESFORD,
county of Essex, 74 miles (W. by N.) from Saffron-
Walden, containing 272 inhabitants. The living is a
rectory with that of Little Chishall united, in the juris-
diction of the Commissary of Essex and Herts, concur-
rently with the Consistorial Court of the Bishop of
London, rated in the king's books at £18. The church
is dedicated to St. Peter. Here is a small endowment
of about £5 per annum for a school.

HAYDON, a chapelry in the parish of WarpEx,
north-western division of TiNpaLE ward, county of
NorTHUMBERLAND, 6 miles (W.) from Hexham, con-
taining 358 inhabitants. The village of Haydon-
Bridge, situated on both sides of the South Tyne
river, is in this chapelry. The chapel was built in
1797, and is dedicated to St. Cuthbert. There is a
place of worship for Independents and Wesleyan Me-
thodists. Edward IIL, in 1344, granted permission to
Anthony, Lord Lucy, then owner of the manor, to
hold a weekly market here on Tuesday, and an annual
fair on St. Mary Magdalene’s day, and the three follow-
ing days, both which have fallen into disuse. The Com-
missioners of Greenwich Hospital are at present proprie-
tors of a considerable part of the chapelry, and have re-
cently erected a small building, with suitable offices, for
the receiver of their revenues. A free school and twenty
almshouses were founded and endowed by the Rev.John
Shaftoe, in 1685,and school-rooms, dwellings for the mas-
ters, and apartments for twenty almspeople born in the
chapelry, were erected ; each of the pensioners receives
two shillings and sixpence and a supply of coal weekly.
The school is extensively endowed, and about one hun-
dred and forty boys and ninety girls, resident in the
chapelry of Haydon, or in the constablewick of Wood-
Shields, are educated : the salaries of the teachers are
discretional with the trustees, but that of the senior
master must be at least £250; the present stipends
are £64 and £63 to the two ushers, and £30 to the
mistress. The ruins of the old chapel are situated
about a mile north of the bridge.

HAYDOR, a parish partly in the wapentake of As-
WARDHURN, consisting of the chapelries of Culverthorpe
and Kelby, but chiefly in the wapentake of Winn1-
BRIGGS and Tureo, parts of Krsteven, county of
Lancownn, 64 miles (E.N.E.) from Grantham, containing
522 inbabitants. The living is a vicarage, in the pe-
culiar jurisdiction and patronage of the Prehenrxof
Haydor in the Cathedral Church of Lincoln, in
the king's books at £12. 6. 104. The church, dedicat-
ed to St. Michael, has portions in the early, decorated,
and later, styles of English architecture, :

HAYES, a parish in the hundred of Ruxvey, lathe
of Sw at Hong, county dhur,%lwa.) from
Bromley, containing 429 inhabitants, is a

rectory, in the peculiar Mﬁﬂ:ng of the

Archbishop of Canterbury, rated in the king's books a
£6. 18, and in the age of the Rector of Orping-
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mpported a small bequest from Mrs. Elizabeth
- Hameson, and by voluntary contributions. A small

fair is held on Whit-Tuesday. Hayes-place, near the
church, formerly a seat of the family of Scott, was re-
built by the Earl of Chatham, and was the birthplace of
his son, the Right Hon. Wmmtu Pitt.

HAYES, a parish in the hundred of EvrHORNE,
county of MiDDLESEX, 31 miles (8.8.) from Uxbridge,
containing 1530 inhabitants. The living comprises a rec-
tory, which is 4 sinecure, and a vi , with the per-
petual curacy of Norwood, in the peculiar jurisdiction of
the Archbishop, rated jomtly in the king's books at £60,
and in the patronage of T. and J. Graham, Esqrs. The
church, dedicated to St. Mary, is an ancient edifice, with
a low square tower, in the early style of English archi-
tecture, with some small Norman portions ; the font is

uniqne in form, and sculptured ; the a.ltar-plece is a
painting of the Adoration of the Shepherds, and in the
chancel windows are some armorial bearings in stained

glass ; the roof of the church is ornamented by carved
representations in wood of the sponge and spéar used at
the Crucifixion. There is a place of worship for Inde-
pendents. Near this place is the commencement of the

Wn canal.
HAYFIELD, a chapelry in the parish of Grossor,

" hundred of Hien Peak, county of DErny, 4} miles

(N. by W.) from Chapel en le Frith, The population is
returned with the parish. The living is a perpetual cu-
racy, in the archdeaconry of Derby, and diocese of Lich-
field and Coventry, endowed with £600 private benefac-
tion, £600 royal bounty, and £ 500 parliamentary grant,
and in the patronage of certain Trustees. The chapel
was rebuilt in 1420, at the expense of Robert de Kinder.
There are places of worship for Independents at Chin-
ley, and for Methodists at Hayfield, Chinley, and New
Mills. The free school, held in the ancient grammar
school-house, was endowed in 1604, by John Hyde, with
an annuity of £10; the income, with various augmen-
tations, amounts to £ 20. 6. 2.; fifteen children are
instructed,  Eight children are likewise taught by a
schoolmistress, for which purpose Mrs. Dorothy Hague
bequeathed £16 per ann. Fairs are held on May 11th,
for horses and cattle, and July 23rd for sheep and wool.
HAYLING (NORTH), a parish in the hundred of
Bosmere, Portsdown division of the county of Sourn-
AMPTON, 2 miles (S. by E.) from Havant, containing
295 inhabitants. The living is a curacy, in
the and diocese of Winchester. The Earl
of Albemarle was patron in 1817. The church is dedi-
cated to St. Peter. Thie parish, with that of South
Hayling, constitutes Hayling island, which is bounded
on the north and west by Langston :unthe
cast by Emsworth channel, and on the M
Enghsh channel.

deaconry of Bedford, an in
the king's books at £8, thd ‘the patro
Carteret, The church is edi
Sunday school is endowed with 50s.
of Villiers Fowler in 1708, for the
children. ) *

HAYTON, a joint township with Melay, in the p-
rish of AspATriA, ALLERDALE ward below ent,
county of CuMBERLAND, 7 miles (N. by w.) from
Cockermouth, containing, with Melay, 241 inhabitants,

HAYTON, a pansh in EskpaLe ward, of
CuMBERLAND, comprising the townships of Faugh with
Fenton, Hayton, and Talkin, and containing 1102 inha-
bltants, of which number, 491 are in the township of
Hayton, 8 miles (E. by N.) from Carlisle. The hving is
a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Carlisle, endowed with £400 private benefactic
£400 royal bounty, and £1000 parliamentary ‘
and in the patronage of the Dean and Chapter
Carlisle. The church, dedicated to St. Mary Magda-
lene, was rebuilt by subscription in 1780. There are
coal mines on Talkin Fells. The rivers which flow
through this pansh are, the Gelt, the Irthing, anzi"?le
Carn ; there is a lake one mile in circumference, called
Talkm tarn. At Talkin is a school endowed, in 1798,
by John Nulbourne, with seven or eight acres of lmd,
which produce an income of £9 per annum.

HAYTON, a parish in that part of the libertylf
SovraweLL and Scroony which nearly separates the
North-clay from the Hatfield division of the wapentake
of BasseTLAW, county of NorriNemam, 3 miles (N. B,
by N.) from East Retford, containing 244 mhablm
The living is a discharged vicarage, in the arc
of Nottingham, and diocese of York, rated in the kmg'l
books at £4. 15. 5., endowed with £200 royal bounty
and in the patronage of the Archh of York. The
church is dedicated to St. Peter. The canal
passes through the

HAYTON, a parish in the Holme-Beacon dMuou
of the wapentake of Harrriie, East ri of the
county of York, comprising the chapelry of Beilby,
and the township of Hayton, and containing 416 hh»
bitants, of which number, 177 are in the
Hayton, 2 miles (8.E. bys) from Pock]
living is & discharged vicarage, ,ntedhﬂm i
at £7.11.04., endowed wlth private
and £200 royal bounty, and
and patronagé of the Dean ﬂ

dedwwed to St. Martin.




* 3 HAZLEBADGE, & liberty in the pacish of Hors,
hundred of Higm Peak, county of Derwy, 54 miles
(K Wby w.) ﬁ'om Stoney-lﬁddleton, containing 51 in-

é HA.ZLETON a pmsh in the hundred of Brap-
ut, county of GLOUCESTER, 4 miles (N.W. by N.) from
North Leach, containing, with the chapelry of Yanworth,
265 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Gloucester, rated in the king's
books at £19. 5. 5., and in the patronage of the Crown.
The church is dedicated to St. Andrew.
. HAZLEWOOD, a township in the parish of Dur-
FreLp, hundred of APPLETREE, county of Dersy, 6
miles (N.) from Derby, containing 483 inhabitants.
There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.
o« HAZLEWOOD, a joint township with Stutton, in
that part of the parish of TapcasTeEr which is in the
- division of the wapentake of BArRksTONE-AsH,
% t riding of the county of Yorxk, 34 miles (8.W. by 8.)
from Tadcaster, containing 256 inhabitants,
. HAZLEWOOD, a joint township with Storiths, in
that part of the parish of Skipron which is in the
upper division of the wapentake of CLaro, West riding
of the county of Yorxk, 7 miles (E. by N.) from Skip-
m, containing 209 inhabitants,
- HAZON, a township in the parish of SmiLBOTTLE,
. #pmndmdnnof CoaqueTpaLe ward, county of NorTH-
 UMBERLAN miles (8. by E.) from Alnwick, con-
itants,
e M, a parish in the hundred of SmrTh-
tlew of NorroLk, 9 miles (N. by 'li')): from Cas-
-] r, containing 710 inhabitants. e living is
&sch'.d wicarage, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk,
:nd diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
£6. 13. 4!‘.::‘1 endowed with £200 r'f"i:d ll:ml:y dH
Spelman, . was in 1812, e church is de-
dicated to St. Murmnmwu formerly a cell of Clu-
niac monks, subordinate to the monastery of Lewes.
- HEADBOURN-WORTHY, county of Sourmame-
N. = See WORTHY (HEADBOURN).
, aparish in the hundred of Evaorng,
“he of AyrLesrorp, county of Kunt, 8§ miles (S.E.
fmm Mazidstone, containing 11&: inhabitants.
] .a discharged vicarage, in archdeacon-
".dioeuzof Canterbury, rated in the king’s books
18, 4., and in the patronage of the Archbishop
s m&m ‘which is dedicated to St.
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of a few poor children. = A
HEADINGTON, a parish in the Medof

LINGTON, county of Oxvoron, 14 mile (E.N.E.) M

Oxford, containing 1087 inhabitants. The living is a vi-
carage not in charge, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Oxford, endowed with £400 royal bounty, and in
the pn.trmageofthe Rev. T. H, Whorwood. The church
is dedicated to St. Andrew. ‘A school for children of
both sexes is endowed with the interest of £400, the
gift of Catherine Mather in 1805 : there js a spacious
lunatic asylum. = The colleges in Oxford, and other pub-
lic bmldmgs, have been principally erected with stone
dug in Headington quarry: a great quantity of bricks
is made here. A field, called Court Close is said to he
the site of one of the palaces of King Etheldred.

HEADLAM, a township in that part of the parish
of Gainromrp which is in the south-western division
of DarriNcToN ward, county palatine of Durmam, 8
miles (W.N.W.) from Darlington, containing 232 inha-
bitants.

HEADLEY, a parish, forming a detached portion
of the hundred of Bismor's Surron, Alton (North)
division of the county of SourmameprOoN, 65 miles
(8.byw.) from Farnham, containing 1093 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Winchester, rated in the king's books at £21. 4. 7.,
and in the patronage of the Provost and Fellows of
Queen's College, Oxford. The church is dedicated to All
Saints. A school-room was built about 1755, by the
Rev. George Holmes, D.D., for the education of twelve
children, and endowed hy him with a rent-charge on
certain lands.

HEADLEY, a pansh in the second division of the
hundred of CoprEORNE, county of SURRRY, 23 miles
(E.S.E.) from Leatherhead, containing 184 inhabitants.
The living is a discharged rectory, in the archdeacon-
ry of Surrey, and diocese of Winchester, rated in the
king’s books at £8.7.6. The Hon. G. Howard was
patron in 1819. The church’is dedicated to St. Mary.

HEADON, a parish in the South-clay division of
the wapentake of BasseTraw, county of NorTiNGHAM,
4 miles (8.E.) from East Retford, containing, with the
hamlet of Upton, 241 inhabitants. The llvmg com-
prises a rectory and a discharged vicarage, in the arch-
deaconry of Nottingham, and diocese of York, rated

jointly in the king's books at £19. 15. 10., endowed

with £200 private benefactn:::,d £ zoohroyal boun&y’fnd
£200 parliamentary grant, in the patronage

pm-. The church is dedicated to St. Peter. i

- HEADWORTH, a township in the parish of m

non, castern division of CaEsTER ward, county pa

of Durmam, 6 miles (N.W.) from Sun, :

il Sadad

HEAGE, 8. chapelry: in the: parish of
hundred of Amun,
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are in the town of Heanor, 9 miles (N. E.) from D
~road from London to Mitlock"

‘\‘I

H 12"&\
sm.lngs for which Incory :
the e cgdrchu and chapels, contributed:
‘£300, nre places of" worship for , Inde-
pendents, and Prumtive and W ‘Methodists. A
school was founded, in 1705, by Storer, in which

about thirty children are instructed: the school-room
‘was rebuilt about 1810. Tron-stone has béen worked
here from a very early period ; charcoal was anciently
used in the smelting and manu of it, and the
neighbourhood abounds, with charcoal hearths, but coal
is now found in abundance. Headge is pmly bounded

.by the rivers Derwent and Amber.

HEALAUGH, a parish in the ainsty of the city,

and East riding of the county, of York, 3} miles
(N. by E.) from Tadcaster, contmmng 191 inhabitants.
The living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of York, rated in the king's books at
£6, endowed with £200 private benefaction, and £800
royal bounty. — Brooksbank, Esq. was patron in 1814,
The church is dedicated to St. John the Evangelist.
About the year 1218 a convent of Regular canons was
established here, which at the dissolution was valued at
£86. 5. 9.
- " HEALY, a joint township with Combe-Hill, in
the parish of Nermerwirron, western division of
Morreres ward, county of NORTHUMBERLAND, 10
miles (W. N. W.) from Morpeth, containing 43 inha-
bitants,

HEALEY, a joint township with Sutton, in the pa-
rish of MasuAM, eastern division of the wapentake of
Hawng, North riding of the county of York, 7% miles
(S.B. by 8.) from Middleham, containing 413 inhabit-
ants

HEALING, a parish in the wapentake of BraprEy-
Haversror, parts of Linpsey, county of LiNcownn,
54 miles (W.) from Great Grimsby, containing 94 inha-
bitants. The living is a discharged rectory, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's
books at £6. 4. 2. The Rev. R. Parkinson was patron
in 1798. The church is dedicated to St. Peter and St.
Paul. 'The name of this place is supposed to be derived
from the healing or medicinal properties of two mineral
springs, the water of which is impregnated with iron
and sulphur ; notwithstanding their propinquity, being
only about a yard apart, their properties are different,
one being used for bathmg and the other internally, in
cutaneous diseases.

'HEALLY, a township in the parish of Bywrrr-
St. PeTER, eastern division of TiNpALe ward, county
of Non-muunmmn. 7; miles (8. E.) from Hexham,

c% 49 inhabitants.

OR, a parish in the hundred of Monnmn
and LircrurcH, county of DErny, comprising the town
of Heanor (formerly a market town), and the' ips
of Codnor with Loscow, and Shipley, ebml_inlng.
with the liberty of Codnor castle and park, which
tra-parochial, 4981 inhabitants, of Whichtm 9364

This town is pleasantly situated on an eminence |

leranii

e’ i mem

‘by Langley bridge
nmwhgh railway branches off and extends to the

coal pits south of the town. The principal branches
of manufacture are cotton goods, hosiery, and bobbin
net-lace, in the making of xch last several females
are employed. The market, formerly on Wednesday,
has been discontinued ; an attempt was made to revive
it some few years smee, but without effect. The

is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Derby,
and diocese of Lichfield and Coventry, rated in the
king's books at £9. 10., endowed with £200 private
benefaction, £400 royal bounty, and £1800 parliament-

ary grant, and in the patronage of the Crown. The
church is dedicated to St. Michael. There ave places

of worship for Independents and Wesleyan Methodists.
Among the charitable bequests is one of £ 5 per annum

for the instruction of poor children; and this parish

has the privilege of sending eight boys to the school at
Smalley, in the parish of Morley, founded by John and
Samuel Richardson, Esqrs. The ruinsof the ancient
castle of Codnor, founded by Richard de Grey in the
reign of Henry I11., may here be traced over a consider

able extent of ground, and some of the walls are still
standing.

HEANTON PUNCHARDEN, a parish in the hun-
dred of BRAUNTON, county of DEvon, 45 miles (W.N. W.)
from Barnstaple, containing 485 inhabitants.! The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Barnstaple, ‘
and diocese of Exeter, rated in the king's books at |
#£22. 7. 11, and in the patronage of — Bassett, Esq. |
The church, dedicated to St. Augustine, contains a hand-
some monument bearing the arms of the Coffin family ;
it has also a wooden screen. The navigable river Tor" m
runs on the south of this parish.

HEAP, a chapelry in that part of the parish of Ble
which is in the hundred of SAurorp, county palatine
of Lancaster, 3 miles (E.) from Bury, containing 6552
inhabitants, There is a place of worship for Indepen-
dents and Wesleyan Methodists. A National school for
five hundred boys, erected in 1815, is supported by sub-
scription. The spinning and manufacture of cotton'is
carried on ¥ a considerable extent in the chapelry. |

HEAPEY, a chapelry in the parish and hundred |
of LevyLAND, county palatine of Lancaster, 2§ miles
(N. N. £.) from Chorley, containing 530 inhabitants. !
The living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Chester, endowed with £400 m 3
benefaction, £400 royal bounty, and £600 'ﬂ
;trydgmnt and in the patronageofﬂwavm of My~ v
an AR i

i

HEAPHAM, a parish m-ﬁmﬁﬂomm
HAM, parts of memr, county of LiNcoLn, 5 miles
(E. 8. E.) from Gmnd)mhms lﬁw
The living is a discharged rectory, in ! "on:
of Stow, and diocese of Lincoln, 1 !
books at £10. Charles

HEATH, a joint chap
of menm Buz
of Bnnrolo‘," ]




m&:‘m isa phmot wouhnpﬂocWes—

nmm, p.mh it the hundred of ScAmspALE,
eonmyofnnnn, 5% miles (8.E. by E.) from Chester-
field, containing 411 inhabitants. The living is a vi-
carage, in the archdeaconry of Derby, and diocese of
Lichfield and Coventry, rated in the king's books at
£4. 18, 9., and in the patronage of the Duke of Devon-
shire, The church, dedicated to All Saints, has portions
in the Norman style of architecture.

HEATH, a joint township with Jay, in the parish
of LB!N‘I‘WAI.D!NE, hundred of WicmoORE, county of
Hererorp, 42 inhabitants.

HEATH, or HETHE, a parish in the hundred of
-vaeuuv, county of Oxrorp, 4 miles (N. by E.) from
Bicester, containing 350 inhabitants. The living is
@ rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Oxford,
rated in the king's books at £7. 9. 44, and in the pa-
tronage of the Crown. The church is dedicated to St.
George and St. Edmund. There is a place of worship
for Wesleyan Methodists.

HEATH, a chapelry in that part of the parish of
Sroxe-St. MiLsorovGH which is in the hundred of
Munsrow, county of SaLop, 9 miles (N.E. by N.) from
Ludlow, containing 41 inhabitants.

HEATH, a joint township with Warmfield, in the
parish of Wuuurn:x.n, lower division of the wapentake
of AgnrieG, West riding of the county of York, 2
miles (E. by 8.) from Wakefield. The population is
- returned with the township of Warmfield.

' HEATH (UPPER), a township in the parish of
Worraen, hundred of Cairsury, county of Savor,
504 inhabitants.

HEATHENCOTE, a hamlet in the parish of
PAUWM! hundred of CrLeLEY, county of NorTH-
‘amMPTON, 1} mile (8, E.) from Towcester. The popu-
lation is returned with the ; h. Here was formerly
a chapel, dedicated to the Vh-g-in,butithns

® f.m mu l‘!linl -

HEATHER, a parish in the hundred o SPARKEN-

mor, county of Lercester, 54 miles (N. by W.) from

‘Market-Bosworth, containing 411 inhabitants. The liv-
ing is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry of
- Leicester, and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's
~books at £7. 17. 8., and in the

mhtphee of worship for Wesleyan Me
mauclently pmoetptoryof Knights Hospit-
8, in the reign of Edward VI. to Oliver St.
and Robert Thornton: about the time of the
n the value was computed at £39. 1. 5. per
Mh:eodmmeinthepadnh i
oF EUGH, a chapelry in the parish -
~western division of DARLINGTON
me of Durnam, 4 miles (W.N. W.)
_ (’Jhpel. '!hpopnhnonismned
AT | : %

lnmdnddf’l‘unl

patronage of the
“Paul Belcher. ﬁechurehhdediatedto?;ﬁ

ELD, apamhinthehtmdredofww
mnouca, rape of Hastings, county of Sussex, 8}
miles (N. by E.) from Haylsham, contnnidg 1613 inha-
bitants. The living is a vicarage, in the nrchdeaconry

of Lewes, and diocese of Chichester, rated in the king's -

books at £10, and in the patron of the Prebendary
of Heathfield in the Cathl:sdral ‘(’"Jg:urch of Chichester.
The church, dedicated to All Saints, has recently re-
ceived an addition of one hundred and twenty free
sittings, towards defraying the expense of which the
Incorporated Society for the enlargement of churches
and chapels contributed £10: it has portions in the
early, with insertions in the decorated, style of English
architecture. 1In a part of this village, called Cade-
street, Jack Cade, the notorious rebel, was slain, by the
sheriff of Kent, in 1450; a stone pedesta.l, with a tablet
and inscription, has been erected by Mr. Newbery, to
record the event.

HEATHPOOL, a township in the parish of Kirk-
NEWTON, western division of GLENDALE ward, county
of NORTHUMBERLAND, containing 42 inhabitants.

HEATHWAITE, a joint chapelry with Woodland, in
the parish of Kirksy-IrELETH, hundred of LoNspaLE,
north of the sands, county palatine of LANcAsTER, 6
miles (8. W. by W.) from Hawkshead, containing 267
inhabitants,

HEATHY-LEE, a township in the parish of ALL-
STONEFIELD, northern division of the hundred of Tor-
MONSLOW, county of Starrorp, 2§ miles (W. by N.)
from Longnor, containing 788 inhabitants.

HEATON, a joint township with Oxcliffe, in that
part of the parish of LancasTer which is in the hun-
dred of LonspaLk, south of the sands, county palatine
of LANCASTER, 3 miles (W. by 8.) from Lnncaster con-
taining 176 inhabitants, This township is situated on
the banks of the Lune.

HEATON, a township in the parish of Dean, hun-
dred of SaLrorp, county palatine of Lancaster, 2%
miles (W. by N.) from Great Bolton, containing 826 in-
habitants.

HEATON, a township in that part of the parish of
AvLL SAINTS, ancu'ru:, which is in the eastern divi-
sion of CastLE ward, county of NORTHUMBERLAND, 1§
mile (N, E.) from Newcastle upon Tyne, containing 470
inhabitants.

HEATON, a township in that part of the parish of
Leexk which is in the northern division of the hundred
of TormoNsLow, county of Starrorp, 5 miles (N. W
- by N.) from Leek, containing 391 inhabitants.

HEATON, a chapelry in the parish of Braprorp,
wapentake of Morrey, West riding of the county of
Yorg, 2 miles (N, W. by N from Bradford, containing
‘1217 inhabitants. Here is a place of worship for Wes-
leyan Methodists.

HEATON (GREAT), a township in tlw‘?rhh of
‘Oupuay cum PrestwicH, hundred of SALFoRD, county

pdatinedhnc.\mn,q:mh(mbyw.)&mi!m
chester, cont: 224 inhabi
HEATQN( ).lpﬂ‘iﬂhiﬂ%

% divmon



ﬂeld. The living is a recto
diocese of York, rated in * be
The Duke of Northmnher p
The chureh is dedicated to St. Johnthe Ba

HEATON (LITTLE), a township in the parish of
Orpuam cum Prestwich, hundred of SALFoRD, county
pnhtme of LANCASTER, 5 miles (N.) from Manchester,
containing 630 inhabitants.

HEATON-NORRIS, a chapelry in the parish of
MancuesTER, hundred of SALrorD, county palatine of
Lancaster, 2 miles (N. W. by N.) from Stockport,
contaxmng 6958 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual
curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Chester,
endowed  with £800 private benefaction, £400 royal
bounty, and #£1400 parliamentary grant, and in the
patronage of the Warden and Fellows of the Collegiate
Church of Manchester. The chapel is dedicated to St.
Thomas, There is a place of worship for Independents.
Two cottages were built by subscription for the purpose
of a mhool; one is occupied by a schoolmaster, the
other is let for £5.5. per annum., Near the chapel
is a building comprising a school-room, with apart-
ments above for the master’s residence : it is snpposed
to have been erected on the waste, about a century ago,
by subscription among the inhabitants of the township,
who appoint the master, and is endowed with £10 per
annum, arising from a bequest of £200 by John Hol-
lingpriest, in 1785. The petty sessions for the Man-
chester division of the hundred of Salford are held here.
This place is separated from Stockport by the river Mer-
say. | At Heaton-Mersey a Sunday school was endowed
with £500, in 1815, by Robert Parker, Esq.

AVITREE a parish in the hundred of Wox-
roun, county of Devon, 1 mile (E.) from Exeter, con-
taining 1253 inhabitants. The living is a vicarage, with
the ies of St. David and Seidwell, rated in the
King's books at £34. 3. 4., and in the peculiar jurisdic-
tion and patronage of the Dean and Chapter of Ex-
eter. The church, dedicated to St. Michael, is in the
later style of English architecture. This parish. is a
suburb of Exeter, including the villages of Wlnpton,

: Polsloe, Monkaton, and East and West Wonford. The
pame is said to have been derived from its having been
a place of execution, the gallows being called “ heavy
(i. e. grievous) tree.” It was the western head-quar-
ters of the parliamentary forces during the civil war.
At Polesloe was formerly a Benedictine monastery,
founded by Lord Bxcwer,nnd dissolved in 1538, when its
revenue was valued at £164. 8. 11.

it are yet visible. There was also a monastic cell, of
the Cluniac order, dedicated to St.James, the estates

: some remains oﬂ;

l‘enrothq- ;
and con » 564 inhabitants, of which
in the township of Hebbun\,ﬁmilel (N, W..) from

Morpeth. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the arch-
deaconry of Northumberland, and diocese of Duthum,
and in the patronage of the Rector of Bothall. .

HEBDEN, a township in the parish of lhmoxv,
castern dnvmon of the wapentake of STaiNcLIFEE and
Ewcross, West riding of the county of York, 11 miles
(N. by E.) from Skipton, containing 877 inhabitants.
There are places of worship for Baptists and Waﬂeym
Methodists,

HECK, or HICK, a tewnship in that part of the
parish of SxarTe which is in the lower division of the
wapentake of OscoLpcross, West riding of the county
of York, 4 miles (W. by 8.) from Snaith, containing
228 inhabitants. This township is within the peculiar
ecclesiastical jurisdiction of the court of Snaith.

HECKFIELD, a parish in the hundred of HoLp-
suort, Basingstoke division of the county of Sou’rn-
AMPTON, comprising the chapelry of Mattingley, and
the . tythm%; of Heckfield, Holdshott, and the greater
portion of Hazely Heath, and containing, with the whole
of Hazely Heath, 1149 inhabitants, of which number,
636 are in the tything of Heckfield, 3% miles (N, W. by
W.) from Hartford-Bridge. The living is a vicarage, in
the archdeaconry and diocese of Wmchester, rated in the
king's books at £16.1%2. 11,, and in the patro
of the Warden and Fellows of New College, Oxfi
The church is dedicated to St. Michael. A fair is held
on Good Friday. The rivers Loddon and Blackwater
skirt this parish on the north-west.

HECKINGHAM, a parish in the hundred of 0:.4
VERING, county of NorroLk, 6 miles (N. N. W.) fmm

Beccles, containing 146 inhabitants, but_inel:
House of Industry, and the Hospital of Loddon Gh-
vering, which are in this parish, 541, The living is a

perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and
diocese of Norwich, Thomas Smyth, Esq. was po.tron ?
in 1 Mhmh is dedicated to St. ‘

GTON, a parish in the wapent
bmh , in “
tbe
at £12. 16. 3,, and in.
ﬁmnu., wapentake of

wpflury, parts of Kestevex, county of
wifes (E. by 8.) from Sleaford, containing 1 “Qhﬂ!p-
18, Thehnngmndischngﬁdv:
u-chdeuconry and diocese of Lincoln, ;
Benson. The chureh i is, d&ﬁw{ g
HECKMONDWIKE, a cha
county of York, 8} miles,
containing 2579
erected.
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; ; (ms'r) in that part of the

m’h of Hepnox on tho«!ﬂu which is in the western
on of CasTLE ward, county of NORTHUMBERLAND,

8 miles (N. W. by w.) fmm Newcastle upon Tyne, con-

taining 44 inhabitants.

HEDDON (WEST), a township in that part of the
parish of HEppon on the WaLr which is in the eastern
division of TrNpALE ward, county of NORTHUMBERLAND,

8% miles (W.N.W.) from Newcastle upon Tyne, con-
tlinlng 38 inhabitants.

DDON on the WALL, a parish comprising the
township of East Heddon and a part of Eachwick, in
the western division of CasTLe ward, and the townships
of Heddon on the Wall, West Heddon, Houghton with
Clowhouse, Whitchester, and the other portion of Each-
wick, in the eastern division of TinpALE ward, county
of NorTHUMBERLAND, and containing 770 inhabitants,
of which number, 362 are in the township of Heddon
on the Wall, 7 miles (W. by N.) from Newcastle upon
Tyne. The living is a discharged vicarage, in the arch-
deaconry of Northumberland, and diocese of Durham,
and in the patronage of the Crown. The church is
dedicated to St. Philip and St. James. This parish is
bounded on the south™ by the river Tyne, and on the
north by the Font. The Picts', or Roman, wall inter-
sected the parish, from which circumstance it derives
its di:tingu.is‘ning appellation ; the fosse alone is now

: HEDENHAM a parish in the hundred of Loppox,
county of Nonou, 3% miles (N.N.W.) from Bungay,
containing 283 inhabitants. The living is a discharged
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese of
Norwich, rated in the 's books at £13. 6. 8.
N. Chambers, wu patnm in 1812. The church is
dedicated to St.

) in the parish of EGLING-
, u.; ward, county

ck, eﬁning

in 1463, a battle was fought between the forges
Edward IV, and & plrtyinthe service of the degp
monarch, Henry VI, in which Sir Ralph Percy
slain ; mmemoryofvd:uebmm-y,utonepmu called
Percy’s Cross, was erected upon the spot, being
a little to the north-east of the twenty-fourth

on the Morpeth and Wooler road.
GERLEY, a parish in the hundred of 9!’0!!,
thcxmonul, 8 miles (S. E. by E.) from

an extensive barony bel 3 m‘!
De Vere, one of whom, AubreyDeVeﬂ!,Mof it
supposed to have founded & castle here in the

Stephen. During the war between King John and ﬁw
barons, this fortress was taken by the king, in 1216
in the following year it was surrendered to the Dauphin
of France, who had been invited to England by the in-
surgent barons; and soon after the death of John it
was recovered by the Earl of Pembroke, regent under
Henry III.  Many additional buildings were erected By
John De Vere, Earl of Oxford, a distinguished partizan
of the house of Lancaster, durmg the civil war in the
fifteenth century, who gave a most sumptuous entertain-
ment at Castle-Hedingham to Henry VIL : that king
subsequently caused the earl to be prosecuted for giving
liveries to a number of his retainers, in breach of the
provisions of a statute then recently enacted, for which
offence he was fined fifteen thousand marks. The suc-
ceeding earl'€old the estate, having previously dismantled
the castle and razed the surrounding edifices; but the
keep, or great central tower, is still standing, and forms
an.object of considerable interest to antiquaries. Fairs
are held at Hedingham, for hops and cattle, May 14th,
July 25th, August 15th, and October 25th; and the
petty sessions for the division of North Hinckford are
held here on Tuesdays. The living is a perpetual cu-
racy, in the archdeaconry of Middlesex, and diocese of
London, and in the patronage of Lewis Majendie, Esq.
The church, decicated to St. Nicholas, is an ancient
edifice in the early English style, with a mixture of the
Norman, except the tower, which was erected about
1616: in the chancel is a superb monument to the
memory of John, Earl of Oxford, mentioned above, and
his Countess, with recumbent statues, armorial bearings,
and inscriptions. Here is a place of worship for In-
dependents. Some small bequests have been left by
different persons for the henefit of the poor. At
Nunnery-Street, near Hedingham, are the remains of
a Benedictine convent for nuns, founded by the De Vere
family, in the twelfth century, the revenue of which,
at the dissolution, was £29. 12. 10. On the south-
east side of the castle was an hospital, founded by one

“of the same family, about "the middle of the thirteenth

century, which has been long since destroyed.
HEDINGHAM (SIBLE), a parish in the hundred

- of HiNCkFORD, county of Essex, § of amile (8.W.) from
Castle- Hedmgham containing 2060 inhabitants. The
; ljvi is a rectory, in the jurisdiction of the Commissary

and Herts, concurrently with the Consistorial
Conrt of the Bishop of London, rated in the king's
books at £22. C. Stovin, Esq. was patron in 1792.
The church is dedicated to St. Mary. = There ilnpllce
of ‘worship for Baptists.

HEDLEY a mmhlﬁ in that part of the of
Cnltrf.nleSmnrwhi is in the middle vhiondf
Cuzster ward, county
(8.w. by 8.) from Gateshead,

HEDLEY, a township in the
eastern dlviaion of Twn;u
UMBERLAND, 3 miles (8 m omgmn,
168 inhabitants, e SR

HEDLEY - HOPE, a ‘townshiy
Bmc:mn, north-
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ward, county palatine of Dvamn 6 miles (E x.l,)
from Wolsingham, contai 51 mhabihm:v

HEDLEY-WOODSIDE, a township in M plnsh
of OviNgHAM, eastern division of TiNpALE ward, county
of NORTHUMBERLAND, 4 miles (8.) from Ovmgha.m
containing 55 inhabitants.

HEDNESFORD, a joint townlhxp with Leacroft,
in the parish of CANNOCK, eastern division of the hun-
dred of CurrLesToNE, county of StArrorp, 4 miles
(8.w. by 8.) from Rudgeley, containing 442 inhabitants.
A great number of race horses is trained here.

, SN HEDON, or HEYDON,
a horough, market town, and
parish, possessing separate
% jurisdiction, but locally in
Bthe middle division of the
il //> wapentake of Jolderness,
19) East riding of the county of
/=" YoRrk, 44 miles (E.8.E.) from
s York, and 179 (N.by E.) from
London, containing 902 in-
I\ O) . habitants, This town is re-

Corporate Seal. puted to have been anciently
a very considerable sea-port. A charter was given to
the burgesses of Hedon by King Athelstan; and in 1199,
King John granted to Baldwin, Earl of Albemarle and
Holderness, and to his wife Hawis, free burgage here, by
the same tenure, and with the same privileges as at York
, and Lineoln. Hedon has possessed but little commercial
or maritime importance since the foundation of the
port of Hull by King Edward I. In the year 1656, a
great part of the town was consumed by fire, after
which it was rebuilt in a more handsome and substan-
tial manner. It is pleasantly situated in a level, fer-
tile, and well-cultivated country, within a mile and a
half of the Humber, and consists chiefly of one street,
in the middle of which is the market-place. The mem-
bers of the Holderness Agricultural Society hold their
meetings here, and possess a valuable and select library
of the best works that have been written on agriculture,
and on subjects connected with it. Assemblies are re-
gularly held during the season. The old haven has long
since been choked up, but-a canal, cut from the Hum-
ber, extends to within a quarter of amile of the town,
only navigable however for small craft. The market is
on Saturday ; and the fairs, which are considerable, are
on 2nd and September 22nd, for horses, &c.,

November 17th and December 6th, for cattle, &c.,, and

every second Monday from Shmvet:de to Midsum
for cattle and sheep. )
The t of the borough, bychtmrdatedin
the 14th of James 1., is vested in a mayor, recorder,
twc baiiiffs, and nine aldermen, assisted by a town clerk,
oromer, and other officers, with an indefinite number
ofbnrgeuenz the mayor is annually elected from among
the aldermen, and the bailiffs, who during their office
are justices of the peace, from the :
mayor acts as coroner. The freodom the borough is
inberited by birth, - : ‘obtained
by gift from the j * he
‘fmmﬂy courts of session for
and areourt of record for the

: ‘a‘.se

HEEI

small edifice, in which one apartment is W

as a place of confinement for prisoners, thecdrporaﬁ
being bound by their charter to provide a

prison within the town for the lords of the manor of
Holderness ; but no criminal or debtor hap heen con-
fined there for many years. The h first sent
members to parliament in the 23d of Edward 1., but
discontinued till the 1st of Edwnrd VI., since whidl .
time it has made regular returns. r:%ht of election
is vested in the burgesses generally, the number of
whom is about three hundred: the mayor is the re.
turning officer.

The living is a perpetual curacy annexed to the vi-
carage of Preston, endowed with £200 parliamentary
grant, and in the peculiar jurisdiction and patronage
of the Archbishop of York. ~There were formerly three
churches in the town; of those of St. Nicholas and
St. James only traces of the foundations are visible :
the remaining church, dedicated to St. Augustine, is a
venerable and spacious cruciform structure in the
early, with a lofty central tower in the later, style of
English architecture ; the front of the north transept is
a remarkably finc specimen of the early English, and in
the south transept is a very beautiful window, though
much mutilated; many portions of this edifice display
much elegance of design, and richness of detail. There
are places of worship for Baptists, Independents, and
Wesleyan Methodists, and a Roman Catholic chapel. .
A school for boys, and another for girls, the children of
burgesses, are supported by the contributions of the
members for the borough, and by other donations,
Almshouses for poor and infirm burgesses and their
widows were erected, and are supported, by the corpo-
ration ; and there are various charitable bequests for
the relief of the poor. An hospital, dedicated to the
Holy Sepulchre, was founded at Newton, in this parish,
in the reign of John, by Alan, son of Oubernus, for a
master and several brethren, the revenue of whic’gh at'
the dissolution, was £13, 15. 10. By

HEDSOR, a parish in the hm\dred of Dxs
county of Bvcxmum\u, 43 m ; 8)
Marlow, contui , with the”
inhabitants. thq‘
archdeaconry of B
rated in the king's booke
royal bounty, mﬂ";£200 s
Boston was in 1814.%

_St.Nxch L l'nthe ch




diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
ﬁ‘ p;_;;! . 4, and in the patronage of the Bishop of

Norwich. The church is dedicated to St. Nicholas.

A _,,:HEIGHINGTON, a parish in the south-eastern
' &ﬂsim of DarvingTon ward, county palatine of Dur-

HAM, comprising the townships of Coastamoor, Heigh-

ington, Killerby, Midridge, Redworth, School-Aycliffe,

and Walworth, and containing 1383 inhabitants, of
which number, 557 are in the township of Heighington,

64 miles (N. N, W.) from Darlington. The living is a

vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Durham,

rated in the king's books at £12.14. 95., and in the
patronage of the Dear: and Chapter of Durham. The
church, dedicated to St. Michael, has a Norman tower,
but the structure generally is of a later date : the pulpit
is ancient and richly carved. There is a place of wor-
ship for Wesleyan Methodists. A free grammar school
was founded in 1601, by Elizabeth Jennison, of Wal-
worth, and endowed with a rent-charge of £10, which
was subsequently augmented by a donation of £70
from Edward Kirby, vicar of this parish: the present
income is £55.11. per annum, and the school is ton-
ducted on the Madras system : a new school-house was

" built in 1812, by subscription, at an expense of £300.

. HEIGHINGTON, a chapelry in the parish of Wasa-
INGBOROUGH, second division of the wapentake of Lan-
GOE, parts of KesTEVEN, county of LiNcoLn, 4§ miles

(E.8.E.) from Lincoln, containing 896 inhabitants.

There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.

HEIGHLEY, a township consisting of High Heigh-

and Low Heighley, in that part of the parish of

) which is in the western division of MorreTH

unty of NorRtHUMBERLAND, 2F miles (N.N. W.)

peth, containing, with Espley, Heighley-Gate,

inhabitants.

n the parish of Roexk,
ODDINGTREE, county
romn Bewdley, The
ish, The chapel is

| the bundred of Fiex-
 county of Sussex, 13 mile

f  manufacture, but especially.to.that of glass, which had
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been established in the ~ In 1778, .an incor-
porated company, styled the British Plate-Glass Com-
pany, evected an extensive manufactory at Rayenhead,

in the township of Sutton, near this town, which

having failed, was succeeded by another company,
formed in 1794, whose manofactory covers an area of
nearly thirty acres, and is surrounded by a lofty stone
wall, on the outside of which are the hahitations of the
workmen : the erection of this building cost mearly
£40,000. This establishment is the largest of the kind
in England, and affords employment to upwards of
three hundred workmen : the first artisans were brought
from France, and the glass now produced is in all respeets
equal, and in many superior, to the French and Venetian
plates. In 1789, a steam-engine was constructed for
grinding and polishing plate-glass, which performs the
work of one hundred and sixty men, and with greater
exactness, Plates of glass measuring one hundred and
forty inches by seventy-two, and concave and convex
mirrors, thirty-six inches in diameter, are made here; the
produce of the manufactory, consisting of crown, plate,
and flint glass, is chiefly sent to the company's ware-
house in London. In the same township, and in that
of Eccleston, are three other manufactories for crown
and flint glass, and bottles : there are also several pot-
teries, breweries, and a cotton-mill in the neighbourhood ;
many of which are worked by steam. The cheapness
and abundance of good coal, and the proximity of Liver-
pool, have greatly contributed to the success of these
manufactories. About 1780, extensive works for smelt-
ing and refining copper were established here by the
proprietors of the Parys mine, in Anglesea, who also had
one on a smaller scale near the Sankey canal, but both
these were discontinued in 1815. A customary market
is held on Saturday ; and there are fairs on the Monday
and Tuesday after Easter-week, and on the first Friday
and Saturday after September 8th. At the courts leet and
baron of the lord of the manor of Windle, held in Novem-
ber, peace officers are annually appointed for this district.
The living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Chester, endowed with £ 600 private be-
nefaction, £400 royal bounty, and £600 parliamentary
grant, and in the patronage of Trustees. The chapel
was originally dedicated to St. Helen, but on: being
enlarged in 1816, it was dedicated anew to St. Mary.

There are places of worship for the Society of Friends,

pendents, and Wesleyan Methodists, and a chapel
" Roman Catholics : to the first of these is attached
. liberal endowment, the interest of which is appro-

priated to charitable purposes. A free school is en-

cof dowed with property  producing £26 per annum, for

the gratuitous instruction of twenty-five poor children
‘within the town, in reading, writing, and arithmetic: the
i t of the master and the of the

revenue of the charity are vested in the Trustees of the
e chapel, A charity school was founded in 1714, by a
_ beguest from Sarah Cowley, who gave an estate at Hard-

shaw, near St. Helen's,
iec wapds eds i

directing the proceeds to be
the children of poor. parents be-

*
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it is computed that in the various Sunday schools in-
struction is afforded to about one thousand two hundred
children. The Sunday school in connexion with the
established elmwh was erected by ubnmptlmo‘nnd thl;
of a bazaar, in 1829, at an expense of near’
md. In 1828, a charitable fund was established
for the relief of poor married women in’child-birth, or
of widows who have lost their husbands i
nancy. ' A savings bank was opened in 1819.
HELEN'S (ST.), a town and parigsh in the liberty
of Easr Mepina, Isle of Wight division of the
county of SourEAmMPTON, 9 miles (E.) from Newport,
containing 804 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual
curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Winchester,
endowed with £200 private benefaction, £400 royal
bounty, and £ 1200 parliamentary grant, and in the pa-
tronage ‘of the Provost and Fellows of Eton College.
The ancient church was partly taken down at the com-
mencement of the last century, in consequence of en-
croachments made by the sea, but the tower was left
standing as a land-mark. There is a place of worship
for Wesleyan Methodists. Here was a priory of Clyniac
monks, the site of which is new occupied by a modern
mansion called the Priory: in an adjacent wood are
some remains of an ancient watch-tower. .This parish
is bounded on the east by the English channel, on the
north by Spithead, and on the south by Brading harbour.

HELFORD, a small sea-port in the parish of Man-
accan, hundred of Kerrier, county of CorNwaALL,
6 miles (5.8.w.) from Falmouth. The population is
returned with the parish. This place, which is situated
on the southern side of the river Hel, has a haven where
some trade is carried on in timber and coal imported
from Wales. Here is a place of worship for Indepen-
dents.

HELHOUGHTON, a parish in the hundred of Gat-
Low, county of NorroLk, 44 miles (S.W. by W.) from
Fakenham, containing 322 inhabitants. The living is a
discharged vicarage, united to that of South Rainham,
in the archdeaconry and diocese of Norwich, rated in
the king's books at £6. 13. 4. The church is dedicated
to All Saints.

"HELLABY, a township in the parish of StainTon,
‘southern division of the wapentake of STraFrorTH and
Trexurny, West riding of the county of Yorxk, 53 miles
(E.) from Retherham. The population is returned with
theparich ‘

"HELLAND, a parish in the hundred of Triga,
county of CorNwALL, 24 miles (N. by E.) from Bods .

min, containing 264 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, to St

in the arch of Cornwall, and diocese of Exeter,
rated in the king's books at £9. 13.9, William Mors-
head, Esq. was patron in 1817, The church is dedicated

4o St. Helena. Here is a place of worshipfor Wesleyan

Methodists. ~ Dr. Richard Glynn Cloberry, an eminent

pmcndpiyﬁcim,mbmot&ndu,em,
uuof theGlymfnmﬂy in this

the

rrsewsaor, ‘NowroLx; umnu (N.W. by W.) from Nor.
293 inhabitants.

- wich, Gﬂlﬁlﬂﬁlg mvﬁﬂ is a rec~
tory with that of .

Drayton, ~archdeaconry and
mw&m&m in the king's mmm
18 fnith i “,,vy’,(

nmomm M

h
Fimaiss oy
i E?MY

"HEL
county of NowTmamerox, 5 miles (S.W,) from Daven-
petunlenucy,inthe of N and

orthampton, ¢

diocese of Peterborough, endowed with £200 rToyal
bounty. T. and M, Serafton, Esqrs. were pltmnlh
1806. The church is dedicated to St, John the

There is a place of worship for Wesleyan M

In 1618, Mr. John Ball bequeathed £100 for the erec-
tion of a school-room, and a rent-charge of £10 a year
towards the support of a master; twenty children arve
educated. The Rev. Sir John K.nlghﬂy bequeathed
£5. 3. per annum towards a Sunday school. The source
of the river Leame is near the vxlhge

HELLIFIELD, a township in the parish of Lomi
PRrESTON, wWestern dxvmon of the wapentake of Staix-
cri¥Fe and Ewcross, West riding of the county of
York, 6 miles (8.8.E.) from Settle, containing 279 in-
habitants.

HELLINGHILL, a township in the parish of Rora-
BURY, western division of CoQuETpALE ward, county of
NORTHUMBERLAND, 4 miles (S. by W.) from Rothbury,
containing 130 inhabitants.

HELLINGLY, a parish in the hundred of Divi,
rape of PEVENSEY, county of Sussex, 24 miles (N.byW.)
from Haylsham, containing 1313 inhabitants. The living
is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Lewes, and diocese
of Chichester, rated in the king's hooks at £6. 16, 8.,
and in the patronage of the Earl of Chichester. The
church, dedicated to St. Peter and St. Paul, is in the
early style of English architecture. There is a place
of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.

HELMDON, a parish in the hundred of Kine's
Svrron, county of NorTEAMPTON, 6 miles (N.) from
Brackley, containing 486 inhabitants, The living is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Northampton, dio-
cese of Peterborough, rated in the king's books at
£13. 11. 04., and in the patronage of the President and
Fellows of Corpus Christi College, Oxford. The church
is dedicated to St. Mary Magdalene.
~— Jones gave £20. towards the establishment and
maintenance of a school, which is now supported by
voluntary contributions. A court leet is held here by
the crown, for the duchy of Lancaster,

HELMINGHAM, a parish in the hundred of Ml-
mERE and Craypon, county of SurroLk, 5 miles (S.8.E.)
from Debenham, containing 325 inhabitants, The living
is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Suffolk, and diocese

Norwich, rated in the king's books at £18, and in
rpatromgeofthe&own. The church is dcdmd

HELMINGTON, a joint towmhip with Hunﬁ&.
mthtparto{the of ST, ANDREW, AUCKLAD
isinthe nwﬂmvumdiﬁdoaaf DarringTO!

In 1723, the Rev,,

- AL

-
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Medhym‘der of the purhmt the remains of this
structure, which was erected on an eminence, and sur-
mmdeaby a double moat, consist principally of detached
portions of the state apartments and offices, and part of
the keep and. gateway. The town is situated on the de-
clivity of a small eminence, sloping gently towards the
river Rye, which gives name to the wapentake; the
houses are chiefly built of stone, and roofed with slate,
and the inhabitants are supplied with water from springs
and from a rivulet called the Boro' Beck, which, after
running through the town, disappears at the distance
of a mile, and rises again at the distance of four miles,
The environs are extremely pleasant, being richly diver-
sified with extensive woods and fertile valleys. The linen
manufacture, which was carried on extensively by fa-
milies at their own houses, has been almost destroyed
here by the introduction of machinery. There are mines
of coal in the parish. The market is on Saturday : the
fairs are, May 19th, July 16th, October 1st and 2nd, and
November 5th and 6th, for cattle, sheep, and linen and
woollen cloth. A court for the recovery of debts
under 40s. is occasionally held. The living is a dis-
charged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Cleveland, and
diocese of York, rated in the king's books at £11. 8. 64,
endowed with £200 private benefaction, and £200 royal
bounty, and in the patronage of Charles Duncombe, Esq.
‘The c¢hurch, dedicated to All Saints, is a large and hand-
. some structure, partly in the Norman, and partly in the
| ' early, style of English architecture, with later insertions,
! lnvag a tower at the west end: the interior contains
| some elegant screen-work, and an hexagonal font of early
English character. At Haram and Pockley are chapels
of ease, the latter built, in 1822, at the sole expense of
« C. Duncombe, Esq., of Duncombe Park (a noble man-
#ion, within a mile of Helmsléy, built, in 1718, in the
" Doric order of architecture, from a design by Vanbrugh),
who s’ prop'ndor of mearly the whole of the parish,
. which it about gixteen miles long from north to south,
. nearly five miles in breadth, and contains
" about fifty thousand aéres,: There are places of worship
for the Society of Friends and Wesleyan Methodists.” A
National school for children of both sexes is aq)pomd
by Mr. Duncombe. George Villiers, Duke of Bucki
ham, after hehndwnhdmwnfrom the court and cal
;t' Oh!lu i , spent a considerable portion of his time
of his life having been distinguished

bt w et sl e ey
t m iqdigenoo at V- ide,
April, 1687. About two miles to the north-west are

teresting remains of the abbey of Rivaulx, or
Ry z\mfmmdmtmnmthevakufthe
; Rye: it was the first Cistercian abbey in York-

4 “m“’yl%.}}:‘l,md de(;‘imtothe
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inhabitants, The li is a discharged viearage, rated
::;“kénglw mg ‘endowed with £200 private

on, £800 royd Mym‘ in mm
jurisdiction and patronage of the Prebendary of Os-
baldwick in the Cathedral Church of ¥ork. The chunh
is dedicated to St, Mary.

HELMSLEY (UPPER), a pa.ruh in the mpmke
of BuLmer, North riding of the county of Yomrk, 7§
miles (N.E. byE.) from York, containing 63 inhabitants.
The living is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry
of Cleveland, and diocese of York, rated in the king's
books at £4. 19. 2., endowed with £400 royal bounty,
and in the patronage of the Crown. The church is de-
dicated to St. Peter.

HELPERBY, a township in that part of the pa-
rish of BrarrerToN which is within the liberty of St.
Perer of York, East riding, though locally in the wa-
pentake of Bulmer, N riding, of the county of
YoRrk, 4% miles (N.E. by E.) from Boroughbridge, con
taining 611 inhabitants, This township is within the
peculiar ecclesiastical jurisdiction of the Dean and
Chapter of York.

HELPERTHORP, a parish in the wapentake of
Buckrose, East riding of the county of Yorx, 12
miles (E.) from New Malton, containing 157 inhabitants.
The living is a discharged vicarage, in the peculiar juris-
diction and patronage of the Dean and Chapter of York,
rated in the king's books at £4. 19. 7. ' The church is
dedicated to St. Peter.

HELPRINGHAM, a parish in the wapentake of
AswArpuURN, parts of Kestevew, county of Lan-
coLN, 74 miles (N. E.) from Falkingham, containing 693
inhabitants. The living is a discharged vicarage, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's
books at £8. 8. 4., and endowed with £200 royal bounty.
Mrs, Andrews and others were patrons in 1799. The
church, dedicated to St. Andrew, is principally in thedeco-
rated style, Here is a place of worship for Independents.

HELPSTONE, a parish in the liberty of Peren-
BOROUGH, county of NortrHAMPTON, 3§ miles (8.8.W.)
from Market-Deeping, containing 372 inhabitants. The
living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of
Northampton, and diocese of Peterborough, rated in the
king's books at £8. 0. 5., endowed with £200 royal
bounty, and in the patronage of the Master and Fellows
of Christ's College, Cambridge. The church, dedicated
to St. Botolph has traces of Norman, with insertions in
the early, later, and decorated, styles of English archi-

‘tecture,
% “HELSBY, a township in the parish of Fropsunam,
séconds division of the hundred of Eppissury, county
itie of Cnln‘nn, 24 miles (8. W. by W.) fmm Frods-
878 inhabitants.
‘HELSM“%ON acbnpelryinthatpubolthc
parish of KenpaL which is in Kenoaw ward, county
of WeernorranD, 44 miles (S. W, by 8.) from Kendal,
containing 268 inhabitants. The living is a pm
curacy, in the archdeaconry of Richmond, and
of Ohmr,cndmdmth £9. 15. per annum and £400

of the Vicariof Kendlal. "The:chapel; dediceted
to Bt. John, was founded in 1726, by John Jackson,
- .schco] m & m 18 lw
fmﬂm RSB T tii" RN
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HELSTON, or HELLES-  in every month. The: has sent members to par-
TON, a market liament ever since the 26th of Edward L : the right of
:iovl:n,;n%chapﬂry Jinthe pa- election is vested in the corporation,dand the mayor is
sh of WENDRON, possess- the returning officer:  the pd:romge of the. bovongh
Y/ ing sepal ction,but belongs to the Duke of Leeds. -
\ 7) locally in the hundred of The living is a perpetual curacy, mththeﬂcmp

\(» Kerrier, county of Corn-
/7~ WALL, 61 miles (8. W.) from
& Launceston, and 274 (W.S.

W.) from London, containing
(@ S 2671 inhabitants. This is a

Seal and Arms, place  of considerable anti-
quity,and was one of the original stannary towns, though
but little tin is coined here at present. When Domesday-
book was compiled it formed part of the royal demesne,
and King John granted a charter to the burgesses for

the foundation of a guild, . which was confirmed by

Edward III., who gave the privilege of holding a market
and fairs. The town stands on the great road from Ply-
mouth to the Land's End, on the declivity of a hill, to the
east of the little river Cober ; and it comprises four prin-
cipal streets arranged in the form of a cross, with a hand-
some market-house and town-hall near the centre: at
the end of the street which takes its name from the
building is situated old Coinage-hall. The streets are
all paved, and lighted with gas, and a stream of
water flows through them, affording an abundant sup-

ply to the inhabitants, and giving a neat and agreeable
aspect to the place. In the neighbourhood are mines

of tin, lead, and copper, which are very productive,
e.pecmlly the famous tin mine of Huel Vor, about
three miles westward from the town, the works extend-
ing more than a mile and a half under ground.  Five

rge steam-engines are used to pump the water out of
the mine, and several smaller ones for raising the ore and
other purposes: there are likewise four large stamping-
mills worked by steam ; and the operations of roasting
and smelting are carried on upon the spot. The expense
of working this mine has been estimated at £5000

a month, notwithstanding which, the proprietors are
said to have obtained a clear profit of £10,000 in

three months. Markets are held on Wednesday and

Saturday ; and there are fairs on the Saturdays before

Mid-Lent Sunday and Palm Sunday, on 'Whit-Monday,

July 20th, September 9th, October 28th, and the first,

second, and third Saturdays before Christmas-eve.

Notwithstmding the grant of many previous char-
ters, Helston was not made a corporate town till the

of Elizabeth, who vested the government in a mayor
m h.ldei-men, who constituted the common coun-

cil, and were to choose twenty-four assistants ; and this
charter was confirmed by Charles 1., who appointed the
mayor for the current year to be also ‘recged
the mayor for the preoedmgyenrto‘beu i

of Wendron, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Corn-
wall. The church, dedicated to St. Michael, is a hand-
some edifice, with a lofty pinnacled tower, standing on
an eminence to the north of the town: it was rebuilt
in 1762, at the expense of £6000, the benefaction of the
Earl of Godolphin. Here are places of worship for
Baptists and Wesleyan Methodists. A National school
has been established in the town ; also a di for
the sick poor mnot receiving parochial relief. In 1704,
Charles Godolphin, Esq. gave land producing a consider-
able income, in trust to the mayor and commonalty
“for the education and maintenance of poor scholars,
relief of decayed virtuous gentlemen, redemptlon of
prisoners, and apprenticing poor children.” Here was
anciently a castle, of which some vestiges existed when
Leland visited the town, in the reign of Henry VIIL.;
the site is now a bowling-green. At the village of St.
John, adjoining Helston, was a priory, or hospital, de-
dicated to St.John the Baptist, the revenue of which,
at the dissolution, was £14,7.4. Near this town is
Loo Pool, one of the most considerable lakes in the
county, formed by an accumulation of the waters of the
river, confined by a sand-bank thrown up by the waves
of the sea, through which an opening is made occasion-
ally to drain the lake. This town has from time imme-
morial been noted for a popular festival, held annually
on the 8th of May, called “the Furrey,” supposed to
have been derived from the Roman Floralia, or games'in
honour of the goddess Flora : on this occasion persons
parade the streets with garlands of flowers, and all ranks
partake of the pleasures of dancing and various mrhl
amusements,

HELTON, a township in the pariuh of Acxlux,
West ward, coundy of Wns'rmonuxn,ﬁrmhv(s ) from
Penrith, contaiming 162 inhabitants. ‘!a&

HELTON, or HILTON, a township (fowmglya cha-

pelry) in the parish of BoNGATE, or S1. MigHARL, Aly%

rLEBY, East ward, county of WEsTMORLAND, 3 miles
(E.) from Appleby, containing 800 inhabitants. The
London Lead Company work the lead mines here, which
are very productive, and they have also a mill for smelt-

‘ing the ore, which ymldn a considerable quantity of ml-

ver. The ¢ has long been demolished.

HEMBLINGTON, a parish in  the hundred uf
Warsmam, county of NorroLx, 4 miles (W. N. "..9
from Acle, containing 255 inhabitants. The

C ) 't.he,
No endowed with £1

HEMBURY ( oty
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number, 500 are in the township of Hemingbrough, 4%
-ilqﬂ.&l-)hn&dby ‘The living is a discharged

the jusfsdiction of the peculiar court of How
dplhhe endowedmth #£1800 parliamentary grant, and
in the patronage of the Crown. The church, dedicated
to St. Mary, is a cruciform structure, pnncapnlly in the
later style of English architecture, with @ _tower rising
from the intersection: it was made collegiate in 1426,
" the revenue of the society, at the dusolutlon, having
been valued at £84. 11. A small school is endowed
with the rent of two acres of land, called the School

HEMINGBY, a parish in the northern division of
the wapentake of GarTrEE, parts of Linpsey, county
of LancoLn, 3§ miles (N. N. W,) from Horncastle, con-
taining 297 inhabitants, The living is a rectory, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's
books at £17. 8. 6}., and in the patronage of the Pro-
vost and Fellows of King's College, Cambridge. There
is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists. This
parish is in the liberty of the duchy of Lancaster,

HEMINGFORD (ABBOTS), a parish in the hun-
dred of ToseranD, county of HunTiNGDON, 2% miles
(w.) from St. Ives, containing 400 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Huntingdon,
and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at
#£26. 13. 4, Lady Olivia Sparrow was patronessin 1811.
The church is dedicated to St. Margaret. A school for
the education of boys and girls is supported by the rector.

- HEMINGFORD (GREY), a parish in the hundred
of ToserLanp, county of HuntinepoNn, 1% mile (W.
by 8.) from St. Ives, containing 475 inhabitants. The
living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of

, and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's
books at £9. 16. 10,, and in the patronage of the Master
and Fellows of Tnmty Hall, Cambridge. The church is
dedicated to St.James. The river Ouse passes the village.
Cowper, the poet, wrote “The Dog and the Water Lily"”
when on a visit here,

- HEMINGSTONE, or HELMINGSTONE, a parish
in the of Bosmere and CLA¥®oN, county of
SurroLk, 4§ miles (E. 8. E.) from Needham, contain-
‘ing 322 inhabitants, The living is a rectory, in the arch-
deaconry of Suffolk, and diocese of Norwich, rated in
the king's books at £8. 11. 54, Sir W. F. Middleton,
Bart. was patron in 1824, The church is dedieated. to
St. Gregory. &
+ HEMINGTON, a township in the parish of Lock-

nmon, western division of the hundredsﬁo:oscon, i

7 of LEICESTER, 8 miles (N. W.) Lough-

containing 421 inbabitants. An ancient chapel

8 in ruins,

4 parish in the hundred of Pore-

orTHAMPTON, 5% miles (E. 8. E.)
ing 134 inhabitants, The living

ge, in the archdeaconry of Noﬂ.h

ms‘-mmwsﬂmnda
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in the king's books at £13. 14. 7. Thedmmh;udeﬁ
cated to St. Mary.

HEMLEY, a parish in the W d!‘“ﬂm.ﬂms,
county of Sunonx 5 miles (S, by E.) from Wood-
bridge, containing 80 inhabitants. The livingis a dis-
charged rectory, in the archdeaconry of Suffolk, and
diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
£4. 19. 2., and in the patronage of the Crown, The
church is dedicated to All Saints, “The navigable river
Deben runs on the east of this parish.

HEMLINGTON, a township in the parish of Sraix-
TON, western division of the liberty of LANGBAURGH,
North riding of the county of Yorxk, 4% miles (N, by W.)
from Stokesley, containing 72 inhabitants.

HEMLINGTON-ROW, a township in the parish
of BRANCEPETH, north-western division of DarvLing-
TON ward, county palatine of Duraam, 4% miles (N, W
by N.) from Bishop-Auckland, containing 154 inhabit-
ants,

HEMPHOLME, a township in the parisif of Levex,
northern division of the wapentake of HoLperxgss,
East riding of the county of York, 104 miles (N. N. E.)
from Beverley, containing 93 inhabitants.

HEMPNALL, a parish (formerly a market town)
in the hundred of DeEpwaDE, county of NorroLxk, 33
miles (E. by N.) from St. Mary Stratton, containing 1014
inhabitants., The living is a vicarage, in the arch-
deaconry of Norfolk, and diocese of Norwich, rated in
the king's books at £6. 13. 4. John T. Mott, Esq.
was patron in 1819. The church is dedicated to St.
Margaret. Here is a fair on St. Andrew's day.

HEMPSTEAD, a parish in the hundred of Fresa-
WELL, county of EssEx, 53 miles (N.N.E.) from Thaxted,
containing 655 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual
curacy annexed to the vicarage of Great Sampford, in
the archdeaconry of Essex, and diocese of London. The
church is dedicated to St. Andrew,

HEMPSTEAD, a parish in the middle division of the
hundred of Dupsrone and King's BArTON, county of
GroucesTER, 1§ mile (S.W. by W.) from Gloucester,
containing, with South Hamlet, 548 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Gloucester, rated in the king's books at £8. Mr. Alder-
man Jones was patron in 1826. The church is dedi-
cated to St,Swithin. In a field here are vestiges of
some earthworks thrown up by the royalists during the
civil war, The Gloucester and Berkeley canal passes
through this parish, and the navigable river Severn runs
donﬁ its western boundary.

EMPSTEAD, a parish in the hundred of Hap-
PING, county of Norrork, 8§ miles (E. by S.) from
North thhm con with the parish of Eccles,
2121 ts. The living is a discharged rectory, thh
the of Eccles and Lessingham, in the arch-

ol Norfolk, and diocese of Norwich, um m
the king's books at £9. 6. 8,, and in the patronage

the Provost Fellows of ngl College, Gunhudge,.
The dﬁﬁ?s is ¢ ted to d?t Antg:e; H

H , a parish in wadted OLT,
county of Nol.m 2 mlkvsiu(:-l‘) rfmﬂl ?W

ingesoinhbmm. The li
e archdeaconry
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HEMPSTEAD  (HE- tion of the Bishop of Lincoln. The chiirch, dedicat
MEL):‘M&&‘.M tostmu'yl.amm iform ,Lm;mb;: g

dred of Dacorum, county of
24 HerTroRD, comprising the

Jymarket town of Hemel-
s Hempstead. and the chapel-
ries of Bovingdon and Flaun-
den, and containing 5198 in-
habitants, of which number,
3962 are in the town of He-
mel-Hempstead, 197 miles
(W. by 8.) from Hertford,
This place, of which

 Soal,

Corporate
and 23 (N.W.) from London.
there are mno records of a date pnor to the Heptarchy,
appears from the name to owe its origin to the Saxons,
by whom, from its situation among the hills, near the
confluence of the rivers Gade and Bulborn, it was called
Hean Hampstede, implying a dwelling in a high or ele-

vated situation : it was given by Offa, King of Mercia,
to the abbey of St. Alban, In Domesday-book it
is noticed under the names Henamstede, and Hamel-
amstede, from which latter its present appellation is evi-
dently deduced. The town is pleasantly situated on the
declivity of a hill, in a fertile valley watered by the river
Gade, which has its source within a distance of four
miles, and consists principally of one street, nearly a
mile in length, partially paved and lighted : the houses
are irregularly built, but of neat and respectable appear-
ance, and the inhabitants are amply supplied with water,
The principal article of manufacture is straw-plat, which
affords employment to nearly all the females and chil-
dren of the labouring class : there are several corn and
paper-mills in the vicinity. The Grand Junction canal,
by means of which the nelghbourhood is supplied with
coal from the Staffordshire mines, passes through Box
Moor, within a mile of the town, where extensive docks,
wharfs, and warehouses, have been constructed. The
market, which is on Thursday, is one of the largest corn
markets in the county; a market is also held on the
morning of the same day for straw-plat, a great quan-
tity of which is sold weekly. The fairs are on Holy
Thursday, for cattle and sheep, to which a court of pie-
powder is attached ; the Thursday after Trinity Sunday,
and the third Monday in September, which last is a
statute fair for hiring servants. The inhabitants received
a charter of incorporation from Henry VIIL, which was
renewed to them by Cromwell on their taking the solemn
¢ and covenant, the copy of which is still preserved.
By this charter the
assisted by a jury of the principal inhabitants, who act
as his council : the bailiff is annually chosen from
among the principal inhabitants on St. Andrew’s day ;
he acts as clerk of the market, but no raagis-
terial authority. The court leet of the lord of the ma-
no;- is, l:yimpermlnion of :}:etgeuhﬁ , held :agﬁm W*:!:k“;
where a meeting county es
phceeveryaltcmteweek thetownhullw M
W“"W o th
e
of the business

H

_#hip for Wesleyan

government is vested in a bailiff,

the Norman style of architecture,
tower surmounted by a lofty spire ; the chancel is ﬁmlj
groined, and the east window embellished with painte
glass ; there is also a finely-painted window at the west

end, presented by Sir Astley Paston Cooper, Baxt, Ih‘ 0

1809, a 1 stone coffin was dug up in the church-

and in thfgc;urcb is a stone v:igth a brass, bmhxgm
efligy of Robert Albyn, with an inscription in Norman
French, There are places of worship for Baptxsts, the
Society of Friends, and Huntingtonians. A charity
school for boys, erected by subseription, and endowed
with £15 pér annum bequeathed, in 1796, by Mr. Thomas
Warren, and £ 10 per aimum from a bequest by Francis
Combe, Esq., of Hempstead-Bury ; and a charity school
for girls, to which Mr. Warren bequeathed £13. 10, per
annum, have been consolidated, and are conducted on
the National system : there are one hundred boys and
eighty girls in the school, which is further supported by
subscription, The West Herts Infirmary, at Picott's
End, in this parish, is also supported by subscription.
The remains of the old manor-house of Bury consist only
of a gateway, from a window over which Henry VIII, is
said to have delivered the charter; and in Lacker’'s house
are some curious apartments said to have been built
by that monarch, in the ceilings of which the royal
arms are still preserved : there are also some remains
of ancient buildings at a place called Heaven's Gate,
at the north-east boundary of the parish, concern-
ing which there are some traditionary records. A¢
Picott's End, and at Poak Mill, in the vicinity of the
town, are saline and chalybeate springs, the water of

which is said to be similar to that of am.
Many petrifactions of sponge and other fossil§, suscep-
tible of a very high polish, are found in the vicinity,

which abounds also with fine specimens of chalcedony,
Dr. Hugh Smith, an eminent lghymcum and medical lec-
turer, was born at Hemel-Hempstead, in 1733 ;
Astley Paston Cooper, Bart., pre-eminently dxstmguished
for his skill in , now resides in the vicinity.
HEMPSTON (BROAD), a parish in the hundred of
Havror, county of Drvon, 4 miles (8. E.) from Ash.
burton, contammg 789 inhabitants, The li u a vi
carage, in the archdeaconry of Totness, and
Exeter, rated in the king's books at £25. 6. 8., and in
the patronage of the Crown. There is a place of wor-
Methodists, A charity school is luy

ported by ons and subscrip tiom
Hmﬂ’% (LITTLE), a #

of Havror, county of Devon, 14
Totness, containing 323 inhabitants. The

jnthe arch and d
Exeter meainthe ?m.g’m xs ]
tronage of 18

the

Sir -,
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was dedicated to St. Andrew, has fallen to decay. ]
of the order o‘f'St.Amhﬁ, the revenue of which, at
the dissolution, mmcth&%?, o.'q.h S
Vi , & e paris DDING-
.mi.‘mmd of WoorToN, county of Oxyorp, 1} mile
from Déddington, containing 172 inhabitants.

HEMSBY, a. parish in the western division of the
hundred of Frirce, county of Nowrrork, 44 miles
(N.N.W.) from Caistor, containing 498 itants.

- The living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry

and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
£4, 6. 8. John T. Hales, Esq. was patron in 1805.
The church is dedicated to St. Mary.

HEMSWELL, a parish in the western division of

the wapentake of AsLacog, parts of LinpsEy, county.

of LincoLn, 74 miles (E.) from Gainsborough, con-
taining 271 inhabitants. The living, which was for-
merly a rectory, rated in the king's books at £27. 13. 4.,
is now a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of Stow,
and diocese of Lincoln, endowed with £400 royal bounty,
and’ in the patronage of the Mayor and Corporation
of Lincoln, = The church is dedicated to All Saints.
There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.
In this parish is the hamlet of Spittal, which derives
its name from an ancient hospital, founded for poor
widows prior to the 16th of Edward II., which is
under the patronage of the Dean and Chapter of Lin-
coln: attached to it is a small chapel. A sessions-
. was built in 1620, by Chief Justice Wray. A fair
is held annually. in the hamlet on the 22nd of No-
vember,
'HEMSWORTH, a parish in the wapentake of StaIn-
CROSS, riding of the county of York, 61 miles
8.5.W. Pontefract, containing 963 inhabitants.
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of York, rated in the king's books at £20. 1. 0§. W.
Wrightson, Esq, was patron in 1790. The church, de-
dicated to St. Helen, is principally in the later style of
English architecture, with decorated windows at the
east end. There is a place of ‘orship for Wesleyan
Methodists. A free grammar school was founded about
1548, by Robert Holgate, Archbishop of York, under let-
ters patent of Henry VIII. In the reign of Edward VI,
same (ichbinh:%conﬁrmed the foundation and or-
linances to John Thurlston, then master, and his suc-
cessors ; the annual income is about £300, which is
‘received by the present master, who dﬁ‘ not
ny duty for it : about sixty scholars are instructed
ngli %yﬁmuher. on In 1818,

ffin, Esq. begueathed &£ 50, dnd Mr. Trant

Hoﬁ Sunday achol:ll . the dividends
per cent. consols. are applied ac-
on of the benefactors. 4,

in the hundred of Hrmvocs,

from Wellington, con-
')' living ila:tectaryo:»i‘n
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g school was endowed by Mrs, Waldron, in 1749, for

teaching five poor children to read. At the northern
extremity of the parish is a large cairn, called Simon's

i i
HENBURY, a joint township with Pexall, in the
parish of Prestsury, hundred of MaccLEsFIELD,
county palatine of Carsrer, 2} miles (W,) from Mae-
clesfield, containing, with Pexall, 428 inhabitants,
HENBURY, a parish comprising the tythings of
King's Weston and Lawrence-Weston, in the lower divi-
sion of the hundred of BerkeLey, the joint chapelry of
Redwick with Northwick, the township of Henbury, and
the tything of Stowick, in the lower division, and the
chapelry of Aust, and the tythings of Charlton and
Compton, in the upper division, of the hundred of Hex-
BURY, county of GLovcEsTER, and containing 2283 in-
hiabitants, of which number, 431 are in the township of
Henbury, 4} miles (N.N.W.) from Bristol. The name
is derived from the Saxon Hean, or Hen, old, and burie,
a fortified place. The living is a discharged vicarage,
in the peculiar jurisdiction of the Consistory Court
of the Bishop of Bristol, rated in the king's books
at £30, and in the patronage of Viscount Middleton,
Sir John Smyth, Bart., Edward Francis Colston, Esq.,
and the Rev. Charles Gore. The church, dedicated to
St. Mary, is a spacious and handsome edifice, in the
early style of English architecture, with decorated and
later insertions: the church-yard is surrounded with
ivy-mantled walls and enlivened with numerous ever-
greens. A free school, or hospital, was founded in 1628,
by Mr. Anthony Edmonds, and endowed by him with the
proceeds of certain lands, for the instruction of all children
born within the parishes of Henbury, Westbury upon
Trym, Hafield, Redwick, Northwick, and Aust, in this
county ; the annual income, augmented in 1736 by a
bequest from Christopher Cole, Esq., is about £320:
there is appropriate accommodation for the master and
usher, with garden and play-ground. The object of this
charity has been suspended since 1815, in consequence
of great injury done to the property from an inun-
dation of the Severn. In 1756, Robert Sandford be-
queathed £1500, the proceeds to be employed in instruct-
ing poor children in reading and writing : forty children
are educated on this charity, and the present income is
£55 per annum. Here are the remains of an old cha
pel, dedicated to St. Blazius, a Spanish martyr, near
which is a castellated summer-house, called Blaize castle,
whence there is a most delightful prospect ; and on the
hill on which it stands is an ancient encampment, with
triple ramparts and two deep ditches, having two en-
trances at the opposite angles, on the line of the ancient
“Fosse-way : " this work is usually ascribed to the Bri-
tous, but the discovery of Roman coins and other relics
evinces its occupation by that people. The Roman Tra-
Jectus Sabrine is usually placed at Aust in this
The Severn is navigable on the west, and the Avon on
the south-west, the two rivers joining at the Swash,
HENDERSKELF, a ¢ in the parish and wa-
V““"’ of Burwmer, North riding of the county of
ORK, :% miles (W.8.W.) from New Malton, containing




H'EIN!

terbury, to Westminster abbey, the abbots having had
a palace here; the remains of which have been converted
into a private mansion. The village is pleasantly situ-
ated on an eminence, in a small vale watered by the river
Brent, over which is an ancient bridge of stone; the
houses are irregularly built : - in the neighbourhood are
many handsome villas, and the environs are pleasant,
abounding with rural walks and scenery. A
court leet for the manor is held on the Tuesday before
‘Whitsuntide, and a court baron occasionally. Hendon
is  within the jurisdiction of a court of requests for
the recovery of debts under 40s., held during the summer
half-yearat Brentford,and during the winter at Uxbridge.
The living is a vicarage, in the jurisdiction of the Commis-
sary of London, concurrently with the Consistorial Court
of the Bishop, rated in the king's books at £15. The
Rev. C. L. Edridge was patron in 1812. The church,
dedicated to St. Mary, is a spacious structure in the de-
corated style of English architecture, with some small
remains in the Norman style, and a square embattled
tower : the nave is separated from the aisles by octan-
gular ' pillars and sharply-pointed arches ; the altar-
piece is finely sculptured, and the east window is em-
bellished 'with a well-executed painting of the last
Supper, and other subjects ; the interior contains several
ancient monuments and a Norman font. A new church
is mow being erected on Mill Hill, in the later style of
English architecture, at the expense of William Wilber-
force, Esq. There are places of worship for Indepen-
dents and Wesleyan Methodists. A school-room for
Boys was erected by John Bennet, Esq., on a piece of
land given by Mr. David Garrick, the celebrated actor,
then lord of the manor : there are fifty-three boys in
this school, which is conducted on the National plan,
and supported by subscription. A National school is
also supported by subscription, in which fifty-one girls
are instructed, forty-one of them being also clothed.
John Cross, Esq‘ bequeathed £250 Bank annuities,
for o four boys and four girls. Robert Daniels,
Esq., of London, in 1681, bequeathed £2000 for the
1 and endowment of an almshouse for six
a‘gﬁ@knen'and four women ; with this sum, which
had BeR Swithe ‘hands -of his executors to ne-
wmﬂm for ten years, one hundred and thirty-two
acres of MM been purchased : six almshouses were
also crected in 1696, by Thomas Nichol, who endowed
them for aged persons, each receiving four shillings per
week. At Mill Hill is the Protestant Dissenters’ gram-

mar school : it was founded in 1807, and is under thé '

direction of a chaplain, a head master, two assistant
classical masters, and masters in the various depart-
ments of a hbenl education, superintended by a com
mittee : the buildings were erected on the site of the resi-
dence of Peter Collinson, Esq., an eminen ‘
omphtedutnncxpm;eofﬁﬂs,ﬂﬂo n
lm;::onmwhichthe celebrated Lord
resi
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thor; Dr. James Parsons, anatomist and :
Sir Joseph Ayloffe, Vice-President of thﬁ\m&é
ciety; and othereéminent persons, havesbeen interred here:
HENDRED (EAST), a parish in the hundred of

WaANTAGE, county of Berks, 45 miles (E. by N.) from -

Wantage, containing

Sallsbury, rated in the king's books at £16. 5. 24., and
in the patronage of the Bishop of Salisbury. 'Thahmeh,
dedicated to St. Augustine, contains a tomb to the me-
mory of Archbishop Chicheley, formerly rector of the
parish. Here is a place of worship for Roman Catho~
lics, which formerly belonged to the chantry of | St.
Amand. A fair is held on the 11th of October. A
branch of the river Isis flows through the parish.
The stewardship of this manor is one of the nominal
offices given for the purpose of vacating a seat in the
House of Commons, Part of an ancient chapel belong-
ing to the monks of Sheen has been converted intoa
dove-cote. Here are vestiges of a Roman road and &
barrow. f

HENDRED (WEST), a parish in the hundred of
WanTAGE, county of Berks, 34 miles (E.) from Wan-
tage, containing 319 inhabitants. The living is a vicar-
age, in the archdeaconry of Berks, and diocese of Salis-
bury, rated in the king's books at £8. 19. 94., and in
the patronage of the President and Fellows of Corpus
Christi College, Oxford. The church is dedicated to
the Holy Trinity.

HENFIELD, a parish in the hundred of Tumom
rape of BRaAMBER, county of Sussex, 53 miles (N.E.
by N.) from Steyning, containing 1404 ‘mhabitants.
The living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Lewes;
and diocese of Chichester, rated in the king's books at
£16, and in the patronage of the Bishop of Chichester.
The church, which is dmd to St. Peter, is in the
later style of English architécture. The nnvigable nvd'
Adur flows on the west of the parish.

HENGRAVE, a parish in the hundred of Tﬁmﬂel,
county of Sum-'o:.x,simﬂes (N.N.W.) from Bury-St.Ed-
mund’s, containing 168 inhabitants. The livingis a rec-
tory, united to that of Flempton, in the archdeaconry of
Sudbury, and diocese of Norwich, rated tha king's
books at £9. 7. 1. The navigable
through this parish, and is cre
grave hall is a fine specimen of {
thre of the time of HenryVIII | in g
vation, : L T PO A TR

HENHAM, a parish - oode!o'

Pledgon,mtiehundredof MM‘h
the hundred of UrrLe Cdm
(N.N.E.) from Stansted-Mo

inhabitants. The liviq h s
Commissary of

tion of the : »
rf;ltly with thew Court "

ndon, rated in MW 517,
of Mr. "Mmr

863 inhabitants. The livingis a -
rectory, in the nrchdeuconry of Berks, and diocese of
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um a township in-the parish of Acrow, tronage of the householders in the parish. The church,
hundred of NaANTWICH, county -of Curster, 1§  dedicated to St. John the Baptist, is a small but ele-
mile (N. W.«by W.), from Nantwich, 90 inha- gant structure in the later style of English architee-

bitants. 'I'ha#Nmtmeh bunel\ of the Chester canal ture, with a square embattled tower; the porch at
'mhﬂncmity west entrance is a highly enriched and beautifal spe-
' HENLEY, a parish h the hnndmed of Bosmure and cimen of the later period of that style : the old roof, of
Gmnolt, county of SurroLk, 5 miles (N.) from Ips- ribbed and carved oak, is still preserved in the chancel ;
wich, containing 241 inhabitants. The living is a and throughout the whole of the building the traces of
discharged vicarage, in' the archdeaconry of Suffolk, a pure and elegant design are discernible. There is a
and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at place of worship for Baptists. A charity school was
£10. 0. 10.,and in the patronage of the Dean and Chap- founded by the corporation, to whom George Wlutcley,
ter of Norwich, The church is dedicated to St. Peter.  Esq., in the 28th of Elizabeth, gave a messuage in trust
HENLEY  (COLD), a chapelry in the parish of for that purpose, and it is supported by the appropri-
WaircaurcH, hundred of Evinear, Kingsclere division ation of part of the charitable funds at their disposal,
of the county of SourmAmproN, 3% miles (N. by E.) ansmg from various benefactions: there are thirty boys

2 5

from Whitchurch, with which the population is re-
turned.
HENLEY in ARDEN, a market town and chapel-

in the school. A Sunday school, in which from exghty
to one hundred children of both sexes are instructed, is
supported by subscription. About a quarter of a mile

ry in the parish of Woorron-Waven, Henley division to the east of the town, on the summit of a bold and
of the hundred of BArLicEWAY, county of WArwick, lofty eminence, called, from its beautiful situation, Bel
10 miles (W. by N.) from Warwick, and 101 (N.W. Desert, or Beau Desert, is the site of a castle, which was
by w.) from London, on the road through Oxford erected prior to the reign of Stephen, and demolished
to Birmingham, containing 1249 inhabitants. This during the war between the houses of York and Lan-
town takes the adjunct, by which it is distinguished caster; the site of the draw-bridge and some other
from other places of the same name, from its sitnation parts may be traced, and there are faint vestiges of the
in the Forest of Arden, a large tract of woodland ex- ancient moat, but no remains of the building. At the
tending over part of Warwickshire and the adjoining base of the castle hill, the parish church of Beaudesert, a

counties. A considerable part of it was burnt at the bat-
tle of Evesham,in the reign of Henry IIL., from which
injury, however, it had recovered in that of Edward I.
Henry VL., in the 27th of his reign, granted to Sir Ralph
Ma, Kant., lord of the manor, a charter reciting and

previous charters, by which it had view
of , & market, and other privileges, that mo-
narch adding the power to hold courts of pleas of the
crown and common pleas, exemption from tolls, and
from the n of the Sheriff for the county, with
the right to the chattels of all tenants of the manor

e spacious street extendmg for more
he turnpike road ; the houses are in
Ml built, but of ancient appearance,
psed with handsome modern build-

innthb -f“"‘
from pumps and wells. The only articles of manufac-
ture are nails; needles, and fish-hooks, which afford oc-
cupation to not than fifty persons. The mar
* is on Monday ; the fairs are on the Tuesday in Whit-
anhu-efur October 20th, a large fair
.hm;mdunch%th for cattle and sheep. The
use is & building of stone, supported on
3 a “ a handsome ancient eross, of which
1af mf*mm,ﬂm&omupdendnd
‘\ ‘.n.d-hampyatthemmmlt By charter
 government is vested in a high and

'ltthccou'tleetofthelordof

are amply supplied with water mg 3509 inhabitants. This

small but beautiful edifice, partly in the Norman,and part-
ly in the early English, style of architecture. About two
miles to the north-west of the town are the Leveridge
hills, where there is a Roman encampment, intrenched
with a double moat and high ramparts of earth; and
about half a mile to the east is Henley Mount, said
to have been thrown up by Cromwell, as an exploratory
station during the parliamentary war.
HENLEY upon THAMES,
a market town and parish,
having separate jurisdiction,
locally in the hundred of 2§
Binfield, county of Oxrorp, ,:’ =/

ham, 23 miles (S.E.) from

Oxford, and 385 (W.) from 3
London, on the western bank
of the river Thames, contain-

supposed by some antiquaries to have been a town
the ancient Britons; according to others it was
the Roman station Calleta which has with greater
probability been fixed at Silchester, in H
Leland mentions the discovery of gold, silver, and

111
Earl of Cornwall, the king's mphe\v,

the 10th of
‘was

emmorbelongedtom
on whose death
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did much execution: in the following year the inhabit-
ants sustained considerable damage from the wanton
conduct of the parliamentary soldiers, who plundered
most of the houses. The town, which is remarkably
dry and healthy, is situated on a gentle ascent from the

_ western bank of the Thames, which here takes one of

its most agreeable curves: it is surrounded by hills
clothed with lofty beech woods and extensive plant-
ations, interspersed with elegant villas; as approach-
ed from London, the general appearance is striking,
and the scenery remarkably picturesque. At the en-
trance into the town is a handsome stone bridge over
the Thames, erected in 1786, at an expense of £ 10,000,
and consisting of five elliptical arches, surmounted by
a balustrade : the key-stone on each face of the central
arch is adorned with a sculptured mask, from the
chisel of the Hon. Mrs. Damer; that towards the
north represents the Genius, or presiding Deity, of the
Thames ; the mask on the reverse key-stone exhibits
the goddess Isis. The hills giving name to the Chil-
tern hundreds form a ridge extending from Henley,
along the southern part of the county of Buckingham,
to Tring in Hertfordshire ; they were formerly so
covered with thickets as to be almost impassable, until,
byot&r of Leofstan, abbot of St. Alban's, these were
cut down, on account of the security which they afforded
to robbers. The popular appellation is derived from
the Saxon words, cealt, cylt, or chilt, signifying chalk,
of which substance they are principally composed.
The nominal office of steward of the Chiltern hun-
dreds under the crown, by the acceptance of which
members of parliament vacate their seats, is derived
from these hills. Henley consists of four principal
streets, well paved and lighted ; at the intersection is a
plain stone cross and conduit: the houses, although
irregular, are spacious and well built, and some of them
handsome. A considerable trade in malt was formeriy
carried on here: every facility of water carriage to
London is afforded by the Thames; and it is stated that
go far back as the reign of Anne, there had been
soli as much as three hundred cart loads of malt,
and various kinds of grain, at the weekly markets: at
this period it enjoyed also the manufacture of glass, in
the com jon of which, a black flint, and a kind of
sand which formed part of the soil, essentially con-
tributed. There is a silk-mill on a small scale; and
near the town is a paper-mill. The market is on |
Thursday, for corn (which is pitched), seeds, &e.:
fairs are on March 7th, for horses and cattle; Hely
Thursday, for sheep; the Thursday in Tripity-week,
and the Tharsday after September 2lst, the Jo of
whkt/n amtutefair This town wu-

~and in 1774 thul
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the senior for the year ensuing: these offices
ing to ancient custom, are always the chu

the parish, and each continues in oﬁeeiw twmgn.
sive years. ~All the rents received by them on account
of the various charities are called “Bridge Rents,” ud
the book in which they are entered, “ The Bri e Book,”
from the ancient title of the officers who them,
The town-hall, erected by the late Mr. W. Bradshaw, a
member of the corporation, in 1796, stands on an
elevation in the High-street, and is supported by sixteen
Doric columns ; it contains a hall and a council-chamber,
and on the basement are rooms used on public occasions,
and a gaol.

The living is a rcctory, in the archdeaconry md
diocese of Oxford, rated in the king’s books at £21. 1. 8.,
and in the patronage of the Bishop of Rochester. The
church, dedicated to St. Mary, is a spacious and hand-
some structure, chiefly in the decorated and later
English styles ; in the walls are some portions of che-
quered work in flint and chalk : it has a fine tower,
erected at the expense of Cardinal Wolsey, and some
good tracery in the east window of the chancel., The
present north aisle appears to have formerly constituted
the body of the church ; in the north part of the chancel
are indications of the original altar, with two canopied
niches, in one of which is a recess, formerly used for
the eucharist. A large sepulchral chapel, or chantry,
founded by the family of Elmes, was, in 1820, converted
into a vestry-room and library, and epntains many
valuable works in Greek, Latin, Hebrew, and the orien-
tal languages, with various historical publications; [the
liberal bequest of Dean Aldrich, rector of Henley, who
died in 1737, and ge this library all the inhabitants
who pay church rates have free access,being likewise
permitted, on certain conditions specified by the donor,
to take away the books for perusal. 1In the chancel is a
handsome monument, with a recumbent efligy of Lady
Elizabeth Periam, the benefactress to Balliol G
Oxford : there are also monuments to Dr. Cawley, father
of Lady Kneller, who died in 1709, and to Mr.

Hayward, of Shrewsbury, the architect of Henley bridge:

in a vault on the south side are the ulnﬂpf
General Dumouriez, so celebrlhd in the
istory of France. Richard , the “‘M

uilder of St. Paul's Cathedral,” !lhluiied ‘at Badge-
more, near this town, lies interred in the church-yard,
for Bupehets, fhe Soc “°""%’;..‘:ﬂ" e ——
or Ba; the Society of
grammar school was founded, W&, and

enl(llowgi with the :ﬂroeeedl of c ‘and
other p 5 d :
o e R

faction, from William Gravett, in 1664. “A Blue.coat
school, for  clothing, and
. boys, was founded,
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y endowed with prope:t:i
producing £54 per annum ; and there is a Natio
school, supported by volun’tary contributions, and at

present ining one hundred and eighty boys and
one hundred girls. An almshouse for five poor men,
and an adjoining house for three poor women, who
receive a weekly allowance of three shillings each, were
founded and endowed by John Longland, Bishop of Lin-
coln, in 1547, and are under the management of the cor-
poration. There are ten almshouses for poor persons,
founded and endowed with a bequest by Humphrey

Newbury, in 1664 ; and four for poor widows, founded
in 1748, by Mrs. Ann Messenger ; and numerous other
«charities are at the disposal of the bridgemen, and the
mayor and corporation. A savings-bank was establish-
ed in 1817.

' HENLLIS, a parish in the upper division of the
hundred of WENTLLOOG, county of MoNmMoUTH, 33 miles
(N.W. by W.) from Newport, containing 209 inhabit-
ants. The living is-a perpetual curacy, in the arch-
‘deaconry and diocese of Llandaff, endowed with £600
royal bounty, and £200 parliamentary grant, and in
the patronage of the Vicar of Bassaleg. The church is
~dedicated to St. Peter.

.~ HENLOW, a parish in the hundred of Crirron,
county of Beprord, 4% miles (8. by W.) from Biggles-
wade, containing 688 inhabitants. The living is a

_in the archdeaconry of Bedford, and diocese

HENNOCK, a parish in the hundred of TerNo-
BRIDGE, county of Devoy, 8 miles (W. N. W.) from
Chudleigh, containing 678 inhabitants. ':_'1'11? living is (x;
‘discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Totness, an
‘diocese of Exeter, rated in the king's books at £16.
Francis Garratt, Esq. was patron in 1828. There i a

- place of worship Wesleyan Methodists. In the
“parish register is following entry : “The eleventh
day of October, the yeare of our Lord God, 1537,‘;5:

~ ‘borne Prince Edwarde, which was the 29th yeare of

~ ‘Lord, King Henry VIIL &c. God send him

~ good , and his father a long and prosperous

ft‘*#»i@." : ng:c l:ndpot.ters
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is dedicated to St. ool
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The navigable river Stour runs on the east of this

. HENNY (LITTLE), a parish in the hundred of
Hinckrorp, county of Essex, 24 miles (S.) from Sud-
bury, containing 59 inhabitants. The living is a rectory,
united with that of Great Henny, in the archdeaco

of Middlesex, and diocese of London. The chureh
demolished.

HENSALL, a township in that part of the parish
of Snarru which is in the lower division of the wa-
pentake of OscoLpcross, West riding of the county of
Yorx, 3% miles (W. by N.) from Snaith, containing 233
inhabitants.

HENSHAW, a township in the parish of Havx-
wHIsTLE, western division of TiNpALE ward, county
of NORTHUMBERLAND, 11 miles (W.) from Hexham,
containing 593 inhabitants,

HENSINGHAM, a chapelry in the parish of Sr.
Bres, ALLerpaLE ward above Darwent, county of Cum-
BERLAND,. 1 mile (8. E.) from Whitehaven, containing
860 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in
the archdeaconry of Richmond, and diocese of Ches-
ter, and in the patronage of the Earl of Lonsdale. The
village, occupying an elevated site, commands an in-
teresting view of the town and harbour of Whitehaven :
there are some neat villas in the neighbourhood. A
school is supported by subscription. There is a manu-
factory for thread and check ; and at Overend a 1frge
quantity of limestone is obtained and burnt. Arch-
bishop Grindal was born here in 1519, and died in 1583.

HENSINGTON, a hamlet in the parish of BLapon,
hundred of Woorron, county of Oxrorp, 4 of a mile
(E.) from Woodstock, containing 130 inhabitants.

HENSTEAD, a parish comprising the hamlet of
Hulverstreet, in the hundred of Waxerorp, but
chiefly in the hundred of Bryruing, county of Sur-
FOLK, 53 miles (8. E. by E.) from Beccles, contain-
ing 509 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the
archdeaconry of Suffolk, and diocese of Norwich, rated
in the king's books at £12. Robert Sparrow, Esq. was
patron in 1811. The church is dedicated to St. Mary.

HENSTRIDGE, a parish in the hundred of Horg-
THORNE, county of SomerseT, 64 miles (S. by E.) from
Wincanton, containing 911 inhabitants, The living is
a vicarage, rated in the king's books at £13. gf 23.,

the
Prebendary of Henstridge in the Cathedral Church of
Wells. The church is dedicated to St. Nicholas, Here
was an Alien priory, a cell to the Benedictine monastery
of St. Sever, in Normandy, founded in the eleventh
‘century, by Hugh Lupus, Earl of Chester.
LAND, a parish in the lower division of

the hundeed of WormELOW, county of Hererorp, 44
miles (N.W. by W.) from Ross, containing 577 inha-
bitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, annexed to

the vicarage of Lugwardine, in the archdeaconry and
The chapel is dedicated to St.

omi ‘The population is returned with diocese of Herefo
p of Broadward. . Dubritius. iR
Y (GREAT), a parish in the hundred of ° . HENTON, a liberty in the parish of Cruinxor, hun-

dred of Lewknor, county of Oxrorp, 4% miles (8. E.
containing 232 inhabi :
a ip in the parish of Rorusury,

ward, county of
NORTHUMBERLAND, 55 miles (W.by8.) from Rothbury,
containing 111 inhabitants. ,L‘"i ‘
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HEPPLE-DEMESNE, a township in the parish of
RorasuRry, western division of CoQueTpaLr ward,
county of NORTHUMBERLAND, containing, with White-
field House, 45 inhabitants.

HEPSCOT, a township in that part of the parilh
of MorpeTH which is in the eastern division of CasTLE
ward, county of NORTHUMBERLAND, 2} miles (S.E.)
from Morpeth, containing 164 inhabitants.

HEPTONSTALL, a chapelry in the parish of Hari-

rax wapentake of Morrey, West riding of the county

of Yorxk, 8% miles (W. by N.) from Halifax, containing
4543 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in
the archdeaconry and diocese of York, endowed with
£800 private benefaction, £600 royal bounty, and
£ 1700 parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of the
Vicar of Halifax, The chapel, dedicated to St. Thomas a
Becket, has recently been erected, and contains one
thousand and thirty-one sittings, of which seven hun-
dred and thirty-three are free, and towards defraying the
expense of which the Incorporated Society for enlarging
churches contributed £1000. A grammar school was
founded and endowed in 1642, by the Rev. Charles
Greenwood, the income of which is about £77 per an-
num ; from sixty to seventy children are instructed on
moderate terms, seventeen of whom are taught the clas-
sics gratultously the usher receives £5. 11. 4. per an-
nug, bequeathed by Abraham Wall in 1638, for teach-
ing poor children to read and write. Here are extensive
cotton manufactories.

HEPWORTH, a parish in the hundred of Brack-
BOURN, county of SurroLk, 4% miles (W. by 8.) from
Botesdale, containing 523 inhabitants. The living is
a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry of Sudbury,
and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
£138. 17. 81., and in the patronage of the Provost and
Fellows of King's College, Cambridge. The church is
dedicated to St. Peter.

HEPWORTH, a township in the parish of Kirk-
BurTon, upper division of the wapentake of AcsriGe,
West riding of the county of York, 7§ miles (8. by E. )
from Huddersfield, containing 1048 inhabitants. Here
is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.

HEREFORD, an ancient
city, having separate juris-
diction, locally in the hun-
dred of Grimsworth, county
of Herevorp, of which it
¢y 18 the chief town, 135 miles

(W. N. W.) from London,
(|ts containing, exclusively of the

Po) — townships of Lower Bulling-
,L/ : f, ham and Grafton, which are
Y AN 30 in the hundred of Webtree,
9090 inhabitants. 'l!hll place

the  fidelity o the
- mamwﬂwm
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field, which then included the whole

At a synod held here by Theodore, Archbi mu
terbury, in 673, the division of the diocese am
was decreed, to which Wilford, then bishop
refused assent, and was sublequently d:g::nd
of his diocese for contumacy ; but with t of
Sexulph, his successor, Hereford was disunited from
Lichfield, and restored to its original independence as a
distinct diocese, and Putta, who ‘previously held the see
of Rochester, was made bishop in 680. It was the ca-
pital of the kingdom of Mercia, and possessed a large
church in the relgn of Offa, who, it is stated, founded
the cathedral in expiation of the murder of Ethelbert

King of the East Angles, whose body was mmoved ;

hither from its original place of sepulture in 782. In
the reign of Athelstan the city occupied an area of
eighteen hundred yards in circuit, and, with the ex:
ception of an extent of five hundred and fifty yards
guarded by the river, which formed a natural barrier,
was surrounded with walls sixteen feet in height, in
which were six gates and fifteen embattled towers
thirty-four feet high : to these fortifications, which were
nearly perfect in Leland's time, a castle was added by
Edward the Elder. About 1055, a battle was fo
two miles from this place between Ralph Earl of Hm.
ford, and Griffith, Prince of Wales, in which the former
was defeated ; and the Welch, having taken the cityy
massacred the inhabitants, and reduced it to a heap of
ruins, Harold, afterwards king, marched against the
Welch, whom hé attacked and defeated with
slaughter : he then repaired the fortifications and en-
larged the castle, to secure the city against the future
inroads of the invaders. From the earliest period the
citizens have enjoyed a high reputation for loyalty, and
Hereford has in co me the scene of many
sanguinary conflicts it held out success-
fully against the first hen, who was op-

posed by Milo, son o . s
for which service the latte¥ was made Earl of Hereford,
by the Empress Maud, in 1141 : the patent, which is_
still was the first ever granted for the creation
of an’ in the same year Stephen, ha again
laid si o the city, reduced it, and divested Milo of
his recent honours The great council ofﬂwmdﬂ
assembled here t¢ decide on the n of Ed-
ward II.; and here likewise H le Despencer, the
Hap) o A rpal s Shree -aeh e A

the commencement of the parliamentary war, m
was garrisoned for the king, but on the “of an
army under William Waller, iaAp'ilM'-itm
surrendered without opposition: on the m Te-

royalists, who, under the

treat of Waller, it t' of

timately taken b wmm Me'.f .
nigntled, and ﬂn’ : mbymﬁﬂdﬁ
parliament. . 1 ,the

ceived from emnumm ‘with
privileges, also m
cause,
‘The city occupies a gentle eminence
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airy ; and,
iﬁelnu and: pungu are well hghtedthhg\\s,
ﬂw under the provisions of an act of parliament :
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years considerable improvements have been made in the
gamnhppe-nneeafthephce A bridge of six arches

was erected over the river Wye, about the end of the
M century, replacing a wooden bridge built in
the reign of Henry I. The Hereford reading society
was established in 1796 ; and, in 1815, a permanent li-
brary, containing a valuable collection of ancient and
modern works, was instituted by the late Benjamin Fal-
lows, Esq.: it is under the direction of a president,
treasurer, librarian, and a committee ; the subscription
is 80s. per annum, and the number of members about
one hundred and thirty. An agricultural society was
established in 1797, and a horticultural society in 1826.
The theatre, a commodious edifice in Broad-street, was
erected about 1789. Races are held in August, when a
gold cup, three plates of £50 each, and sweepstakes,

- ‘are yun for: the course comprises a circuit of two
" miles. Assemblies commence in October, and are held

ﬁﬂly once a month during the winter season.
'he triennial music meetings of the choirs of Here-
ford, Worcester, and Gloucester, established in 1724,
take place here during three days in September ; ora-
torios are performed in the morning at the cathedral,
the evening miscellaneous concerts and balls

at the county hall ; the receipts, after payment
w are ap rmted to the benefit of the
and , clergy. A bow-

5.8
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on.
' facility of communication,
Herefon’l; has never attained eminence in trade or manu-
factures : the principal articles of commerce are gloves
of the best kinds, which are made in less quantities than
; cider and hops, the latter ofwh:chueexten-
sively cultivazed in the vicinity ; and oak
a considerable quantity of timber and bark is ar \m.lly
sent to Chepstow, and shipped thence for Ireland, and
the different ports and yards for shii-building in Eng-
Salmon of excellent quality are cmgl}t in the
river Wye, but not in so great abundance as formerl
'M»hcre, as elsewhere, a condition was msertedzl

§

E

apprentices that they should not

of
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materially increased, and the price - dimin-
ished : it is under the direction of three different com-
panies, and is called the Llanfihangel, Grosmont, and
Hereford tram-road. In 1668, the late Lord Scads:
more left £400 to be lent without interest, in order to
establish a woollen maunufactory ; but not being applied
for, it was put out to interest, and, in 1772, £500 was
expended in an attempt to instruct a portion of the
poorer class in spinning wool, which however failed :
the remainder of this bequest "has increased to £3000
three per cents. ; a portion of this trust money is occa-
sionally lent to manufacturers of woollen cloth, flannel
goods &ec., for a limited time, without interest, for find-
ing employment for the poor inhabitants, especially
women and children. The markets are on Wednesday,
Friday, and Saturday ; and fairs are held on the Tues-
day after Candlemas-day; on the Wednesday in Easter
week, for cattle and sheep ; May 19th; July 1st, for
wool : October 20th is a great fair for cattle and hops :
at the May fair, granted by Henry 1. to Bishop Richard,
soon after 1120, and commonly known as the “nine
days' fair,” the bishop's bailiff, or bailiff of the manor
called the Barton, or the Bishop's fee, has considerable
power, but does not exercise magisterial authority. As
lords of this fee the bishops formerly exercised con-
siderable authority in the city ; they administered jus-
tice within its limits, and had a prison within the walls
of their palace; they also held courts baron, leet, and
pie-powder, but most of these privileges have become
obsolete. In 1816, an act of parliament was passed for
forming a market-place, and effecting other improve-
ments, which contained a clause providing accommo-
dation for slaughtering cattle ; and, in 1822, fourteen
slaughter-houses were erected, on the site of part of the
old city wall, northward of the market-place ; the fish-
market is well supplied with sea fish from Wales and
Bristol.

The city was first incor-
porated by charter of Ri-
chard 1., dated at Westmin-
ster in 1189, and has since
that period received twenty-
four confirmatory charters
from successive monarchs,
under the last of which, the
government was vested in a
mayor, high steward, deputy
steward (who performs the
duty of recorder), two cham-

Oorponte Seal.
berlains, six aldermen, and twenty-four chief citizens,
assisted by a town clerk, coroner, sword bearer, and
four serjeants at mace, and other officers, . The mayor
is annually chosen from the body corporate, the mem-
- bers of which usually succeed by rotation, on the first

in August, and is sworn into office on the first

'umuhy: after the festival of St. Michael. The

steward, who is generally a nobleman, holding them
for life, appoints a deputy lgarned in the law: the cham-
berlains and the coroner gre appointed by the corpora-
tion. The mayor (who is keeper of the city gaol and

clakofthemu,whichomeuh ‘execute by
deputy thchzemym-(who as for the
his myonlm. the deputy

steward and the six
withmthemtymd
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is inherited by the eldest sons of fréemeny lﬂ;n.h'e"‘w

servitude within the city, marriage with a freeman’s

widow, and with the eldest daughter of a freeman; pro-

vided he has no male issue, by gift of the corporation,
or by purchase, the usual fee being £33."11.9. The
corporation hold quarterly courts of session, and meet-
ings daily at the guildhall, for determining on affairs of
police ; and a court of record on the Monday and Thurs-
day in every week, for the recovery of debts to any
amount, under the charter of James I., confirmed by
William I1I. The county assizes are held here, likewise
the petty sessions for the hundred of Grimsworth every
Saturday ; and, under certain restrictions, those of Oyer
and Terminer for the whole of South Wales. The old
town and shire-hall, erected in the reign of James 1., is
a large edifice of timber and brick, supported on twenty-
seven pillars of solid oak : it formerly contained an
upper story, in which were chambers for the fourteen dif-
erent trading companies of the city, but has been much
reduced in height and beauty, and, though formerly ap-
propriated, by consent of the corporation, as proprietors
of it, to the courts of assize, session, and public meetings
for the county, was surrendered to that body in 1817.
The m shire-hall was erccted by act of parliament
passed in the 55th of George II1., authorising a sum not
exceeding £ 30,000 to be raised, for the purpose of build-
ing courts of justice, county hall, &c., together with a
depOt for arms and military clothing, including the pur-
chase of an appropriate site; also a further sum of
£3150, to purchase a house for the accommodation of
the judges. This edifice has been completed from a de-
sign by Mr. Smirke : the portico in front is a fine spe-
cimen of Grecian Doric architecture, copied from the
Temple of Theseus at Athens: a subterraneous passage,
through which prisoners are brought to the bar, leads to
the Crown court, from an apartment beneath the grand
jury room, in which they are kept during the trials : the
hall is decorated with portraits of George 1[I and the
late Duke of Norfolk, and here the quarter sessions,
county meetings, and the triennial musical festivals, are
held. The city gaol is an ancient building, the original
‘part containing seven cells for felons, and three sleeping-
rooms for debtors ; to which an addition has recent
been made, comprising four cells for males, and three
for females, with spacious airing-yards. The county
gaol was erected in 1798, upon Mr. Howard’s plan, and
occupies the site of St. Guthlac's priory, at the foot of
‘Aylestone hill, being enclosed by a brick wall: the en-
trance, over vbich is the place of execution,is orna-
mented with Tuscan pillars : the prison contains appro-
‘priate for the claselﬂcnuon of prisoners of

sists of a bishop, dean, two
) Db @ archdms,nxmreﬁ-
Arms of the Bishoprick. dentiary (of whom the dean
is one), a precentor, chancellor, treasurer, twenty-eight =
prebendaries, twelve priests-vicars, one of whom is cus-
tos, four lay clerks, eight choristers, a head and under’
master of the grammar school, an organist, and other
officers. The cathedral, originally erected in expiation of
the murder of Ethelbert, and dedicated to St. Mary md

St. Ethelbert, was built by Melfrid, a viceroy under

bert, about 825, principally by means of the propltiaﬁlg

gxfts of Offa, but having fallen into decay in less than

two centuries, it was rebuilt during the prelacy of Bishop
Athelstan, or Ethelstan, between 1012 and 1015 ; it

was subsequently destroyed by fire, and lay in rains till «
1079, when Bishop Robert de Lezinga, appointed to this - fr‘ :
see by William the Conqueror, commenced a new edis

fice, erected on the model of the church of Aken, nq'ﬁw g
Aix la Chapelle, which was completed by Bishop Ray-
nelm in 1107, with the exception of the tower, that
having been built by Bishop Giles de Braos insthe
following century. It is a noble cruciform structure, -
with a lofty tower rising from the intersection, formerly
surmounted by a spire, which has been taken down,

The tower at the west end fell down in 1 :

time the west t wag. 1t

the original,

and arches, above which are tlww

rium ry, which were ‘altered at the time of
its' repaired. "The north transept is a rich speci-
men of the early E , with &

large windows in the de-

style: the bishop’s 'throne nd thruﬂh



" brary,and containing a- ollection of books: be-
e ne ﬁilﬂupelhuﬂneerypt called Golgotha, from the
© massof human boneswhich itcontained; it is supposed to

Bl hﬁghoﬁginﬂythepﬂdﬂdﬁmhof& John the

. Baptist. = There are some ‘chapels in the later
oo ostyle of architecture, built by Bishop Audley
~ ‘and other 'nlewiuh length of the interior of

. the cathedral, from east to west, is three hundred and
. twenty-five feet; of the great transept, from north to
 south, one hundred and forty feet; the height, from the
+area pavement to the vaulting, ninety-one feet, and the
“height of the central tower, two hundred and forty-four

feet, The cathedral contains monuments to the memory

of thirty-four bishops of this see: the most ancient is

‘that of Bishop Walter, who was consecrated by the Pope

in the year 1060: there is likewise a splendid monument

‘of Dr. Tyler, Bishop of Llandaff, and Dean of Hereford ;

and another of Sir Richard Pembridge, Knight of the
 Garter in the reign of Edward III.  On the east side of
o1 "ﬁw transept is a monument to the memory of Bishop
! . Cantelupe, who died in 1282 ; his heart was brought to
"':é}f ,and buried in the cathedral and he was ca-
o ~noniaed m 1310; itiis curiously adorned with a number
of effigies, but isnmow somewhat mutilated : this tomb

7 was a place of resort and reputed miraculous efficacy to

. pilgrims from all parts of Europe, no less than four hun-

. dred and twenty-five miracles having, according to monk-
T iﬁl story, bem performed here: in conmsequence, the
b of this-diocese relinquished their
éh were those of St. Ethelbert, in

' ernal coat of Cantelupe, which
At the north-eastern

meml in mémory of
i parlmment
svears ; and

\}.n'lym and curious structure, consisting of ty
. stories, which were severally used uehnpels, and d
d to | ” Magdalene : being

nous condition, it was taken down in 1737,
"“mm only a very small portion remains :
e chapf Jare 20w held in a building attach-

e world upon vellum, illuminated with

‘ “ters 3 in the centre is an inscription in
' Wmionofthecxtyofhmm
i Qkueofnﬁqukyiuumgnedtbthmigx

- He are preserved, in a neat frame, the
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y a grave
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n attached to thebmhopsprebendu aufylznd
of the

" in Broad-street. The college is a brick bui
time of Edward IV, forming a quadrangle eutward of
the cathedral, with which it communicates by a cloister
one hundred feet. in length, leading to the south end
of the eastern transept: this edifice contains a chapel,
a library, a spacious hall, common dining-room, and
dormitories: in 1820, several attempts were made by
sﬁome undiscovered incendiary to destroy this college by
re

The city comprises the parishes of All Saints, St.
John the Baptnst St. Martin, St. Nicholas, St. Owen,
and St. Peter, all in the peculiar jurisdiction of the Dean
of Hereford. The living of All Saints’ is a djscharged
vicarage, consolidated with that of St. Martin's, rated in
the king's books at £8. 10., and in the patronage of
the Dean and Canons of Wmdqor the church is an
ancient structure partly in the Norman style of archi-
tecture, with a tower strengthened with buttresses and
surmountéd by a lofty spire : the nave is separated from
the aisles by circular columns and pointed arches ; and
the interior contains a fine altar-piece, and some an-
cient stalls supposed to have been appropriated to the
brethren of St. Anthony, to whom this church anciently
belonged. The living of St. John the Baptist’s is a dis-
charged vicarage, rated in the king's books at £7. 12. 1.,
endowed with £200 private benefaction, and £400 royal
bounty, and in the patronage of the Dean and Chapter
of Hereford : the north transept of the cathedral was,
in 1796, appropriated as a church for this parish. The
living of St. Martin's is a discharged vicarage, united
to that of All Saints': the church, which stood on
the bank of the Wye, near the bridge, was destroyed
during the parliamentary war: it is now in contempla-
tion to restore it, through the persevering exertions of
the Rev. H. J. Symons, L.L.D., the present vicar, for
which purpose a grant has been obtained from the In-
corporated Society for building churches, &c., another
from government, of £ 1000, and a donation of £ 100 from
the Bishop of the diocese. The living of the parish of
St. Nicholas is a discharged rectory, rated in the king's
books at £ 10, endowed with £200 royal bounty, and
€400 parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of the
Crown : the church, which previously to the dissolution
had two chantries in honour of the Virgin, is an ancient
edifice with a tower. The living of St. Owen’s is a rec-
 tory, united to the vicarage of St. Peter’s, and rated in
the king's books at £4. 10. 10. : the church was destroyed
during the parliamentary war in the reign of Charles L
The living of St. Peter's is a discharged vicarage, with
the rectory of St. Owen's, rated in the king's books at
#£10. 0.2, and in the patronage of the Rev. H. Gipps:
the church, an ancient structure founded in 1070, in
the Norman style of architecture, with a tower sur-
‘mounted by a neat spire, was repaired and partly re-
built in 1793 : the nave is separated from the south
aisle by octagonal pillars, and from the north by clus-
tered colnmnl, and the chancel contains stalls
were anciently appropriated to ah: ‘brethren
Guthlac's priory ; puvmuly to ‘dissolution

wonhpfortheSoaetyof
in the late Countess of Hunti
leyan Methodists, and a Roma




ihedrs lme Stntum"by
per annuh is payable“"hm schohr in Unives
Oxford. The scholu'p d, tor 2;5' A dona and |
four founded by Dean : _ the'd lt,hdl, was the
Brasenose College, Oxf the walue pf £ 40 pef-annum rnlq)e,‘Earl, of Oxford e'lathr Harris, Ch
cach, drising from the rental of a houw ; i, ﬂnsdlocese be d £5000 towards.
creford, : ftecini 1615 ; five inSt. . the, institution, gdd the . annual submym
John's i founided Iy deed enrol 1 ‘to nearly £700 : wli:‘ph_
in the Exc 1 1682, thes % ! " i "*Pgt. car (
o Be” ch , after _expense o mgu!hz?:z‘plunudefmyedbythe g
ofthebuhop,themamkersoftheca hedral,!
theclergyof&hquy ! Theinntiwtmncomm ‘5 !

lﬁ‘d’ Wl!iwzoi)enfmv the
oxuﬁf enxs‘fqr some ‘ cars after : “it.is .
odate - seveuty pe

ate emence for the

o “eJeated altemueiy from the.
h, He fov\d dMunchéster"







HER

‘contains sixteen dwellings ; it is under the superin-
tendence of the mayor and corpar&on, who are gover-
ors. Coningsby’s hospital was founded by Sir Thomas
Cor by, Knt., in 1614 : it stands on the site of a
small building and chapel formerly belonging to the
Knights Hospitallers of St.John of Jerusalem, and con-
‘tains twelve apartments, a chapel, and a hall : the master
+is styled, according to the founder’s will, Corporal Co-
ningsby, and the ten members, servitors: the corporal
and five servitors must have performed at least three
" actual service as soldiers, and be natives of the
counties of Hereford, Worcester, or Salop ; the remain-
ing five to be old men of seven years' service in the
ranks : the allowances are £20 per annum to the chap-
lain, £1. 13.4. per month to the corporal, £1. 1. 84. per
month to each of the servitors, with a scarlet suit of
clothes and a hat every second year, and a scarlet cloak
evety third year: an excellent garden is attached to the
biilding, The vicarage of Bodenham, in this county,
with all“its appurtenances, is, by the founder's will, ap-
,, riated to the: successive chaplains. The Hampton
+ Court estate, in this county, is charged with the support
’ this hospital, and the holder of it is the governor;
€ j ‘of assize are visitors of the institution. Sy-
monds’s almshouse was founded in 1695, for four decayed
ouse , who receive 10s. per quarter each, charge-
ble on an estate at Breinton, the proprietor of which is
yatron of the charityl In addition to these are, Weaver's
tal for five poor persons, who receive £2. 13. per
seach ; and Shelley’s hospital, founded about
bbwit in 1801, for six poor widows, who re-
p annum ‘each : there are also various other
fities of @illgrent kinds. In the reign of
citizen of Hereford, gave
* the clear yearly value of
ons from the payment of
f the city. In the reign of
alderman of 1.ondon, gave the
“of twenty-four cities, of which
dant to young fremen, and a fur-
in 1821, wos 3% ive
z bequeathed £71000 to
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in the ‘nlavesof the church, without any monumental
memorial. St. Guthlac's priory, originally a college of
Prebendaries, afterwards bec:;yle a cell to ythe Benedic-
tine abbey of St. Peter, at Gloucester ; the revenue, at
the dissolution, was £121. 3. 3.: the new county gaol
and house of correction mow occupies the site. The
monastery of Black friars, the largest and most cele-
brated of all the ancient religious houses, was originally
established under the auspices of William, brother of
Bishop Cantelupe, and situated in the Portfield, in Bye-
street suburb, but afterwards removed to Widemarsh
suburb, where a new church and priory were commenced,
in the reign of Edward IL, and completed in that of
Edward II1., who, with his son, the Black Prince, two
archbishops, and ‘several bishops and nobles, were
present at the dedication : it became a flourishing insti-
tution, and many persons of distinction were interred in
the church. The only remaining vestiges of the ancient
buildings are the south side of the prior's lodgings,
some decayed offices, and a curious ancient stone pulpit,
which has been much admired. About a mile westward
from the city is the “ White Cross,” built by Dr. Lewis
Charleton, afterwards bishop of this see, about 1347,
as a market-place for the country people, during the
ravages of an infectious disorder with which the city
was at that time visited. According to tradition, re-
servoirs of vinegar were placed on each side of the
cross, for the purification of articles brought from
the city, and suspected to be infectious: the base of
the cross consists of an hexagonal flight of seven
steps ; the lower and only remaining part of the shaft
is hexagonal, six feet high, and two feet wide, exclu-
sively of a pillar between each side, in which are

many niches, with shields, and lions rampant: above is
an embattled parapet, with mouldings and base of the
upper division ; the present entire height is fifteen feet.
Hereford has given birth to several eminent persons,
amongst whom are, John Breton, L.L.D., bishop of the
diocese in the thirteenth century, who wrote a cele-
brated work called “The Laws of England ;" David
Garrick, the inimitable comedian, who was born at the
Angel Inn, Widemmh-s‘treet, in 1716, his father bear-
ing at that time a lieutenant’s commission in a regiment
of horse quartered here ; and the famous Eleanor Gwyn,
favourite of Charles II., who was born in an humble

in Pipe-lane, in this city.

- HEREFORDSHIRE, an inland county, bounded on
the north by the county of Salop, on the north-east
and east by the county of Worcester, on the south-east
by the county of Gloucester, on the south-west by
the county of Monmouth, on the west by the county
of Brecknock, and on the north-west by the county of
Radnor: it extends from 51° 53”77 to 52° 29" 437
2928’ 30” to 3° 19" 32” (W. Lon.);
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The defeat of Caractacus is thought to have taken
place in the vicinity of an eminence called Coxwall
Knoll, situated near Brampton-Bryan, and on the line
of boundary between this county and Shropshire; but
it was not until twenty years after that event, and
almost one hundred and twenty after the first Roman
invasion, that Herefordshire was finally subjugated by
Julius Frontinus: it was afterwards included in the Ro-
man province Britannia Secunda. For some time after
the establishment of the Saxon kingdom of Mercia, this
county being situated nearly on the frontier between
that kingdom and the territory still possessed by the de-
scendants of the ancient Britons, it was frequently the
scene of war and devastation, and appears to have been
alternately in the possession of théfcontending parties.
At length Offa, King of Mercia, having repulsed the
Britons in one of their invasions, crossed the river Se-
vern, which had hitherto been the boundary between
the Britons and the Saxons, and formed a new line of
demarcation by his famous dyke, called in the British
language Clawdd Offa (considerable remains of it being
still visible), by which part of the prezent county of Mon-
mouth, nearly the whole of that of Hereford, and parts
of those of Radnor and Salop, were wrested from the
Britons, and annexed to the kingdom of Mercia. Soon
after its completion, however, the Britons routed Offa’s
army on the Mercian side of this rampart, but were
finally compelled to retire beyond it. At Sutton, about
three miles north-east from Hereford, that sovereign
erected and fortified a palace, which was afterwards the
scane of his treacherous murder of Ethelbert, King of
the East-Angles. When the Danish fleet entered the
Seyern, during the administration of Ethelfleda, Countess
of Mercia, the Danes advanced along the banks of the
Wye, until they were attacked by a provincial force col-
lected from Hereford and the neighbouring places, when
they were defeated with great slaughter, those who es-
eaped being driven into Wales, and made prisoners by
the Britons. The Danes and the Britons, however, con-
tinued their occasional hostilities ; but King Edward the
Elder defeated the former, and frustrated the attempts
of the latter upon this county. In the reign of Ethelred,
the Danes again desolated this part of the country, = In
that of Edward the Confessor, the Britons ravaged the
English frontier, which had then acquired the name of
the Marches, and included a considerable part of this
county ; theéy were opposed by the garrison in the castle
of Hereford, but carried off much plunder. In this reign
also, Gryffyth, a prince of Wales, accompanied by Algar,
Earl of Chester, whom the king had banished, proceeded
into Herefordshire, and laid it waste ; they Ra-
nulph, Earl of Hereford, within two miles of the city,
which they afterwards entered, bur : ,;Whedral
and killing seven of the canons, wi :
they also put to death many p
city on fire, levelled its wallq,
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their assistance laid waste the county as far as the
bridge of Hereford. In the contest between Stephen
and Matilda, Geoffrey de Talebot and Robert, Earl of
Gloucester, who had large possessions here, declared for
the Empress. Talebot reduced and totally demolished
the castle of Weobley, which had been garrisoned for
Stephen ; the king soon afterwards invested the city ot
Hereford, but appears to have speedily raised the siege.
King John, when Prince Loml of France had hnded
with his army in England, retived to Hereford, in the
vain hope of procuring succour. ing the hostilities
of the barons against his son, Honry 111., Hereford was
selected by them as the place of rendezvous: the king
marched against them, but found this county so much
impoverished from the continual devastations it had
endured, that he was obliged to retreat to Gloucester for
want of sustenance for his troops. Humphrey de Bohun,
Earl of Hereford, being one of the confederated barons
who afterwards rose against the same sovereign, with
the Earl of Leicester at their head, Prince Edward, after
the capture of himself and his father at Lewes, was con-
ducted to Hereford, and left there in custody bythe
allied armies of Leicester and Llewellyn, Prince of
Wales ; and from that city it was that he made his
escape previously to the decisive battle of Evesham.
After the subjection of Wales to the English crown by
Edward I, the Welch still occasionally made predatory
incursions ; ; and Edward found it necessary to luue or-
ders for raising a body of infantry in Herefo! to
check this petty warfare., Isabella, Queen of Ed
advanced with an armyas far as He
suit of her unfortunate husbmd

in Carmarthenshire, was co! Ledbury in this
county. Hereford was also the a‘oeae of the exec\meg
of his favourite, Hugh le Decpmdu,Y xogether with the
Earl of Arundel and others. In the tween
Henry IV. and Owen Glyndwr, the ‘
the estate of the Earl of March amongst. , Sir
Edmund Mortimer, uncle to that nobleman, ed.ont the

retainers of the family, and gave him battle, but his

troops were routed, and himself made prisoner. At the
same time, the earl himself, who had been allowed to
return to his castle of Wigmore, and who, though yet a
boy, led his followers into the field, fell aiso into Glyn-
dwr's hands, and was carried into Wales, whm}lmn
from motives of pohcy.suﬁeredhmtomnnuﬁum
vity ; which wilful
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the county, were appointed to constitute the hundred
of Wigmore; and on the western side, Ewyas-Lacy was
{ into the hundred of that name; Huntington,
Clifford, Winforton, Eardisley, and Whitney, into the
hundred of Huntington ; and Ewyas-Harrold was added
to that of Webtree.

From this period no very remarkable event bearing
particular relation to this county occurred, until the
commencement of the contest between Charles 1. and the
parliament, when the greater number of the principal
Herefordshire families espoused the royal cause. The
city of Hereford was garrisoned by the royalists, but sur-
rendered without resistance to a parliamentarian force
under Sir William Waller : it was soon after evacuated,
and again garrisoned for the king, under Barnabas
Scudamore. The Scottish army in the interest of the
parliament, and under the orders of the Earl of Leven,
was directed to retake it, and previously to the com-
mencement of the siege, attacked and carried away by
assault a post occupied by the royalists at Canon-Froome,
near Ledbury : for this service the House of Commons
ordered a letter of thanks to be written to the general ;
and a jewel of the value of £500 was presented to him
as an earnest-of the favour of both houses. After the
defeat at Naseby, the king marched towards Hereford,
in order to relieve it from the siege, or give battle to
the Scots, who, after levying very heavy contributions
throughout the county, at length raised the siege on the
approach of €harles and his army from Worcestershire,
At Hereford; the king assembled all his forces from

Worcestershir® pshire, and South Wales, to attempt
the relief of B In-1646, Hereford was taken by
and, Merable resistance from other

places, whole county was reduced by detachments
of the parliam ':%:lzder the command of Sir
William y el Birch, a very zealous
and acti cer,
The whole of this county, excepting the parishes of
Clodock, Dulas, Ewyas-Harrold, Llancillo, Michael-
Church-Eskley, Rowlstone, St. ret's, and Walter-
stone, (which are in the diocese of St. David,) is included
in the diocese of Hereford, and province of Canterbury,
, comprising the deaneries
of Clun, Froome, Hereford, Irchenfield, Leominster,
Ross, Weobley, and Weston, and containing two hundred
and eighteen parishes, of which, eighty-three are rec-
tories, eighty-four vicarages, and the remainder perpe-
tual curacies. For civil purposes it is divided into the
eleven hundreds of Broxash, Ewyas-Lacy, Greytree,
Grimsworth, Huntington, Radlow, Stretford, Webtree,
Wigmore, Wolphy, and Wormelow (Lower and Upper).
Some detached parts are situated d its general out-
line: the of Farlow is wholly isolated by Shrop-
shire ; that of Rochford by Worcestershire ; Litton Hill
zm and-a considerable tract of land, called
‘ f

e , and a few acres on the Devaudon-hill, by
outhshire, On the other hand, the parish of Edwin-
Loch, which forms part of Worcestershire, is surround-
ﬁz‘ ‘Herefordshire. This county contains the city of
, th ugh and market towns of Leéominster
it ha Boms. Do gt
% X h'hm,mwmm for the
y, an for each of the boroughs. The county
‘members are élected at Hereford. Herefordshire is

-
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included in the Oxford circuit : the assizes and
quarter sessions are held at Hereford, where stands the
county gaol and house of correction: there are one
hundred and thirty-six acting magistrates. The rates
raised in this county for the year ending March 25th,
1827, amounted to £68,731. 17.; the expenditure to
£69433. 5., of which £57,425. 9. was applied to the
relief of the poor. The Malvern hills form a kind of
natural boundary on the eastern side of the county,
and the Halterell, or Black mountains, rise to an equal
elevation on its western border; from these and other
eminences Herefordshire exhibits a scene of beauty
and richness not surpassed by any other county in
England. The river Wye, in particular, enriches and
adorns a tract of this county, between lfc'hty and fifty
miles in length, and the scenery on its banks is thought
to excel any of a similar kind in the kingdom. The
general character of the river, from its entrance into
the county down to Hereford, is mild and pleasing, con-
sisting of delightful reaches, with the most luxuriant
landscapes on their sides ; the bolder and more roman-
tic features of the scenery of this river occur in its
course below Hereford.

The climate, on the whole, is favourable to health
and longevity ; but it varies much in different districts
and at different altitudes. The vicinity of Ross is
the earliest as regards vegetation: the western and
north-western parts of the county are the coldest, on
account of their superior elevation, and their exposure
to the westerly winds, which, blowing over the bleak
mountains of Wales, are, in this part of the county,
chill and ungenial. The general character of the soil
is a mixture of marl and clay of great fertility, con-
taining also a certain proportion of calcareous earth ;
below the surface are strata of limestone, often bean-
tifully intersected by red and white veins, bearing
some resemblance to calcareous spar: near Snodhill
castle, in the hundred of Webtree, it becomes a kind
of marble, and was in considerable use and estimation
during part of the seventeenth century. Towards the
western border of the county the soil is often cold and
sterile, but still argillaceous and resting on nodules
of impure limestone, or on a base of soft crumbling-
stone, which perishes by exposure to air and frost.
In many places in the eastern part of the county it
is loose and shallow, covering stone of inferior value,
provincially called dun-stone, the more favourable
portions of which are found suitable to the culture
of hops. Deep beds of fine gravel are more especially
met with in the centre of the county, in the viciity of
the city of Hereford. The soil of a large portion of
the hundred of Wormelow, on the south, consists of a

t sand, which has been much improved by the use
of lime as a manure. A clayey tract extends from Here-
ford towards Ledbury, and produces the most abundant

‘crops of wheat in the county. About five hundred and

twenty thousand acres of land are in cultivation. On
the stiff clays with which Herefordshire abounds wheat
is the principal crop, and a very considerable quantity
is raised beyond the internal consumption, the surplus
and Bristol. The greatest itity of oats sown is in
those parts the Weleh border, and on por-
tions of the eastern border of the cour The average
produce of wheat per acreis ' that of bar-
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ley about eighteen ; and of oats and peas about twenty.
Hop plantations exist in all parts of the county, but more
especially on the Worcestershire side: five hundred
weight are esteemed the fair produce of a provincial
hop-acre, which containg two thousand poles, there
heing on an average two poles to each root. The
plantations are more generally worked with the plough
than with the spade. The most fertile meadow lands
are on the banks of the Wye, the Frome, and the Lug;
their herbage being of the very best quality. The vicinity
of Bromyard produces cheese, which is brought to the
market, and rivals the best Shropshire cheese ; but this
not being a dairy county, it is supplied from Wales with
excellent butter, and with cheese from Shropshire and
Gloucestershire. The cattle have long been esteemed
superior to most breeds in England ; they are of large
size, sinewy form, and unusual neatness, and the prevail-
ing colour is a reddish brown with white faces. At the
Michaelmas fair at Hereford, where the show of oxen
in thriving condition is remarkably fine, they are
generally sold to the principal graziers uf the conuties
near the metropolis, to be there fattened for the London
market. Grazing and cattle-feeding are aot generally
practised, cxcept for provincial consumption ; but the
rearing of oxen for the purposes of agriculture prevails,
The oxen perform nearly half the ploughing, and the
same proportion.of the harvest work; and in situa-
tions where their labour is frequently required on hard
roads they are shod with iron. The Herefordshire cow
is ‘comparatively mmnall, and extremely delicate in her
appearance. ‘The provincial breed of sheep is termed
the Ryeland, from the district so named lying partly in
the county of Gloucester, and partly in this county, in
the vicinity of Ross, which is particularly favourable to
them from the dryness of the soil and the sweetness
uf the herbage. They are small and white-faced ; in
symmetry of form, and in the flavour of their flesh,
they exceed most English sheep; and in the fineness
af their wool they are unrivalled : the ewes weigh from
nine to twelve and fourteen pounds per quarter, the
wethers from twelve to sixteen and eighteen, The Rye-
land sheep have been crossed with the New Leicester,
to the advantage perhaps of the breeder who is situated
on good land, but to the detriment of the wool. A cross
has been advantageously made between the Ryeland
and the real Spanish breed. To the barrenness of the
pasture on which the Ryeland sheep usually feed, may
in same degree be attributed the fineness of their woal,
for the quality of it is immediately impaired by a copious
supply of food, The sheep-shearing in Herefordshire
is performed by women.

Plantations of fruit trees are found in every as-
pect and on every soil: these orchards, which form
¥o important a part of the produce of Herefordshire,
seem to have first ired celebrity in the reign of
Charles 1., and the county has ) been ‘celebrated for
its cider, a large guantity of which.is:sent to:London
and the other principal towns i the kingdom. The
soil best sdapted to the growth of!xuost kinds of apple
trees, and the best kinds of puarictrees, is a- .
rich loam, when under: cultaure: by thwe plough. An Agri-
cultural Society was establisheddn-this county in 1797
but the culture of it ju this county ke long been' dis-
continued.: The waste lands form s very inconsidevable
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proportion of the extent of Herefordshire; the largest
tract is on the east side of the Hatterell, or Black
mountaine, where the steepness of the hills, and the
sterility of the soil, oppose powerful ohstacles to improve-
ment. Almost every part of the county abounds with
woods and plantations, containing fine oak and elm trees,
The northern side of it, including the Forests of Mock-
tree and Prestwood, has a greater abundance of fine oak
than the southern parts, although large and valuable
supplies of timber are produced in the latter. Some of
the most extensive coppices are situated in the parishes
of Fownhope, Woolhope, and Little Birch, and in the
vicinity of Ledbury. They consist chiefly of oak, ash,
and willow, and are generally cut down once in thirteen
years; the ash is converted into hoops, which are in
great demand within the county for the cider casks; the
oak and the willow furnish hop-poles, while the hlack-
poles, which are those of larger size, and of osk only,
are used as rafters, &c., in building.

Iron-ore is of very ancient discovery in the hundred
of Wormelow, where many of the hand-blomeries used
by the Romans, and considerable quantities of ore im-
perfectly smelted, have heen found on Peterstow com-
mon ; of late vears, however, no iron has been manu-
factured in Herefordshire. There have been found red
and yellow ochre, fullers' earth, and pipe-clay. The
southern purt of the county, and the city of Hereford,
are gupplied with coal from the pits in the Forest of
Dean, in Gloucestershire ; the Clee hills of Shropshire
furnish the northern and eastern parts; and the western
procure it occasionally from Abergavenny.

The principal rivers are the Wye, the Lug, the Mun-
now, the Arrow, the Frome, the Teme, and the Leddon.
The Wye, haviug separated the counties of Brecknock
and Radnor, enters Herefordshire between the parishes
of Whitney and Clifford, and pursuing a south-easterly
course, by Hereford and Ross, quits it at its southern
extremity; the latter part of its course in Herefordshire
being remarkably circuitous. This river is navigable
up to Hereford for harges of from eighteen to thirty
tons' burden, but the navigation is frequently interrupt-
ed by either a carcity of water, or by the violence of the
stream when swelled by the mountain torrents, which
is .often such as to make great alterations in the bed
of the river, and sometimes occasions it to form mew
chammels. The principal sea fish taken in the Wye.is
the salmon, which, however, is much less abundant
then it was formerly, when it was a common clwase in
the indentnres of children apprenticed in Hereford that
they should not be compelled to eat salmon more than
twice a week : its chief fresh water fish ave pike, gray-
lings, troat, perch, andl eels. The . rises in' Raduor-
shire, and: #nters the north-western bonder of this county
near Stapleton castle, in the hundred of 'Wigmore, then
taking a south-easterly direction, by Leominster, it falls
into the Wye’ immediately below the village of Mondi.
ford. In the year 1714 an attempt was made, by private
subscription, to ?ﬁnﬁh river navigable, and & few
barges ascended ft ad far as Leominster; but a high
flood following soonafter, the l,“‘fk': tze. which had teen
constructed wereso.sgatecially injured, that no atteuipts
to repair or renewthbe works had been made: wp i the
year 1808, The sea fish common to the Wye are seidem
found-in-the Lug; tutithe river fish are found alike in
cither. The Munnowiiges'on the Herefordahive side of
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the Hatterel mountains, and flowing southward, becomes
the boundary between this county and Monmouthshire,
and so continues until it passes Llanrothall and quits
the comnty, falling into the Wye immediately below
Monmouth : its principal fish are trout, gudgeons, eels,
and cray-fish. The Arrow, so called from the swiftness
of its stream, rises in Radnorshire, and entering this
county near Kington, joins the Lug a few miles below
Leominster : its-fish are trout, graylings, and cray-fish.
The Frome riges near Wolferlow, in the hundred of
Broxash, and flowing southward, passes Bromyard, and
falls into the Lug near Mordiford. The Teme, or Team,
enters Herefordshire from the north-west, near Bramp-
ton-Bryan, and passes alternately through parts of this
county and Shropshire ; it then makes a considerable
circuit in Worcestershire, but returns to Whitbourne,
below the town of Bromyard, immediately after which
it finally quits this county for Worcestershire. The
Leadon, or Leddon, rises above Bosbury, in Radlow
bundred, and passes the town of Ledhury, to which it
gives name, a short distance below which it enters
Gloucestershire. In conscquence of the precariousness
of the navigation of the Wye, an act of parliament
was obtained, in the year 1791, for making a navigable
canal from the city of Hereford, by the town of Led-
bury, to the Bevern at Gloucester, with a lateral cut to
the collieries at Newent. The expense of constructing
this canal, commonly called the Hereford and Glouees-
ter canal, was found so much to exceed the original
estimate of £60,000, that in 1807, when £105,000 had
been expended upon.it, the work, though completed on
the Gloucestershire side, had made little progress in
Herefordshire. Soon after the former, an act was ob-
tained for another canal, from Kington to Leominster
and Stourport, the chief articles of importation by
which were stated to be lime and coal from Shropshire.
A part of the line from Leominster to Stourport was
completed in 1796; but the expense of this underta-
king, like that of the former, was found so much to ex-
ceed the estimute s to prevent the further progress of
the work. The road London to New Raduor en-
ters the soygh-western -border of the county from Glou-
cester, and -passcs through Hereford and Kington.

The only remarkable Druidical relic in this county
is Arthur's stone, in the parish of Dorstone; but British
intrenchments are numerous. Two Roman towns are
supposed, by the most respectable anthorities, to have
been situated within the limits of modern Herefordshire,
those of Ariconium and Magne ; and with respect to their
situations, the most probable opinion seems to be that
of Horsley, that Magna was at Kenchester, where the
cireumvallation may still be traced, and Aricenium near

Ross, in' the parish of Weston sub Penyard, where the

extant and limits are discernible by a blackness of soil,
strikingly ' different from sH around it; and where
Roman coing have been occasionally found.  Of the

four Roman military roads in Britain, only that called'

Watling.strest intersects this countyg it enters it from
Worcestershire, across the river Teme, at Leintwardine,
and pusting by Wigmore, Mortimer's Cross, Stretford,
Kenchester, , Doré-Abbey, and Longtown, en-
térs Monmouthshire at ashort distancebeyond the latter
plaee ;- the moat parfect remains of it are on Four-ways
eommon, nesr Madley, where 4t crosses the turnpike-
»oad from Hereford. A viclsalowav may also be traced
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in a great part of ite line, which enters the county from
Worcester, and passes by Frome-hill, Stretton-Grand-
aome, Lugg-bridge, Holmer, and Stretton-Sugwas, to
Kenchester. The cathedral of Hereford, and several of
the parochial churches, exhibit specimens of Anglo-Saxon
architceture.  Prior to the Reformation there were
twenty-one religious houses in this county, the principal
remains of which are those of the abbeys of Dore and
Wigmore. The castles were numerons ; the chief re-
mains are those of Brampton-Bryan, Clifford, Hunting-
ton, Goodrich, Kilpee, Longtown, Lyonshall, Wigmore,
and Wilton castles. Several petrifying or eucrusting
springs exist in such hilly parts as consist of argillaceous
marl upon limestone. The custom of decking the grave
with flowers after an interment is general in Hercford-
shire, as it is throughout Wales. On the first of May
it is customary to deck the houses with birchen boughs ;
on the 29th of May to celebrate the Restoration with onk
houghs ; and on Ascension-day with el hranches. On
twelfth-day-eve thirteen small fires are lighted on the
growing wheat, and cakes and liquor distributed on the
spot, amid the loud imvocations of the party for the
prosperity of the owner, and for a plentiful crop; this
custom is well known under the name of wassailing.
The parish feasts, or wakes, are held in the church-
yards, on the Sunday after the festival of the saint to
whom the church is dedicated.

HEREFORD (LITTLE), a parish in the hundred
of Worrnay, county of HErREFORD, 3 miles (W.) from
Tenbury, containing, with Upton, 353 inhabitants. The
living is & discharged vicarage, with the perpetual cu-
racy of Ashford-Carbonell, in the peculiar jurisdiction
and patronage of the Chancellor of the Choir in the
Cathedral - Church of Hereford, rated in the king'e
books at £6, 14. The church is dedicated to St. Mary
Magdalene.

HERGESTS (BOTH), a township in the parish of
KingTon, hundred of HuNTiNGTON, county of HerE-
FORD, 14 mile (8. W. by W.) from Kington, containing
145 inhabitants.

HERMITAGE, a parish and a detached portion
of the liberty of ForbingToN, situated between the
divisions of Cerne and Sherborne, in the Dorchester di-
vision of the county of Dorsgr, 7 miles (S. by E.) from
Sherborne, containing 143 inhabitants. The living is
a vicarage not in charge, with the rectory of Ryme-
Intrinsica, in the peculier jurisdiction of the Dean of
Sarum, and in the patronage of the Crown. The church
is dedicated to St. Mary.

HERNE, a parish in the hundred of BLEANGATE,
lathe of Srt. Avsusting, county of KenT, 53 miles
(N.E. by N.) from Canterbury, containing 1675 inhabit-
ants. The living is a vicarage, in the peculiar juris-
diction and patronage of the Archbishop of Canterbury,
rated in the king's hooks at £20. 16. 8. The church,
dedicated to St. Martin, has a tower and other portions
in the early style of English architecture, with insertions
in the later und decorated styles. There is a place of
worship for Independents and Wesleyan Methodists.
In the channel near the bay, numerous fragments of
Roman earthenware have been found, supposed to be
the vestiges of a cargo of potiery wrecked whilst the
Romans were in Britain. At Herne Sheel is a pleasure
fair on Easter Monday.

HERNHILL, a parish inthe hundred of BovcHTON
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under Brgan, lathe of Scray, county of KEnT, 34 miles
(E. by 8.) from Faversham, containing 477 inhabitants,
The living is a vicarage, in the peculiar jurisdiction and
patronage of the Archbishop of Canterbury, rated in the
king's books at £15, The church, dedicated to St. Mi-
chael, is a handsome edifice, principally in the later style
of English architecture, situated on a lofty eminence ;
it is divided within by clustered columns of Bethersden
warble, of peculiar elegance.

HERRIARD, a parish in the hundred of BErMOND-
sriT, Basingstoke division of the county of SovTnamr-
ToN, 4% miles (8.8.E.) from Basingstoke, containing,
with the tything of Southrop, 369 inhabitants. The
living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry
and diucese of Winchester, rated in the king's hooks at
£7. 6. 54, and in the patronage of Lord Bolton. The
church is dedicated to St. Mary.

HERRINGBY, a parish in the castern division of
the hundred of FrrGe, county of Nonrrovx, 33 miles
(k. by 8.) from Acle, contanining, with the parish of
Stokeshy, 294 inbabitants. The living is a rectory
united to that of Stokeshy, in the archdeaconry and
tiocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £5,
The church is dedicated to St. Ethelbert. A college, or
tospital, under the title of God's poor almshouse, was
founded here soon after 1475, pursuant to the will of
Hugh Attefenne: at the dissolution its revenue was
valued at £23. 6. 5,

HERRINGFLEET, a parish in the hundred of
Muvrrorp and LoTHINGLAND, county of SurroLk, 6
miles (N.W. by W.) from Lowestoft, containing 168
mhbabitants.  The living is a perpetual curacy, in the
archdeaconry of Suffolk, and diocese of Norwich.
John Leathes, Esq. was patron in 1824. The church is
dedicated to St. Margaret. Mrs. Elizabeth Merry be-
fueathed £20 per annum for the education of poor.
children, of which the master receives £17, and £3 are
appropriated to the purchase of books : twelve children
are instructed gratuitously. In the reign of Henry 111
here was a priory of Black canons, founded by Roger
Fitz-Osbert, and dedicated to St. Mary and St. Olave :
at the dissolution it was valued at £49. 11. 7. The na-
vigable river Waveney runs along the south-west boun-
dary of this parish, and is crossed by St.Olave's bridge.

HERRINGSTONE, or WINTERBOURNE-HER-
RINGSTONE, a chapelry in the parish of West
CrickerELL, hundred of CuLLirorDd-TrEE, Dorchester
division of the county of Dorser, 2 miles (8. by W.)
from Dorchester, containing, with Winterbourne-Farring-
don, 88 inhabitants. ;

HERRINGSWELL, a parish in the hundred of
LAckrorD, county of SurroLk, 3% miles (8. by E.)
from Mildenhall, containing 215 inhabitants. The
living is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry of
Sudbury, and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's
books at £9. 9. 94. H. Sperling, Esq, was patron in
1812. The church is .ﬂedicated to St, Ethelbert.

HERRINGTON (EAST and MIDDLE), a township
in the parish of Hoverron le SPrINg; northern division
of EasineroN ward, county palatine of Durmam, 3%
miles (8. W, by 8.) from Sunderhad. containing 133
inhabitants,

HERRINGTON (WES‘!’) a wwmhip in the parish’
of HouGuTrox s Srriwe, northern division of Eamng-

ToN ‘wird, ¢ourity palstine of Dunsas, 4§ miles (8, W,
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by w.) from Sunderland, containing 329 inhabitants.
Here was anciently a chapel, dedicated to theVu'g:n Mary.
HERTFORD, & borough o A iz

and market town, having se-
parate Jtmsdlctlon, locally =
in the hundred of Hertford,
county of HERTFORD, of
which it is the chieftown 21 |
miles (N.) from London, con- &
taining, exclusively of that (@
partof theparish of All Saints @&
which is within the hundred, -
4265 inhabitants, Hertford '(_'{: -~
is supposed by Sir Henry Z
Chauncy to have been the

Romean station called Durocobriva, which has by subse-
quent writers, with greater probability, heen referred to
Dunstable. The modern nume is of somewhat doubtful
etymology : according to Bede it is derived from Herud-

ferd, or red ford, while Salmon deduces it from Here-ford,

a military ford, whence, by corruption, Hertford, Its an-
tiquity however, is unquestionable, for so early as the
year 673, Theodore, a native of Tarsus in Cilicia, and then
Archhishop of Canterbury, convened a council here; and
about 905, Edward the Elder, to protect the inhabitants
from the incursions of the Danes, erected a castle, the
custody of which, and the government of the town, were
given by William the Congqueror to Peter de Valoignes.
In the reign of Henry III. William de Valence was go-
vernor, and at his death jt descended to Aymen de Val-
cnce: it was subsequently surrendered to the crown. The
town is pleasantly situated on the river Lea, in a dry
valley surrounded by hills, and consists of three prineipal
streets meeting obliquely in the cegtre, parallel with
one of which is the high thoroughfarethrongh the town.
Over the Lea, which is navigable tg Bertford for small
vessels, is the toll-bridge; bey is is an opening
leading to Cow-bridge, a atructire Bf brick with two
arches across the river Beane, which flows into the Lea,
as also does the Mimram, which runs through the castle
grounds, and is crossed by a%ooden bridge : about a
mile above the toll-bridge in thie directionare some neat
modern cottages, and on the north road is 8 handsome
range of buildings, called the North Crescent. In Castle-
street, on the site of the ancient castle, of which little
remains except a line of embattled wall and a moumd, is
a handsome brick edifice, fitted up some years since at
considerable expense, by the late Marquis of Downshire,
for his own residence : it was afterwards taken by the
Eeast India Company, as a temparary college during the
erection of one at Haileybury, to which it was subse-
quently appropriated as a establishment,
but is now occupied as & ladies' bqnqﬁng—schwl. “The
Herts, Cambri 7 Fire Office,” esta-
blished in 1824, js situated at the dower part of Fore-
street. At a small distance from the towm, on the
river Lea, are the gn works m&h November 1825,
’ 9 of the International Gas-

ﬁight Company, v thi Property of private indi.
vals, who ha of the Compdny. The
buildings in o irmegular that not one wtreet

#xcellen
oninbrn mﬂ!,md,ﬂm d’
mmnymtmthemopo-
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lis. The market, by charter of Charles II., is held under
the shire-hall every Saturday, and the business trans-
acted in grain is scarcely equalled in any other provincial
market: another, formerly held on Wednesday, is now
disused. Fairs, chiefly for cattle, three of which are by
charter of Mary, and one by charter of Charles 1L, are
held on the third Saturdey before Easter, May 12th,
July 5th, and November 8th, with courts of pie-powder
attached. On the north-side of Fore-street is the but-
chers' market, constructed at the sole expense of Alder-
men Kirby, and forming three sides of a quadrangle.
The inhabitants were - o
first incorporated by Queen
Mary, in the year 1554;
Elizabeth granted them a
new charter in the 31st of §
her reign, which was con- £
firmed and modified by
James 1., and further en-
larged by Charles I, in the
23rd of his reign. James I,
changed thestyleintomayor,
bu ses, and assistants, R e
and by the laet charter, Carporate Seal.
dated in the 3%nd of Charles II,, the government is
vested in a mayor, high steward, recorder, chamber-
lain, and ten sldermen (who constitute the common
council), with sixteén assistants, a town clerk, two
serjeants at mace, and inferior officers: the mayor is
annually chosen, by the corporation at large, from two
aldermen nominated by the mayor, recorder, and alder-
men: the mayor, the late mayor, recorder, together
with one alderman, or freeman, learned in the laws of
England, who is chosen by the mayor and common
council, to continul'duping pleasure, are justices of the
peace within the gh and lbertiee. The county
magistrates hava rent jurisdiction, which how-
ever is but rarcly$ircised, The corporation possess,
by virtue of their ®harter from Charles, the tolls of the
market, and are empowered fo prevent any but frec.
men from trading withingthe borough; they also have
authority to hold a court of record for pleas, actions,
and suits under the value of £ 60, every Wednesday, at
which the mayor or his deputy, being an alderman, and,
the recorder or his deputy, preside : this court, after
having heen discontinued for many years, has very re-
cently been revived. The usual Lent and Summer assizes
are held in the shire-hall, and there is a gaol delivery in
December. The quarter sessions for the county and the
borough are held in the same place, the former always
beginning on Monday, and the latter usually two days
aﬁerwnriu A court leet for the manor is held annually
in the townhall. This horough sent two members to
parliament from tbc reign of Edward I. to the 50th of
Edward III., fromh which perfod elections were discon-
tinged ¢ill the time of James 1., when, on petition, their
ancfent mﬁwu resfored. The members are chosen by
thie‘inhibitant householders, by freemen who were resid-
entwheén their freedom wap grented, 89 by thrée honor-
ary frefien, who ‘may b, non-resigihts : the number
f voters ver h o’ yrthe mayor is the
i g spacious edifice,
Pharket-place, con.
law, a handsome
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has been recently put up in it by public subscription. The
common gaol for the borough, and the common gaol and
house of correction for the county, are adjacent buildings,
and comprehended within the same walls, enclosing an
area of about four acres : the borough gaol contains only
one division, with one airing-yard and four sleeping-
cells : the county guol contains four wards for male and
two for female criminals, and one for male and one for
female debtors, and is well adapted to the classification
of prisoners : the house of correction, also well fitted for
that purpose, contains four wards, four day-rooms, four
airing-yards, in which is a tread-wheel, with four divisions
and two yards for females : these prisong are all under
the same regulations, and under one governor, assisted
by turnkeys and other officers appointed annually by the
sheriff for the county, and the mayor and corporation,
Hertford comprises the united parishes of All Saints

and St. John, and the liberties of Little Amwell and
Brickendon within the parish of All Saints, together with
the united parishes of St. Andrew, St. Mary, and St.
Nicholas, in the archdeaconry of Huntingdon,and diocese
of Lincoln, The living of All Saints’ is a vicarage with
that of St. John's, rated together in the king's bouks
at £10. 8. 64, and in the alternate pautronage of the
Crown and the proprietor of the estate of Balls in this
parish: the church has been recently repaired, and en-
larged with three hundred and four additional sittings,
of which one hundred and sixty-three are free, and to-
wards defraying the expense of which the Incorporated
Society for enlurging churches and chapels granted £200,
and the Governors of Christ's Hospital £100, the latter
having previously erccted a gallery containing sittings
for about two hundred Doys, at their own expense : i
is a spacious cruciform structure in the later style of
Eunglish architecture, with a tower surmcunted by a
spire; within arc several uncient monuments, the in-
scriptions on which are nearly obliterated, and some of
modern erection.  The living of St. Andrew's is a rec-
tory with the vicarages of St. Mary and St. Nicholas,
rated together in the king's books at £12. 7. 34., and in
the patronage of the King, as Duke of Lancaster: the
church is a ncat edifice, with a low embattled tower sur-
mounted by & small spire : the churches of the other
three parishes have fallen into ruins, There are places
of worship for Baptists, the Society of Friends, Inde-
pcndgnts, those in the Countess of Iuntingdon's con-
nexion, and Wesleyan Methodists. At the entrance into
the town from London isx a branch estublishment in
connexion with Christ's hospital, London, appropriuted
to the reception of junior boys, who are sent from this
to the parent institution, as vacancies arise : it includes
three sides of a quadrangle, the two uppuosite sides being
occupied by the several wards for the children, and ter-
minated by residences for the steward and the beadle ;
on the third side are the reading and writing-school, a
epacious brick building capable of accommodating up-
wards of two hundred and fifty bays, and affording a resi-
dence for the masater: in a line with the writing-school,
westward, is the dining-hall, in dimensions about onehun-
dred feet by thirty, and behind it the infirmary for about
one hundred patients: eastward of the great gates in
front of the buildings is the grammar school, besides the
residence for the master ; and on the-opposite side, the
porter's lodge, with a continuation of buildings within
the walls for the girls, of whom there are usually from
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_ matron,  The children are instructed on Dr. Bell's sys-

tem, and the officers of the establishment are the gram-
mar and writing-masters, a governess, matron, steward,
surgeon, nine nurses, three ushers, beadle, porter, &c. A
free grammar school for the children of“the inhabitants
was founded in 1617, by Richard Hale, Escvl.,&of Ches-
hunt in‘this county, and endowed by. him with £ S00,
to be laid out in lands and tenements in"the town and
neighbourhood ; which direction was carried into effect
by Rowland Hale, a descendant of the;fogndu; and an
estate in the parish of Tewin is now, chargeable with
the payment of £40 per annum, of. which £20 are
appropriated to the master, £10 toﬁ‘.i.s assistant, and
the remainder to repairing the.schogl.. A commodious
house for the master was built inthé ‘town, in 1727, by
subscription, which has lately” undergone a thorough
repair by meansof th o butiers of the nobi-
lity, gentry, ¥ £s, The master, who ‘is ap-
pointed by Lord Melbotirne, or, in the event ‘of hismino-
rity, by the mayor and corporation, is allowed to réceive
hoarders ; and the boys on the foundation, in considera-
tion of being taught writing and aritlunetic,-pay half a
guinea per quarter. Bernard Hale, D.D., gave £100 per
anuui to maintain seven poor scholars at St. Peter's
College, Cambridge, for seven vyears, the candidates

£

~ to be appointed from this grammar school by Lord

“Melbourne: each scholarship is now of the value of £14

per annum: A Green-coat school; for clething and

educating forty boys, was erected in 1812, and is sup-

ported by funds which arise partly from £%26 per annum,
the gift of Mr. Gabriel Newton, of Leicester, and paid
to the eorporation for this purpose, and partly .from
voluntary contributions : there are likewise two:ether
schools supported by subseription. The East-India“ Col=
lege, instituted #n 1806, for the ‘education of young men

" intended for the civil service of the Hon. East India

1

by Ralph lﬂe Limesi, a nephew o

Companyin India, is situated two miles on ‘the London
side of the town of Hertford, and will admit ‘ope hun-
dred and five students, who are under ‘the tuition' of a

principal stadent, and several professors, Lady Harrison, “along the Watling-streéet to its relief;
whe d‘-i):d;’-in 1706, founded four almshouses, and gave, - :

£50 towirds clothing the inmates ; and thete is.another

almshause for poor widows. The principalcharity, cailed * the inhabitants massacred. * It wag

Grass/Money, was' formerly. at'~the disposal. of -
co tion, but is mow vested in trustees ap

ider a decree of the Court of Chancery :
a net income of about £250 per annum.
dispensary was established in Janvawy, 1!

A

ward of the town was formerly

who, aft ds assuming the’
prior, and was interred in the chun
eonvent : -at the digsolution it'was ¥
the siteis mow occupiéd by a dwellis
the Priory, which, about sixty years Was: |
Thomas Dimsdale, M.D., a‘nutive of Thoyde

Essex, whospent the early part/of his pi
and having received his diploma
where he inoculated the Empress C

he received £12,000 and a pension,
Bu-ol:, which descends to his family:” he
m ” -, 1 \ - ¥y
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- Ermin-streef. In the Roman
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Bishop'sStortford. His son Nnt.haxi_el,“whe.ﬁm-
panied him to Russia, and also recieved the titl
baron, was twice representative of this borough in §
liament. Hertford confers the title of marquis on
family of Seymour Conway. g
HERTFORDSHIRE, an inland county, bounde
the north by the county of Cambridge, on the ne
west by the county of Bedford, on the west bylthe
county of Buckingham, on the south by the county of
Middlesex, and on the east by the county of Es
it extends from 51° 37’ to 52° 5" (N. Lat.), and f
13’ (E.) to 46" (W. Lon.) ; and contaips three hun
and thirty-seven thousand nine hundred and’ twenty
acres, or five hundred and twenty-eight square :;Tes.
The population, in 1821, amounted to 129,714, .
The Celtic inhabitants of this part of Britain wej the
Cassii, or Cattieuchlani, whose country, long before the
invasion of Casar, was overrun by the Belge (wheoﬂtmd
previously established themselves in the south-western
part of England), and their capital city, Verulam, taken
possession of by-the conquerors. Of the operations of
Ceesar in the territory forming* thé modern count
Hertford, and his capture of Verulam,
known than what may be colﬁ:ct‘ed""ﬁm
narrative of this campaign by the comn
the result of it, however, was,’ that the British
Cassivelaunus was obliged to sue for peace; which b
granted, Mandubritius, the sovereign of the Cassii,
his dominions restored to‘him, and Casar led back his
army, along the Watling-street, to Richborough, W&ere
he embarked for the Continent. Shortly after the
second invasion of Britain, in the reign of Claudius, in
the revolt of the Teeni, under Boadicea, against 'the
Romans, which commenced . whi r
under Suetonius was engaged in
Isle of Anglesey, the Britons, s destroying
the Roman colony and garrison © unum, | ad-
vanced “against Verulam with such whelming
force, that' the Roman general, who stened back
J P ,.,. w
which

man :( y
Pauest of the

i 8

, leaving Verulam to the same d
befallen Camalodunum, the city:
before this important post again
the invaders, who renewed its fa

‘territory was included in Flavie Calgric
the Saxon octarchy part of it
kingdom of ‘Mercia, and part in thatof
or Essex. In 794, Offa, the celeb
died at Offley, in ‘county ; and
Alfred captured the Danish ships,
channel of the river Lea, so that
brought down it. In his camp @
1066, William the Conqueror took
the laws of Edward the Confessor. AV
in 1812, the barons assembled theini
ward IL and his favourite Gaveston, ]
is memorable in this county for thést
nected with the suppression of Wat Ty
when Richard II. and his chief justice T
of a thousand :




and Hempstead, when viewed !wam the
’ jn&h!g hills, are worthy of attention. With relpm:n:’
the =oil, it may be remarked that the vales through which
: the rivers and brooks flow are invariably composed of
! rich sandy loam, with the exception only of a small
%rc fought withm the quantity of peat and marshy moor ; that the slopes of
1‘55, the first battle of the hills descending to these vales are inferior qualities
was wounded and made of the same loams, and at the same time dry and sound ;
cond battle of St.Alban’s, in but that the flatter surfaces of the higher lands are com-
defeated by the Earl of posed of a wet and strong loam, sometimes so much
and MGS, the decisive battle of Barnet, so as to require hollow draining. The late secretary to
! Carl of Warwick and ten thousand of his the Board of Agriculture, Mr, Arthur Young, divides the
glain. It was from Theobalds that Charles I., soil into one district of loams, two of clay, one of
after receiving there the petitions of both chalk, and one of gravel; at the same time observing,
‘parliament, departed to place himself at the that the soils intermingle in a remarkable manner,
army. so that it is sometimes extremely difficult to draw
: "Mnty hes partly within the diocese of London, the boundary line between them. The district of the
in that of Lincoln, the whole being included loams includes a very considerable portion of the county,
nce d‘ Canterbury. « That part which is in no less than one hundred and forty-seven thousand
on comprises the deanery of Braugh-  eight hundred and forty acres, and may properly be di-
@ archdeaconry of Middlesex, and vided into flinty and sandy ; the flinty loams spread into
parishes, and the archdeaconry and a considerable tract from the river Beane to the limits
: m, containing twenty-two parishes. of the county beyond Berkhampstead, extending south-
i % the diocese of Lincoln is included ward to the gravel and clay districts, and northward to
, leaconry of Huntingdon, and comprises that of the chalk : from Berkhampstead towards Ches-
'&ﬁ fo d&mﬁud’ Baldock, Berkhampstead, Hertford, ham they are of a reddish colour: for some miles
- and Hitchin, containing eighty ishes ; the total num-  around Buntingford these loams are strong, and produce
e pu!ldaw“in the county one hundred and heavy crops of wheat; and from St. Al an’s to Red-
-seven are rectories, fifty-three bourn, and about Watford they form a fine mellow tur-
al curacies, or con- nip land, easily worked, and adapted to the production
il purposes it is of almost every kind of grain. Some of the finest loam
Braughm, Broad- in the county is the sandy vale of Cheshunt up to
Hoddesdon, which produces five quarters of wheat per
acre. Some of these loams, more especially ‘where they
. are wet, are provincially, but improperly, designated
clay : the whole of this district is cropped with turnips,
- which are eaten on the land. The two clay districts are
- comparatively small ; one is in the southern part of the
county, adjoining Mlddluex, and the soil is stiff, hard,
and tenacious, being the same as thebeanhndnofthe
of that county: the other, which is by far the '
of the two, lies on the eastern side of the county,
| nearly resembles the contiguous clay lands of Essex,
ng rather a strong wet loam on a stiff basis of clay
Both these tracts are in a great measure free
ne and flint: conjointly they include ninety
two hundred and forty acres; the south-
by the use of London manure,haa been con-
to very rich hay ground. The chalk district
) border of the northern part of

_____




HER S

close to the surface, are conglomerated by sulphureous
clay into plum-pudding-stones ; and the whole district,
excepting only some patches of fine loam, which occur
more especially on the banke of many of the smaller
streains, ik among the most neproductive land i the
south of Englaud. The substrutum of the whole of
Hertfordsbire is chalk; for obtaining which, pits are
sunk all over the county, its use as mawure being gene-
ral throughont its limits ; for this purpose, the chalk
which lics farthest beneath the surface soil is esteerned
the best.

By fur the greater part of the county s under tillage.
Upon all the turnip land the rotation of crops is, tur-
nips, barley, clover, the first crop mown, the second
eaten off, and wheat ; some tarmers adding oats : on the
other soils various systems are practised. Of wheat,
the turnip soils produce on an average from seventeen
to twenty bushels per acre; the strong land about
twenty-five ; on the fine rich loams of Buntingford,
forty bushels are by no means an uncommon crop ;
while the average produce of this grain thoughout the
county is estimated at twoenty-thoee bushels per ucre:
the generul average produce of barley and oats is about
thirty-two boshels per acre.  The artificial grasses are,
clover (which has probably becn cultivated in this
county longer than in any other part of the kingdom,
and from the vicinity of the metropolis yields a greater
profit here than elsewhere), trefoil, sainfoin, and lucerne ;
the culture of tares is general throughout the county.
Besides the chalk already mentioned, and the manures
common to other counties, soot and night-soil brought
trom London, are found very beneficial on the land ;
about Lilley, peat-ashes are brought as manure from
Bedfordshire, where they are hurned in heaps, and
sold at Tingrith, Flitwick, and Flitton. The grass
land is in & great measure confined to a narrow horder
om the south side of the comuty, in the vicinity of Bar-
unet, which, being near London, is made productive by
means of the manures brought from that city : with
this exception, the only grass lands are those belonging
to the numerous gentlemen’'s seats, and those i the
flat bottoms of the vales which are watered by rivers;
of the Jast-mentioned, some of the principel arve on the
Stort, from Hockerill to Hertford, and thence to Hat-
ffeld, on the banks of the same rivcr. In the parishes of
the south - western corner of the county are many
orchards, rarely exceeding four or five acres in extent,
principally of apples and cherries : the former sre the
most profitable ; of the latter, the caroon and the small
black cherry are the favuunta sorts, and & full grown
tree, in a favourable season, will prnduce six hundred.
pounds weight, In consequence of so much of Hext-
fordshire being arable land, and the guamtity of clover
carried to London being so great, live stogk is an obiject
of inferior consideration: the catile are of varieus sorts:
the sheep are chiefly of the h-down and Wiltshire
breeds ; there are also soms,
hogg are of different kinde,
compared with those of g
imconsiderable : they eomut (
teved over the county, the piin
bemapstead. There are large &
ingi to the south of Hertford,
don : in the tract betweew Ho
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Suhs'bury has one thousand five hidred seres,  *There
is much fine flourishing timber sbout the different sente
of the nobility and gentry, such ds éals, mwh, ehmy beoch
Spamish chesnut, cedar, larth, spruce, silver fit, Scotch
fir, &e.; much of that in Moor park isof grest antiquity,
The women and children sbout Stevenags, Hatfield,
Redbourn, St. Alban's, Berkhampstead, Hitchin, &c., ave
much employed in making straw-plat. The mewofaes
tare of black lace has been ¢arried on ut Berkhampatead
time iinmemorially, but has of lide given place t6 that
of straw-plat.

The principal rivers are the Lea amd the Colue,
formed by the junction of miny minor streams, Whieh
rise chiefly within the bounds of the county. The Len
rises in Bedfordshire, enters Hertfordshire near Bower
heath, and traverses the county in a direction nearly
from north-west to south-east, passing the town of Hert
ford, from which place it has been made navigable to ite’
conflux with the Stort, about a mile east of Hoddesdon,
where it takes a southerly coursé¢, becoming the botm-
dary of the county on the east, and continuing so' wntid
it reaches the border of Middlesex. The Colne near
Kitt's-end in Middlesex, and ronning by North Minrms,
Watford, and Rickmansworth, it soon after quits the
comnty for Buckinghamshire. The Stort, rismg in-
Essex, becomes pavigable at Bishop's Stortford, from
which place to its junction with the river Lea it forms
the boundary between Essex and Hertfordshirve. The
Mimram rises near Frogmore, in Hitchin and Pirfom:
hundred, and, with the Beane, which rises near Cromer,
in Odsey hundred, joms the Len near Hertford. The
sources of the Rib are near Buntingford, in Edwinstree
hundred, and it joids the Lea between Hertford and
Ware, The seurce of the Ash is also in Edwinstree
hundred, near Upperwick, and it falls inte the Lea about
a mile below Ware. The Verulam, Verlam, or Nuse
river, rives in Dacorum hwndred, near Market-street,
and on the eofifines of Bedfoﬂishire and runs in &
gouth-south-easterly dircotion to St. Albarf's, and thence
mearly soath until it joins the Colne, then only d small
stretim. The Gade rises sleo in Dacorgm hundred, near
Gaddesderi, on the borders of Buckinghamishire, end
runs in & direction nearly south, to ity conflux with the
Colue wear Rickmangworth, At Ashweil in’ this comity,
gre the nine sister spiings of the Cam, @hich fows by
Cambridge. The Grand Junction ma! froms Brangton

'whn&f on the Coventry camsl to Old Bmtm Where
into the Thames, éatérs !imfm ‘shove

'ng and foltows the couvse of the Bulbidrn and Gade
rivers to Rickmansworth, thnt thercourse
of tlje Colne until it leaves “Mn ot of pav..

liaxsent was: obta&ed for the mm of ahother ome)

Cashivlrury P"t ‘the propoied: subuwlpuon

£ 17,000 failing. ﬁmw mm& The
fiom Lasdsh to Gxt‘aui. mh Aylesbury,
mwmumn thmghw

Berkh v ﬂn county ww
8 mile-bsymt}ﬂwm yow:- m_ road from Loisdon
to Berwick wpows w' ork;

tiough & cornet’of the county’ Which surrousds Beet:

Bnmmuﬂnmmﬁ&d chuse; and
"Welwyn apd Baldock, entery Bediords
Detyond the latter towri. Thi voed

; mwwmmwma ey prsig.
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‘the same cormer and t h Chipping-Barnet,
mw Hertfordshire immehmly bg;ozsd South
Mimms, and passing through St. Alban's and Redbourn,
quits the county about a mile before it reaches Dun-
stable. This line is alzo part of the road from London to
Chester, through Birmingham ; of that from London
¢o Oazlisle, through Warrington and Lancaster ; of that
from London to Manchester, through Northampton and
Derby; of that from London to Whitehaven, through
Sheflield, Settle, and Kirkby-Lonsdale; and of that
from London to Manchester and Clitheroe, through Leek,
Uttoxeter, and Hinckley. The road from London to
Halifax and Clitheroe, through Bedford, Nottingham, and
Rotherham, branches off from the last-mentioned road
at St. Alban’s, and pessing through Harpenden, quits the
county about two miles before it reaches Luton. The
road from London to Scarborough, through the counties
of Huntingdon and Lincoln, enters Hertfordshire ncar
Waltham-Cross, and passing through Cheshunt, Ware,
Puckeridge, and Buntingford, enters Cambridgeshire at
Royston. The road from London to Lynn-Regis, through
Cambridge, brunches off from the last mentioned road
st Puckeridge, and passing through Burkway and Barley,
enters Cambridgeshire about a mile beyond the latter
place. The road from London to Norwich, through
Newmarket, enters Hertfordshire from Essex, where
it crosses the river Stort, at Harlow Mills, and passing
through Sawbridgeworth and Bishop's Stortford, again
crosses that river into Essex near the latter place: this
is also the road from London to Lynn-Regis, through
Brandon and Newmarket.

The British Watling-street, entering Hertfordshire
on the south, passed to St. Alban's, and thence along
the line of the present great Irish road, to Dunstable.
The Ermin-styegt, passing near Eufield, entered the
south-eastern border of Hertfordshire near Little Hock-
gate, and passed between Standon and Puckeridge, near
Braughin, and through Buntingford o Royston, where
it crossed the Ikmield-street. The line of the Iknield-
street, entering the north-eastern border of the county
st Royston, passes through Baldock, and after crossing
8 small of Bedfordshire and of Buckinghamshire,
re-caters Hertfordshire for a short distance, running a lit-
tle to the right of Tring. The only Roman station in this
county, the situation of which has been precisely ascer-
tained, is the cclebrated one of Verulam, contiguous to
St. Alban's, Excepting the ancient British roads above-
‘mentioned, which appear to have been used and improved
by the Romans, the only Roman road (of the many which
it is probable once interageted this county) that can now
be traced with any deggee of distinctness within its
limits, is that which connected Verulam with the sta-
#ion at Chesterfield. near Sandy, ow the banks of the

vel, which runs {u the line of the pisent great north
JFogd, | h Stevenoge, Graveley, nad Baldock. Be-
#ore the rmation there were in this county, sccord-

g to Tanner, thirty-four religious houses and hospitals.
/The principal ecclesiastical antiquities are St. Alban's
‘abbey church and gate-house. At Waltham-Cross is
the well knowp cross, erected, with several others, by
Edward I, to perpetuate the remembrance of those
places gt which the body of his consort, Queen Eleanor,
'rested, in its way frem Herdeby, in Lincolnshire, for
Jjnterment in Westminster abbey. There are some re-
mmains of the anciemt gastlea of Hertford, Bishop's Stoxt-
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ford, and Berkhampstead ; and Hatfield house is a fine
gpecimen of the style of domestic architecture which
prevailed in the rcign of James I. On the east side of
the village of Great Amwell, at the foot of the steep
bank upon which the church is situated, rises a con-
siderable spring, which, together with that of Chad-
well, fecds the canal commonly called the New River,
commenced in 1609, under the powers of an act of par-
liament, by Mr. (afterwards Sir) Hugh Myddelton, for
supplying the northern side of the metropolis with water,
and completed in 1613, its length heing nearly thirty-
nine miles : ahout half its course is within the eastern
border of this county, and near the line of the road from
London to Ware. For a more detaiied account of this
undertaking, sec CLERKENWELL.

HERTINGFORDBURY, a parish in the hundred
and county of Herrrorp, 13 mile (W. & W.) from
Hertford, containing 827 inhabitants. The living is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Huntingdon, und dio-
cese of Lincoln, rated in the king's booksat £12. 15. 24,
and in the patronage of the King, as Duke of Lancaster,
The church is dedicated to St, Mary,

HESKET in the FOREST, a parish in Learn ward,
county of CuMBERLAND, comprising the townships of
Calthwaite, Nether and Upper Hesket, Itonficld, Pette-
rell-Crooks, and Plumpton-Street, and containing 1799
inhabitants, of which number, 780 are in the township
of Nether and Upper Hesket, 9 miles (N. hy W.) from
Penrith. The Jiving is a perpetual curacy, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Carlisle, endowed with £800
private benefaction, £200 royal bounty, and £1900
parliamcntary grant, and in the patronag: of the Dean
and Chapter of Carlisle,  The church, -dedicated to
St. Mary, was built about 1530, and rebuilt in 1678, and
again in 1760. 1In 1763, Jobn Brown bequeathed £200
towards the support of a school, in which one hundred
children are now educated at a small charge, The courts
for the Forest of Inglewood are held in this parish,
yearly on St. Barvabas' day, in the open air, under a
tree called Court Thorn, on the road hetween Upper and
Nether Hesket, on which oceasion the inhabitants of
more than twenty townships attend, from whom a jury
is ballotted and sworn. Near Aiketgate i= a lake called
by the general name of Tarn, covering about one hun-
dred acres, and shounding in carp.

HESKET-NEWMARKET, & market town in the
township of Cavpeeck-Harrcrirrr, parish of CaLp-
BECK, ALLERDALE ward below Darwent, county of
CumBERLAND, 14 miles (S, 8. W.) from Carlisle, and 297
(N.N.W.) from London. The population is returned
with the township. This is a small, but neat and com-
pact town, situated in a secluded and romantic district,
on the western side of the river Caldew. The surround-
ing country is mountainous, and contains mines of lead,
copper, an ganese, At Carrickbeck, in the neigh-
bourhood, elting-works for the lcad-ore. e
market, which/? Friday, is but inconsiderable ;
but there are d fairs on the first Friday in
May, and every ap iday till Whitsuntide, for cat-
tle; and the ldst TTAMtay in August, and the sccond
Thursday in October; for sheep. Here is a place of
worship for the Society of Friends. Near the town is
a petrifying spring, issuing from a rock on the margin
of the river. O '

HESKETH, a joint township and chapelry with Bec-
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consall, in the parish of CrosToN, hundred of LEvLAND,
county palatine of LANCASTER, 11 miles (N. by E.) from
Ormskirk. The population is returned with Becconsall,

HESKIN, a township in the parish of EccLesTon,
hundred of Leynanp, county palatine of LANcASTER,
54 miles (W. 8. W.) from Chorley, containing 274 inha-
bitanuts. In 1806, Hannah Anderton gave a cottageas a
school-room, and £200 in support of it, for the education
of poor girls : the annual income is about £10.

HESLERTON (EAST), u chapelry in the parish of
WesT HrsLerron, wapentake of Buckrose, East riding
of the county of York, 8} miles (E.N.E.) from New
Malton, containing 196 inhabitants. Here is a place of
worship for Wesleyan Methodists, )

HESLERTON (WEST), a parish in the wapentake
of Buckrose, Eust riding of the county of Yorx,
comprising the chapelry of East Heslerton, and the
township of West Heslerton, and containing 469 inha-
bitants, of which number, 278 are in the townehip of
West Heslerton, 8 miles (L. N.E.) from New Malton,
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of the East
riding, and diocese of York, rated in the king's books
at £21. 6. 8., and in the patronage of the Crown. The
church is dedicated to St. Andrew.

HESLETON (COLD), a township in the parish of
Davrron le DavLg, northern division of EasiNcTon ward,
county palatine of Durnam, 7 miles (8.) from Sun-
derland, containing 55 inhabitants.

HESLETON (MONK), a parish in the southern di-
vigion of EasinGrox ward, county palatine of Durnam,
comprising the townships of Hulam, or Holom Hutton-
Henry, Monk-Hesleton, Nesbit, Sheraton, and Thorpe-
Bulmer, and containing 503 inhabitants, of which num-
ber, 164 are in the township of Monk-Hesleton, 10 miles
(E. by 8.) from Durham. The living is a vicarage, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Durham, rated in the king's
bouks at £7. 12. 6., und in the patronage of the Dean
and Chapter of Durham. The church is dedicated to
St. Mary. Petty races are held here on St. Peter's day.

HESLEY-HURST. a township in the parish of
Rorapury, western division of CoQUETDALE ward,
county of NORTHUMBERLAND, 4 miles (8, E. by 8.) from
Rothbury, containing 46 inhabitants,

HESLINGTON, a parish patly in the liberty of

St. PeTer of York, comprising the greater portion of

the township of Heslington, but chiefly in the wapen-
take of Ouze and Derwent, East riding of the county
of York, and containing 513 inhabitants, of which
number, 221 are in the township of Heslington, & portion
of which is in the parish of St. Lawrence, York, 14 mile
(B.E. by E.) from York. The living is a perpetual cu-
racy, in the peculiar jurisdiction and patronage of the
Prebendary of Ampleforth in the Cathedral Church of
York, endowed with £800 royal bounty. The church is
dedicated to St. Peter and St. Paul., Here is an almshouse
for eight poor men and one poor woman, endowed with
a rent-charge of £50 annum, and £5 per annum
from a rectory in Cleveland. B }
HESSETT, a parish in the hundred of TeEDWESTRY,
county of SyrgoLx, 6 miles (E.8.E,) from Rury-ﬁ&l-
wmund’s, containing 393 in‘l:?ll-z. The living is =
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Sudbury, and diocese of
Norwich, rated in the king's books at £12.17.11, The,
King, for that turn, presentéd in 1813, The church is
dedicated to St. Ethelhert. : '
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HESSEY, a township in the parish of -
MonkToN, ainsty of the city, and East riding

i

county, of York, 6§ miles (W. by N.) fram York, .con-
taining 161 inhabitants, "
HESSLE, u parish in the county of the town.

KingsToN upon Huwrr, locally in the East riding of
county of York, 5} miles (W. 8, W.) from Ki
Hull, containing 1021 inbabitants. The living is & vica-
rage, in the archdeaconry of the East riding, and diocese
of York, rated in the king's books at £10.7.1,, end In
the patronage of the Crown. The church is dedicated
to All Saints, There is a place of worship for Wesleyan
Methodists, also a National school and an almshouse.

HEST, a joint township with Slyne, in the parish
of Bouton le Sanps, hundred of Lonspark, south of
the sunds, county palatine of LancasTEr, 2% miles
(N. by w.) from Lancaster, containing 317 inhabitants,

HESTERCOMBE, a hamlet in the parish of Kings-
ron, hundred of Taunron and TaunTON-DEAN, county
of Somerser, 3% miles (N. by E.) from Taunton, con-
taining 16 inhabitants,

HESTON, a purish in the hundred of IsLeworTH,
county of Mippresex, 14 mile (N. by w.) from Houns-
low, containing, with a portion of the town of Houn-
slow, which is in this parish, 2810 inhabitants. The
living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Middle-
scx, and diocese of London, rated in the king's books
at £11, and in the patronage of the Bishop of London.
The charch, dedicated to St. Leonard, has received an
addition of two hundred and fifty-six sittings, of which
one hundred and ninety-threc are free, the Incor
porated Society for building and enlarging churches
and chapels haviug contributed £200 towards defraying
the expense : in this church were interred Sir Joseph
Banks, President of the Royal Society, and his lady.
A parochial school for children of both sexes, under the
patronage of the vicar, is supported by voluntary can-
tributions. Here is a manufactory for oil of vitriol;
but the inhabitants are chiefly employed in' agriculture.
A pleasure fair is held on the 1st of May. This parish
is within the jurisdiction of a court of requests for the
recovery of debts under 40s., held at Brentford during
the summer, and at Uxbridge during.the winter. As
North Hyde, near Heston, is a large ntegezine for gup--
powder, surrounded by mounds of earth, to protect, the

neighbourhood from the danger of an explosion, Fhe
soil of this parish is remarkable for !p T;oaw

'gﬁ‘n.

wheat, which, according to N and den, - was:
used to make bread for the royal table in, the reign of
Elizabeth. §aeaipe oy
HESWALL, a parish in the lower divisfon of the
htndred of WirraLL, county ‘palagine of Cw :

Creste!
'h'a-
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motifham, containing 209 inhabitants, The living is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese of
Norwic¢h, rated in the king's books at £10. Sir Thomas
Beevor, Bart. was patron in 1792. The church is dedi-
datéd to All Saints,

HETHERSETT, a parith in the hundred of Hum-
BLEYARD, comty of NorroLk, 3% miles (N.E. by E.)
from Wymondham, containing 927 inhabitants. The
living is & rectory in medieties, with the rectory of
Cantelose, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese
of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £8, and in
the patronage of the Master and Fellows of Caius
College, Cambridge. The church is dedicated to St.
Remigius.

H%THERSGILL, a township in the parish of Kirk-
Lixton, or Kirk-Levingron, Eskparnk ward, county
of CuMBERLAND, 6 miles (N, W.) from Brampton, con-
taining 7776 inhabitants.

HETT, a township in the parish of MErRrINGTON,
south-eastern division of DARLINGTON ward, county
palatine of Duruam, 5% miles (8. by E.) from Durham,
containing €83 inhabitants. There is a paper-mill about
a mile eastward from the village, also a good freestone
quarry at Broom hill.

HETTON, a joint township with Bordley, in the
parish of BurNsALL, eastern division of the wapentake
of StaincLirre and Ewcross, West riding of the county
of Yorx, 6§ miles (N.N. W.) from Skipton, containing
180 inhabitants.

HETTON le HOLE, a township in the parish of
HoveuTton le SrriNg, northern division of Easineron
ward, county palatine of Dursam, 64 miles (N.E.
by E.) from Durham, containing 919 inhabitants. Here
are places of worship for Baptists, Kilhamites, and
Primitive and Wesleyan Methodists. Extensive mines
of coal are worked in ‘the vicinity. In a field on the
right-hand side of the road from Eppleton to Hetton
is a tumulus, consisting of a collection of small stones,
at the top of which iz a small oblong cavity, called
the Fairies’' Cradle.

HEUGH, a township in the parish of StamrorDn-
BAM, north-eastern division of TinpaLe ward, county
of NorTRUMBERLAND, 12} miles (N. W. by W.) from
Newcastle upon Tyne, containing 512 inhabitants,

HEVER, a parish in the hundred of SomrrbEN,
lathe of Surron at Hone, county of Kenr, 84 miles
(W. by 8.) from 'I‘tmbndﬁ containing 606 inhabitants.

living i# a rectory,m the peculiar jurisdiction of

‘Archbishop of Canterbury, rated in the king's
books at £15. 7. 3§. The Rev. T. Streatfeild was
pitron in 1799. The church, dedicated to St. Peter,

iins 8 magnificent monument of the Boleyne fa.

¥.. 'The vastle, the seat of that illustrious h
is & very'uncient building, defended by a moat, dgsw.-

; 'ﬂ:ﬂ ullis, and tower, and wuBtl;:ynrelideg of
SiFTH ' Boleyne, father of Ann Boleyne, quegn of

ity VIIT., 'who s stated to have been born “here,

e’ Antie of Cleves died : the chamber of Ann

,,.' § is' #till called by her name, and several other
atiots fneitientox’ are shewn to visitors.

"HEVERSHAM, a parish in KenpaL ward, county

of 'WirwfoRrLinp, temprising the chapelries of Cros-

With’ Lyth snd ‘Stainton, apd the townships of

i, Tieve wmw,m.

['aitd Sedgwviek; and containing, including the

381

HEW

whole of Levens, a small portion of which townskip'is
in Kendal parish, 3996 inhabitants, of which number,
1401 are in the joint township of Milnthorpe with He-
versham, 1§ mile (N.) from Milnthorpe, The living is a
vicarage, in the urchdeaconry of Richmond, and diocese
of Chester, rated in the king's books at £36. 13. 4.,
and in the patronage of the Master and Fellows of
Trinity College, Cambridge. The church, dedicated
to St.Peter, is a fine edifice in the early style of En-
glish architecture. The free grammar school was found-
ed in 1613, by Edward Wilson, Esq., who endowed it
with land now producing about £60 per annum, and
with two exhibitions to Queen's College, Oxford, one to
Trinity College, and one to Magdalenc College, Cam-
bridge: attached to the school is a library, founded, in
1766, by the associates of Dr, Wray; and in 182%,
£267. 11. was subscribed to rebuild the school-room
and a residence for the master. The school is open to
all the boys of the parish, and no charge is made but
for writing and arithmetic. 'This parish is bounded on
the north and on the west by the river Kent. The
learned Dr. Richard Watson, Bishop of Llandaff, was a
native of this place.

HEVINGHAM, or HEVENINGHAM, a parish in
the southern division of the hundred of ErpincrAM,
county of NorroLk, 3 miles (8. by E.) from Aylsham,
containing 744 inhabitants, The living is  discharged
rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Norwich,
rated in the king's books at £10. 16. George Anson,
Esq. was patron in 1787. The church is dedicated to
St. Botolph.

HEWELSFIELD, a parish in the hundred of Sr.
BriaveLLs, county of GLOUCESTER, 5} miles (N.N.E.)
from Chepstow, containing 434 inhabitants, The living
is a perpetual curacy, annexed to the vicarage of Lyd-
ney, in the archdeaconry of Hereford, and diocese of
Gloucester. The church is dedicated to St. Mary
Magdalene,

HEWICK-BRIDGE, a township in that part of the
parish of Ripon which is within the liberty of Rivon,
though locally in the lower division of the wapentake
of Claro, West riding of the county of Yorxk, 13 mile
(£.8.E.) from Ripon, containing 77 inhabitants.

HEWICK-COPT, a township in that part of the
parish of Riron which is within the liberty of Rirow,
though locally in the lower division of the wapen-
take of Claro, West riding of the county of York,
2 miles (E.) from Ripon, containing 131 inhabitants,

HEWISH, a parish in the hundred of Swanso-
ROUGH, county of WivLTs, 3 miles (N.N.W.) from Pew-
sey, containing 112 inhabitants. The living is a rec-
tory, in the archdeaconry of Wilts, and diocese of Sa.
lisbury, rated in the king's books at £8. 6. 8, and in
the patronage of the Trustees of the Froxfield alms-
houses. The church is dedicated to St. Nicholas, A
college, or almshouses, for thirty widows of laymen and
twenty of clergymen, was founded at Froxfield, in 1690,
by Satah, Duchess of Somerset, and endowed with the

s of this manor. _

HEWORTH, a hip in that part of the parishes
of 8tr. Curaszrr and St. GiLs, York, which is in
the wapentake of BuLuer, North riding of the county
of Yorg, 1 mile (N.E.) from York, containing 146 in-
habitants:

HEWORTH (NETHER), & chapelry in the parish of



JARROW, esstem division of Cagargme swand, county pale-
tine of Dunpan, 2% miles.(E.8. B.) from {ateshesd, con,
taining 8921 inhabitants. The chapel, erected by sub-
gcription in 1822, on the site of a former one, at an ex-
pense of £2026, contains one thousand four hundred
sittings, of which six hundred and eighty-seven are
free, the Incorporated Society for the enlargement of
churches and chapels having granted £5Q0 towards de-
fraying the expense. In the church-yard is an inscribed
abelisk recarding the names apd ages of ninety-one per-
sons who were killed by explosion of fire damp in Fel-
ling colliery, in 1812, and buried here side by side ; also
a tamb-stone in memory of Richard Dawes, A.M., au-
thor of Miscellanea Cridica, &c., pnd head master of the
grammar school at Newcastle, who spent g portion of the
lntter part of his life at this place, where he died. Here
are manufactories for copperas, earthenware, paper, and
ropes; also many ehip-yards, wherein are constructed
vessels of large hurden. The neighbourhood abounds
with coal pits. A few years since an earthen vessel wag
discovered, containing coing struck by Egfrid, one of
the Saxon kings of Northumherland. Here is n school
for boys and girls, with apartments for the master and
mistress.

HEXGRAVE-PARK, a township in the parish of
SovrEwrLL, liberty of SourswerL aud Scroosy,
county of NoTTingHAM, 4 miles (N. W.) from South-
well.  The population is returned with the parish. This
was formerly an extra-parqchiel liberty, haviug been,
prior to the Reformation, a park belonging to the
archiepiscopal palace of the see of York, at Southwel,
On the most elevated part of the township are the re-
mains of a very large camp, supposed to be Roman,
including a space of about forty acres, and command-
ing very extensive prospects : near it a brass celt was
found in 1800, and fragments of military weapons have
frequently been turned up by the plough.

HEXHAM, a parish in the southern divisiou of
TinpaLE ward, county of NORTHUMBERLAND, com-
priging the market town of Hexham, and the wards of
Gilligate, Hencaats, Market, and Priestpople, hesides &
district called Hexhamshire, in which are the townships
of High Quarter, Low Quarter, Middle Quarter (North),
Middle Quarter (South), aud West Quarter, and contain-
ing 5436 inhabitants, of which number, 4116 are in the
town of Hexham, 21 miles (W.) from Newcastle upon
Tyne, and 283 (N.N.W.) from London. The origin of this
place, which Camden supposes to have been the Azelodu-
num of the Romang, is, perhaps, with greater probahility,
referred to the Saxons, by whom it was called Hertoldes-
ham and Halgustad, from the neighbouring streams Hex-
tol and Halgut, from the former.of which its present name
is derived. Horsley refers the station of Azelvdunum to
Brough in Cumberland, and the supposition of Camden is

not confirmed by any Romen relics, except & few inscrib-
ed stones, which have been obviously t from some
other place. Ahout the year 678, Wi drchbishop

of York, having obtwined from sEthaIredn wife of Eg-
frid, King of Northumberland, a graut of thetown, and
a3 large acbommg tract, called Hexhamshize, fornded a
monastery and erected a church,which, sccording to
Richard of Hexham, was the wost heantiful and
ficent ecalesinstical edifice in: the: kingdem, - Wilkrid
-expelled from the .see of York, in 678, that pro
wince was divided, and Hexham wagerected into & see,
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which sontipyed, npder » regular successian of hishape,
for more than a century, till being united with |

farne, it eventually became 8 part of the see of |

Tilford, the last bishop, was expelled fram hjs hi!hﬁp-
rick in 821, by the Danes, who, about ﬁﬂyyma af
terwards, destruycd the monastery and plupdpresl the
town. The monastery was restored for Augystine ca-
nons, in 1112, and Hexham, together with Holme, was
appropriated to the endowment of a prebenda) stgll in the
LCuthedral Church of York. 1In 1138, the Scots, pnder
David I., pillaged the monastery, and, in 1296, agaip
attacking the towyn, burnt the monastery and the nave
of the conventual church., In the reign of llenry VIIL,
the last prior of Hexham having been involved jn the
insurrection called the Pilgrimage of Grace, was hunged
at the gate of the monastery in 1586 : at the dissoln-
tion, the revenue was £138. 1. 0.

Hexham possessed all the rights and privileges of
county palatine, which, with the jura regalia, were con-
firmed by Ldward l., during whose reign the town wags
again plundered by an army of forty thousand Scots,
under the command of David 1L, who was taken pri-
suner by Sir John Copeland, then sheriff of Northum-
berland, at the battle of Nevil's Cross. In 1463, the de-
cisive battle of Hexbam was fought on the plains near
the town, between the Yorkists and Lancastrians, in
which the former, commanded by Lord Montacute, de-
feated the latter, under the Duke of Somerset, who was
taken prisoner and beheaded at Hexham, A dr
ful riot happened here on the 9th of March, 1761,
when five thousand persons, principally miners, assem-
bled to obstruct the magistrates, who had met to su-
perintend a ballot for militia men. A party of the North
¥York nilitia was called in to support the civil authorities,
and one of their oflicers was murdered by some of the
infuriated mob, on which, the riot act haviug been read,
the soldiers were ordered to fire, when forty-eight per-
sons were killed, and three hupdred wounded. Several
of the rioters were subsequently apprebended, and one
of them was hanged at Morpeth. Hexham, with its ad-
Jjoining district, coming into the possession of the Crown
by an exchange with the Archbishop of York, was, in the
14th of Elizabeth, annexed to the connty of Northum-
berland. . . o

The town, whl,ch is irregulgrly built, consista of se-
veral spacious streets diverging from an extensive mar-
ket-place in the centre, p:.rlrmlly paved, and i
lighted by subscription : the inhabitants mre lﬂpﬂhﬂd
with water cogveyed from a considerable distance into
two reservoirs, provincially called pants, of which ogpe
was built by subscription, and thB other af the sole
charge of Robert Aligood, Esq, 1 The. bridge ovar ofhe
river Tyne, a bandeome stone mcm of nime prip-
mpal drchey, was eracted by two..country masons, from

by Mr. Rohert Mylne, the architect of Bnek-

._friars' bridge, London; on the south side are thrwe

to afford 3 speedier Pasenge to the wolers
flogds, for want of which: prmut.iqp fovr
pmcading bridges bavg been cumied away. . A mm .
sion bridge weg comstructed, ht&% over ‘-‘ha
Tyne, near. the western ferry, at an.expense of;
by Capt. Sapgmel Brown, B.N.; the span HM
and, 120 feet, @ad the breadth twagty foet,: Ak

measions of she piers ot the bese, are swenty-uight, ot f
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clght; feet Delow the btk of the river; dnd n Bridge of
swo arehes Imd baén recently érected at Qilligdte, where
the k' amd Covlkdhaw burns unite their streams.
A mechawied' fnsfitution, with a library of three hundred
anid fifty volumes, Was established in 1895, The prin-
cipal bvanches 6f trade are the dressing of leather and:
the meking 6f ploves, the town having long been m'
igh repute for the latter : tanning is also carried on to
a considerable exteit, and there are two woollen ficto-
ries; & madufactory for hats, and a brewery. Fhe Vale
of Hexhumy presents a rich laudscape of picturesque
scenery, being beautifully diversified with well-cultivated
fields, shrubberies, and pleasure grounds, and is redark-
sble for producing earlier crops than the surrounding.
diatrict : e considerable portion of the land: belongs to
the Commissioners of Greenwich Hospital. The market
days are Tucsday and Saturday, the former for corn ;
& large eattle market is also held every alternate
Tuesday, from- the end of February to Midsummer,
and: from October to Christmas : the market-house is &
neat drd commodions building, with a piaZza. The
fairs aré on August Gth' end November gth, for horses,
cattle, sheep, and swine, Though the town never
received a charter of incorporation, there are four
trading compénics, #iz,, weavers, dhoemakers, glovers,
ant hmtters, éxercising, by a kind of prescriptive
right, as great a control over those respective trades
ne iw generally practised in towns regularly incorpo-
rated. A bailiff, appointed: by the lord of the manor,
presides at thé manorial courts, and holds his office
generally for Kfe. A court of record is held twice in
the year, within & month after Easter and at Michael-
mas, for the recovery of debtd to any amount, at which
the steward of the mianor, who must be a barrister, pre-
siden; its jurisdietion: extends over the whole liberty,
comprising. the paristies of Hexhum, Allendale, and St.
John Lee, in Northuwmberland : & side court is aleo
held: four timés in the yelir, or oftener, if requisite, for
the recovery of debts umder 40s,; at which the bailiff
presides ; the jurisdiction of this court also extends ove,
the whole 1 . Courts leet and baron:are held here
for the manbr of Avrick-Gradge, which is partly within
thiw pavishi; as’ dfe &8 the Midsummer quarter ses-
sions for the courrty, dnd a petty session for Tindale ward,
-t the first Tuesdayid the month. The town-hall is an
aftcient edifice, forheMy' e court-house of the bishops
onsd pelors, in' whielt #A& manor courts and quarfer ses-
siodis' dre heid; end pHlsbiiers for debt are occasionally
coiifined:: af & SaW¥ digldnce from it isememcient tower,
supposet 76 HNE built’ for the dufence of the mo-
", aldioveNE used s the manor office; In Gilligate
“Mouse of correttion for' the county, which was re-
Puleid; with thie stlition: of a-sew Wing, a few years ago.
T living. v & vurecy with that of Whit.
Joyt; B the' pecnliwe jurisdictlon of the Archbishop of
Yok endewed with £420private benefaction, £400 royal
Vonaty did 8090 patifamentary grant, sud in the pa-'
tonage o Coloned and' Mre: Braumont. In 1623, the
chwputithey of mide, which formerly belonged ty
the ahbep, were fél for the! Mercers' Compdny, by Mr.
Ridhead R st tousd for the endowrhent of a
letturenliip..« churoly; dedicated to St. Andrew, is-
part of the' culfvtotudl church of the monastery, built’
i the dite-of Yeeanciedt tathedral, s spacious crivi-
form stvasture, «ifhibititg portiony in variouws styks of
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English architecture, with a tower Fising from the' in<
terséction of the transepts and the cloir; the nave,
burnt by the Scots in 1296, has mot been rébuilt;
thee choir ix separated from the tramseptd by o derédrd
of wooll richly carved in the lower part, and orns-
mented in the upper with an allegoricel puinting of
the Dance of Death; the choir, of which the¢ roof
is very lofty and panellied with oek, is separated from
its aistes, which are groined, by ranges of clustered
columns, above which are the triforium and cleresto-
ry, the drches of the former springing from a second:
tigr* of clustered columns, and thé windows of the
latter séparated hy plain masonry, On the sonth side
of the altar, which is lighted with a large east window
of elegant tracery, but disfigured by an' incongruous
embellishment of Grecian srchitectural pamting, is a
gallery of osk, heautifully carved, beneath which are’
three stalls highly enrithed with tahernacle - work,
and on the north side is & shrine, or oratory, in the
decorated stylé of English architecture, exquisitely
ornamented with' foliated arches, tracery, and figuries,
supposed to have been ereéted for Prior Richerd; of Hex-
ham, to whom also is attributed a recumbent fizure on
an dltar-tomb adjacent ; among the moduments is one
said by Penrtant and otheérd to be that of Elfwald, a
Northumbrian king, who was killed in 788, but - its style
appears to be of the thirteenth century; and on an al-
tar-tomb ie the figure of an' armed: knight, cross-legged!
with a shield of arms identifying him' a8 one of the
baronial family of Umfraville, though the effigy is sup-
posed by Wallis' the historian to be that of the Duke of
Somerdet, executed at Hexham. There are places of wort
ship for Independents and Wesleyan Methodists, besidés
a Scottish church and two Roman Catholic chapels, i’
both of which latter the aitar-pieces are embellished with
finc paintings of the Crocifixion. The grammiar sclivel
was founded in 1599, by Queen Elizabeth, who plated-it
under the control of an incorporated body of governors:
it has but a trifiing endowmeént, the master being paid
by the pupils: A National schodl, founded in 1813; in
which three hundred children of botl sexes aré instroett:
ed, is supported by subscription. Near a spot cdlled
St. Mary’s Chare are some remains of the ancient
church founded: by Wilfrid in' 678, and dedicated to the
Blessed Virgin. John, Prior of Hexham, in‘the twelfth
century, wrote the histo¥y of tHe reipn of Henry If. »
and his successor, Richard of Hexham, wag the a
thor of several historical works. Josepl Richardson;
the deatrdtist, who died in 1803, was' & native of Hex:
ham; dnd John Tweddel, born in 1769, at Threbpwood,
nedt this place, greatly distinguished himself a¥ a
clasiiedl gcholdr and entiquary, and died, in 1799, at
Athenis, while travelling to quslify himself for e diplo:
mhtié ethployment: .
HEXTHORP, & joint township with Balby, in thit'
part of the parish of Doncawrer which id within' the'
goke of Doncadrer, though locally in the dorthery di-
vigion of the wapentake of SrrarronTs aud Ticx#ivy,
West riding of the county of Yorx, 1} mile' (8.W.)
front Doncaster] containing 392 ithabitintsl
HEXTON, a pérish in the hundred of Cxswtid, or
libetty of Sv. Avsun's; county of Hewrrow'd, 5} milés
(W. by N.) frotd Hitehin, contalning 388 idhabitants.
The livirig i6'a didcharpéd vivarage, in the archdeaténry
of St. Mbeli's; and dodesd’ of on, ratéd in the
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king's books at £7. 13, 4., endowed with £400 royal
bounty, and in the patronage of Joseph Andrew Lau-
tour, Esq. The church is dedicated to St, Faith. A
complete intrenchment, called Ravensburgh castle, oc-
cupies a site of about twelve acres, on the south-west
side of this perish. The Iknield-street passes through
the parish. Springs of water, slightly chalybeate, con-
stantly descend from a hill here, 8o as to form a river in
Hexton park, and turn a mill. Quantities of gold and
silver coins, principally Roman and Saxon, have been
found. Courts leet and baron are held annually.

HEXWOOD, a tything in the parish of CumnER,
hundred of HorMER, county of Berks, containing 7
inhabitants,

HEY, a chapelry in the parish of AsaTon under
Ling, hundred of SaLrorp, county palatine of Lan-
CasTER, 2 miles (E.) from Oldham. The population
is returned with the parish. The living is a perpetual
curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Chester,
endowed with £200 private benecfaction, £200 royal
bounty, and £800 parliamentary graent, and in the
! of the Rector of Ashton under Line. The
chapel is dedicated to St, John,

HEYBRIDGE, a parish in the hundred of THUR-
BTABLE, county of Essex, 1 mile (N.N.E.) from Maldon,
containing 868 inhabitants. The living is a vicarage,
rated in the king's books at £ 10, and in the peculiar
jurisdiction and patronage of the Dean and Chapter of
St. Paul's, London, The church is dedicated to St. An-
drew. The Chelmer navigation has much improved the
trade of this place, by means of a canal vhich passes
through the parish, and separates it from Northey island,
on the Blackwater river; its buildings have likewise
considerably increased in number. The bridge was
erected by Henry VI. A causeway was constructed
between Heybridge and Maldon before the time of
Edward II.

HEYDON, a parish in the southern division of
the hundred of ErpinGHAM, county of NoRroLE, 3§
miles (N.N. E.) from Reepham, containing 333 inha-
bitants. The living is a rectory with Irmingland, in
the archdeaconry and diocese of Norwich, rated in the
king's books at £9. 16. 105. W. W. Bulmer, Esq. was
patron in 1786. The church is dedicated to St. Peter.

HEYFORD (LOWER), a perish in the hundred of
ProveHLEY, county of OxForp, 6 miles (W.N.W.) from
Bicester, containing 495 inhabitants. The living is &
rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Oxford,
rated in the king's bouks at £10. 18, 14., and in the pa-
tronage of the President and Fellows of Corpus Christi
College, Oxford. The church is dedicated to St. Mary,

HEYFORD (NETHER), a parish in the hundred of
NosoTTLE-GROVE, county of NORTHAMPTON, 7 miles
(W. by &) from Northampton, containing 422 inhabit-
ants. The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of
Northampton, and diocese of Peterborough,. rated in
the king's books at £8. 10. 6. . The Rev. J. L. Gpawley
was patron in 1809. The churchijis dedicated Mg St.
Peter and St. Paul. A school for the children sof
Upper and Nether Heyford, and all of the name of
Bliss within five miles, was.endowed by W Bl
with a bequest of £400, but at what period is:a
known. The Grand Junction esnsl passes thr
the ;parish, and on its soutem;feendary
Watling - street. Dy. John. .Bym
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Patriarch of the Puritans, was born here in 1587.

HEYFORD (UPPER), a parish in the hundred of
NosorrLE-GrovE, county of NorTHAMYPTON, 6} miles
(W.) from Northampton, containing 122 inbabitants, °

HEYFORD (WARREN, or UPPER), a parish in
the hundred of PLoUGHLEY, county of Oxronp, 6 miles
(N.W. by W.) from Bicester, containing 257 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Oxford, rated in the king's books at £183. 16. 0.,
and in the patronage of the Warden and Fellows of
New College, Oxford. The church is dedicated to St,
Mary.

HEYHOUSES, a township in that part of the pa-
rish of WrALLEY which is in the higher division of the
hundred of BLACKBURN, county palatine of LANCAsTER,
34 miles (8.E.) from Clitheroe, containing 167 inhabitants.

HEYSHAM, a parish in the hundred of LonspaLg,
south of the sands, county palatine of LAncasTER, 5
miles (W,) from Lancaster, containing 540 inhabitants,
The living is u rectory, in the archdeaconry of Rich-
mond, and diocese of Chester, rated in the king's books
at £8. 9. 2., and in the patronage of the Rev. T, Yates
Ridley. The church, dedicated to St. Peter, is an an-
cient edifice placed on the summit of a rock. A sum
was given by Robert Thompson, in 1817, for the instruc-
tion of children, which produces £8. 9. per annum.
On the hill above the church are the remains of an an-
cient oratory, dedicated to St. Patrick. In the church-
yard are several coflin-like excavations in the solid rock,
in the shape of the human body. In High Heysham
are the remains of a Roman Catholic chapel, which
originally belonged to the Stanley family. :

HEYSHOT, a parish in the hundred of Eass-
BOURNE, rape of Cuicresrer, county of Sussex, 24
miles (8. by E.) from Midhurst, containing 309 inhabit-
ants. The living is a rectory with Stedhamn, in the
archdeaconry and diocese ot Chichester. The church has
portions in the decorated and later styles of English
architecture. The Rother, or Arundel, navigation passes -
on the north of this parish,

HEYTESBURY, a bo-
rough, formerly a market-
town, in the hundred of Hey-
TESBURY, county of WiLTs,
3% miles (E. 8. B.) from War-
minster, and 93 (W. 8. W.)
from London, containing
1329 inbabitants, The an-
cient appellations of this
town were Hegiredesbyrig and
Heightsbury, whence is ob-
viously derived its present
name, During the contest be
tilda, the empress is said to ¥
here. - The town I:f situated in- at
south-west verge of Salisbury il
ern bank of the small river .
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ineurried - on ito- & considerdble extent; the
of the sver 'affording: d Hucility for the “erec-
tion ‘of mills and factories : there are two mamufac-
tories, vde for Broad cleth, €he other both -for cloth
atd derseymere;  one of the proprietors having elso an_
egbensive establishment: at Upton, about a mile and =
half: distant, where the arti¢cles are finished. The
of ‘perwons employed in the various branches of
the trade amouuté to about eight hundred. There is
o small fair on May 14th, for cattle, sheep, &c. Heytes-
biry is & borough: by prescription, but not incorpo-
rated : it first sent members to parliament in the 28th
of. Henry V1., since which time two have been regu-
larly returned. The right of election is in the burgage-
bolders, about thirty-thrée in number, and the returning
officer is the bailiff, who is appointed by Lord Heytes-
bury, as lord of the manor, his lordship also appointing
the bailiff of the hundred, which is co-extensive with
the manor. A court leet is held annually at Michael-
mas, ‘at which two constables and two tythingmen for
the town, and similar officers for the hundred, are ap-
pointed. Heytesbury is within the jurisdiction of a
eourt of requests held at Warminster, for the recovery
of debts to the amount of £5.

* The living is a perpetual curacy, in the peculiar juris-
diction and patronage of the Dean of Sarum, endowed
with £ 1000 private benefaction, £1000 royal hounty,
and £ 600 parliamentary grant. The church, situated in
the centre of the town, is a spacious, massive, cruciform
structure, with a square tower at the intersection: in
the choir are fourteen very ancient oak stalls. 1t was
made collegiate about the year 1165, by Josceline, Bishop
of@alisbury, and was rebuilt by Thomas, Lord Hunger-
ford, in 1404; there were formerly two chantries, to
which are now attached the prebends of Tytherington,
Homningsham, Hill-Deverll, and Swallowclif. There
is-a place of worship for Independents. An hospital,
begun by Robert, Lord Hungerf:

%

ord, was completed and
eadowed, pursuant to his will, by his widow Margaret,
Lady Hungerford and Botseaux, who, ahout 1472, amor-
tized the manors of Cheverell-Burnell and Cheverell-
Hales for the latter purpose, The design of the institu-
tion was $b maintain a custos (who was to be a priest
in foll'orders, &nd to teach grammar), twelve poor
pen, and ofie ‘Woman, nine of whom are nominated

j'the Liord of the Munor, and three from the parish

ACheverell, By the 11th of Edward IV. this-endow-
misgit - was . confirmed, and the society invested: with

péwie t4 hold Jands, to plead and be impleaded, and
b e s b seal, &c., by the title of “The Cus-
Mm* en and Women of the Hospital of Walter

it Robiint;: late Yiords of Hungerford and Heytes-
s b ihe dissolation, it being discovered that dai-
satere’ divooted for the wouls of the founders,
2o ¥he csbtn on the plea of superstitiode
. geainted, ‘with all its possessions, to Sir
. 3 in the: of Mary it was restored,
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ment of ‘the foundress, snd a ‘revision of them is/now
im: contemplation,  The putromage s vested st the
Chancellor of Sarum, if resiflent, otherwise in ‘the
Dean and Chapter: the present custos is the incum-
bent of the collegiate church. The seversl annual
salwries are, £60 to the custos and £40 to the suh-custos,
whose offices are now united; that of the schoolmaster
is not paid, the school having ceased to exist for nearly
a century. All the buildings and furniture of the hos-
pital were destroyed hy a fire which occurred in 1765,
and which consumed nearly two-thirds of the town;
but the whole was rebuilt in a very substantial manner.,
The original costume of the poor men was a scarlet
gown, or cloak, with the greek characters 1.H. E. in hlack
on the back, and X.P.%, on the breast ; and to this has
been recently added a complete suit of blue cloth, with u
red cross on the left breast of the cuat. The hospital pos-
sesses the two manors of Cheverell-Burnell and Cheverell-
Hales, or Cheverell-Magna, with twenty loads of wood
yearly from Southley, which last is now commuted for
an annual payment of £14; also certain closes of lund
in Warminster, and an allowance of wheat yearly from
lands in Upton-Scudamore, the gift of another branch
of the Hungerford family; in addition to these are the
manor of Churton, purchased many years since with
the surplus funds of the hospital, and other more
recent but very considerable purchases. On the summit
of Cotley hill, north-westward from the town, is a large
tumulus, surrounded by a circular ditch and low vallam,
and on another hill in the vicinity is the large ancient
encampment, called Scratchbury Camp, so named from
the British word Crech, signifying a hill ; the cireuit of
its rampart is one mile and eighty-six yards, and its
greatest height sixty-six feet, including an area of forty
acres. Mr. William Cunnington, an industrions an-
tiquary, was long a resident at this place, where he
died and was interred in 1810. Heytesbury confers the
title of baron on the family of A‘Court.

HEYTHORP, aparish in the hundred of Woorron,
county of Oxrorp, 3} miles (E. by N.) from Chipping-
Norton, containing, with the hamlet of Dunthorp, 136
inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the archdea-
conry and diocese of Oxford, rated in the king's books
at £7. 11. 10}. Mrs. Vernon was patroness in 1800,
The church is dedicated to St. Nicholas,

HEYWOOD, a chapelry in that part of the parish
of Bury which is in the hundred of SALroRD, county
palatine of Lancaster, 24 miles (E.) from Bury, with
which the population is returned. The living is a per-
petual curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Ches-
ter, endowed with £400 private benefaction, £600 royal
bounty, and £1200 parliamentary grant. The Rev.
G. Hornby was patron in 1823. The chapel contains
three hundred free sittings, towards defraying ghe ex-
pense ‘of which the Incorporated Society for the eénlarpe.-
ment of churches and chapels contributed £400. There
ave piwtes of worship for Independents, Wesleyan Me-
thodisd, and Swedenborgians. In 1737, James Lan.
callsire bequeathed £50 towards estsblishing a school

chm & school-house and a rent-charge
per : were likewise conveyed to trustees,
james Starky, as also & bequest of £50, the interest
in aid of the children'; twenty ghildven
at¥ taught by a scheolmistress, who has the wse of »
house rent-frge and & Mﬂ-ﬁswgm y 40u are
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applied annually for the benefit of the children. A
National school is supported by voluntary contributions.
Here are extensive manufactories for cotton and woollen
goods.

HIBALSTOW, a parish in the eastern division of
the wapentake of ManLeY, parts of Linpsey, county
of Linconn, 3% miles (S.W. by 8,) from Glandford-
Bridge, containing 522 inhabitants, The living is
discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Stow, and
diogese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £7. 10,
The Rev. J. De Chair was patron in 1814, The church
is dedicated to St. Hibald; the chancel and lower part
of the tower are in the early English style, and the other
parts of more modern architecture, There is a place
worship for Wesleyan Methodists. The Roman road of
from Lincoln to the Humber passes through the parish;
and ahout a mile eastward from the church, foundations
of buildings, tiles, coins, and other Roman relics, have
been discovered.

HIBBURN, county of NORTHUMBERLAND., — See
HEBBURN,

HICKLETON, o parish in the novthern division of
the wapentake of Strarrortn and TicsHILL, West
riding of the county of Youk, 6 miles (W. by N.) from
Doncaster, comprising the township of Hickleton, and
containing 153 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual
curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of York, en-
dowed with £600 private benefaction, and £ 1200 royal
bounty, G.W.Wentworth, Esq. was patron in 1817.
The church is dedicated to St. Denis.

HICKLING, a parish in the hundred of Harring,
county of Norrork, 10§ miles (E. N. E.) from Coltishall,
containing 679 inbabitants. The living is a discharged
vicurage, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese of
Norwich, rated in the king's books at £5. 3. 4., en-
dowed with £200 private henefaction, and £400 royal
bounty, N. Micklethwayte, Esq. was patron in 1811,
The church is dedicated to St. Mary. A priory of Black
canons, dedicated to the Virgin Mary, St. Augustine,
and All Saints, was founded, in 1185, by Theobald de Va-
lentia, or Valoins, the revenue of which at the disso-
lution was valued at £137, 0. 1.

HICKLING, a parish in the southern division of the
wapentake of Binemawm, county of NorrinemAM, 8}
miles (N.W. by N,) from Melton-Mowbray, containing
497 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the arch-
deaconry of Nottingham, and diocese of York, rated in
the king's books at £18, 8. 4., and in the pa of
the President and Fellows of Queen's College, Cam-
bridge. The church, dedicated to St.Luke, is a hand-
some ancient structure, with a quadrangular tower : the
lid of a stone coffin, curiously inscribed with Runic cha-
racters, has been discovered in the chancel. Here is
a plucg of worship for Wesleyan Methodists, The
Grantham canal passes through the parish, and crosses
the northern boundary into Leicestershire, e years
ﬁ several Roman coins wage dug up om Standard

» 80 called ﬁvmamdnrd,orpnﬁ,hwingbeen
formerly erected on it. - NG

HIDCOATE-BATRIM, a hamlet in hc‘glﬂlh of
MicxreroN, upper division of the hundred of Kirrs-
€47x, county of GLovossTEw, § miles (N.E.) from
_____ bipping-Campden, The populetior is returaed with
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parish of Hunazrroro, hundred of KINTBURY-HAGLE,
county of Berxs, € miles (N. E.) from Hungerford, con-
taining 421 ighabitants, ” _

HIDE (WEST), a parochial cha in the pari
of Stoxr Eprry, hundred of RaopLow, county of Herz-
PORD, 8 miles (E.N.E.) from Hereford, containing 193
inhabitants, The living is a perpetual curacy, with
the rectory of Stoke-Edith, in the archdeaconry .and
diocese of Hereford. :

HIENDLEY (COLD), a joint township with Haver-
croft, in the parish of FELkirRK, wapentake of StAiN-
cross, West riding of the county of Yonk, 5% miles
(S.E. by 8.) from Wakefield, containing 189 inhabit-
ants.

HIENDLEY (SOUTH), a township in the parish
of FeLkirk, wapentake of Staincross, West riding of
the county of YORK, 7 miles (N.E.) from Bmer;%ey,
containing 166 inhabitants.

HIGHAM, a hamlet in the parish of SmIRLAND,
hundred of ScarspaLk, county of Dersy, 164 miles
(N. by E.)) from Derby, containing 591 inhabitants,
Higham is s place of great antiquity: it is situated
upon the Roman Iknield-street, and had formerly a
market ; fairs for cattle are held on the first Wedneaday
after New year's day, and on February 27th., Many of
the inhabitants are employed in weaving stockings and
in the adjoining bleaching-grounds. _

HIGHAM, a parish in the hundred of SmamMwELL,
lathe of Avresromrp, county of Kext, 41 miles (N.
N. W.) from Rochester, containing 568 inhabitants,
The living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Rochester, rated in the king's books at £8. 10,, and
in the patronage of the Master and Fellows of St. John's
College, Cumbridge. The church is dedicated to' St
Mary. The river Thames bounds the parish on the
north, and the Thames and Medway canal is conducted
into the adjoining parish of Frindsbury by a tunmel two
miles and a guarter in length. One of the pensioners in
Cobham College is to be selected from €mong the inha-
bitants. Gad's hill, mentioned by Shakspeare in his
play of Henry IV, is in this parish. A nunnery of the
Benedictine order, dedicated to the Blessed Virgin Mary,
was founded here, before 1151, by King Stephen, whose
daughter Mary, afterwards abbees ‘'of Romsey, begame
one of the nuns : it was suppressed by Fisher, Bishop of
Rochester, in the 13th of Henry VIIL., and given by, the
mthehim and Fellog of St.John's Colle

HII’J‘E}‘%CAM, a parish in the hundred of Bamromp,
county of Surrorx, 43 miles (8.) frnqr}{lild’lglgh, con-
taining 262 inhabitants. The living is a. discharges
vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Suffolk, and diocese gf
Norwich, rated in the king's hogka st £5. 6.8., endomd

with £3210 private behefactio, #d. £200 royal b
and in the patronaguiof certain Feolfoss. The
is dedicated to St, Mary. . The navigable river
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bounded on ‘the north-east by the Roman Wafling-

HIGHAM on the HILL, a parish in the hundred of
SprarxENEOE, county of LercesTer, 3% miles (W. by
N.) from Hinckley, containing, with the hamlet of Lind-
ley, B33 inhabitante. The living is a rectory, in the
archdeaconry of Leicester, and diocese of Lincoln, rated
in the king's books at £7. 9. 4}. Thomas Fisher, Esq.
was patron in 1792, The church is dedicated to St.
Peter. The Ashby de la Zouch canal passes through
the parish. In 1607, a great many silver coins of the
reign of Henry I1I were discovered, on turning up a
large stone which lay at the intersection of Watling-
street with another road leading to Coventry: several
Roman coins, a gold ring with a ruby, another with an
agate, and a third of silver, with an Arabic inscription,
were found here about the same period.

HIGHAM-BOOTH, a township in that part of the
parish of WrHALLEY which is in the higher division of
the hundred of Brackrurny, county palatine of Law-
CASTER, 4} miles (N, W.) from Burnley, containing 891
inhabitants. There is a place of worship for Wesley-
an Methodists.

HIGHAM-DYKES, a township in the parish of
PonTrELAND, western division of CasTLE ward, county
of NORTHUMBERLAND, 10 miles (N. W.) from Newcastle
upon Tyne, mm;ammg 23 inhabitants.

YN HIGHAM-FERRERS, a
borough and parish (former-
ly a market town) possessing
&) separate jurisdiction, though

>y Jocally in the hundred of
J)Higham - Ferrers, county of

g/ NorTHAMPTON, 154 miles
%Y (E.N.E.) from Northampton,
and 65 (N.N.W.) from Lon-
don, conteining 877 inha-
bitants, The town derives
its distinguishing appellation

Corpouh Seal o
from the ancjent family of Ferrers, who were its lords,
and had & castle here. The name Highan is said to be
a contraction of High-ham, denoting the elevated situa-
tion of the place, which stands on a rocky eminence

abounding with eprings, about 'h.al’f' a mile from the

north-eastern bank of the nauga'ble river Nen, and

consiets chiefly of ts, with a mark e, in

which stands a cros#; its elevated site m it

clesn and healthy. It.is supposed to huve been for-

na‘ly mnch larger than it now is, having possessed, at

, three weekly markets, not one of which, for

ﬁe tharty years, has been held. The chief bu-
“#kmeus consists in making boots, shues, and hobbin-lace,

ﬂve mmal fairs, ni;.;‘pn March 7th, June
_ 5th, October 11th,

'bd‘ore A
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ally before the expiration of the term of his office ;
and he and hie predecessor are justices of the peace.
There iz a court of record, for the recovery of debts
under £40, called the “ Three Weeks' court,” from the
period of its recurrence; but it is now held and that
anly for the sake of form, once a year, three weeks after
the election of the mayor, when the constables are sworn
in. The town-hall was crected by the corporation in
1812, near the site of a prior one, which had fallen into
decay. This borough has sent a representative to par-
liament since the third year of Philip and Mary : the
right of election is vested in the body carporate and the
resident freemen of the borough, the freedom of which
i inherited by birth, and acquired by servitude, or gift
from the corporation. The number of voters is about
forty, and the mayor is the returning officer: the pa-
tronage of the borough is possessed by Earl Fitzwil-
liam.

The living is a vicarage not in charge, with the
perpetual curacy of Chelveston, in the archdeaconry of
Northampton, and diocese of Peterborough, and in the
patronage of Earl Fitzwilliam. The church, dedicated
to the Virgin Mary, is a handsome building, displaying
the various styles of English architecture: it consists
of two naves, with north and south aisles, and a chancel
separated l:y & decorated screen; on each side of the
chancel are stalls, with curious emblematical devices:
at the weet end is a poreh, much ornamented with sculp-
ture, also an embattled tower, from which rises a finely-
proportioned octagonal crocketed spire ; the latter hav-
ing fallen down, with part of the tower, was rchuilt in
1632, by subscription, to which Archbishop Laud was a
liberal contributor: the church contains some ancient
monuments and sepulchral brasses. There is a place
of worship for Wesleyan Methodists. A free grammar
school has long existed here: it was founded by Arch-
hishop Chichele, in 1420, who left an endowment of
about £10 a year, to which Earl Fitzwilliam adds £10
more, as a salary for the master, but the school has of
lute yecars fallen into decay: the appouintment of the
master is vested in the corporation. The school-house
is a handeome stone building, situated at the north-west
end of the church, and having an embattled parapet.
An almshouse, or bead-house, on the south side of the
church, was also founded and endowed by Archbishop
Chichele, for twelve poor men and one woman : the te-
nements are now occupied by men and women, each of
whom receives sevenpence a week, and an annual al-
lowance of ten shillings, for what was originally termed
“ghaving and lamp money.” Some remsins of an
sucient college are still discernible, but in a ruinous
gtate: a portion of them was a few years ago converted
into a dwelling-house. On the north side of the church
is a spot called Castle-yard, the site of an ancient castle;
some parts of the moat, and a few traces of the funn
dations, are remaining.  Archbishap Chichele,
patron of literature in the reign of HenryV,, mg:;‘n
here in 1362,

HIGHAM-GOBION, a parish in the hundred of
PrrrT, county of Beprorp, 24 miles (8.E. by 8.) from
Silsoe, containing 86 inhabitants, The living is a ree-
tory, in the archdeaconry of Bedford, and diocese of
Lincoln, rated iy the king's books at" £8 9.7. R. Lee,
Esq. was patron in 1812, -The church, dedicated to St.
Margaret, contains a monument 6 the memory of Dr,
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Edmund Castell, a learned orientalist, author of the Lexi-
con Heptaglotton, and a principal in the publication of
the Polyglott Bible; he was born at Hatley, in Cam-
bridgeshire, in 1606, was for several years rector of this
parish, and a Prebendary in the Cathedral Church of
Canterbury ; be died here at the age of seventy-nine,
having lost his sight some time previously, caused, as it
is related, by incessant study.

HIGHAM-GREEN, & hamlet in the parish of
GazeLey, partly in the hundred Lackrorp, but
chiefly in that of Rissripee, county of Surrork, 63
miles (E. by N.) from Newmarket, containing 270 inha-
bitants.

HIGHAM-PARK, an extra-parochial liberty, in the
hundred of HiGHAM-FERRERS, county of NorTHAMP-
TON, 34 miles (8. 8. E.) from Higham-Ferrers, contain-
ing 14 inhabitants.

HIGHAMPTON, county of Devon.—See HAMP-
TON (HIGH).

HIGHCLERE, a parish in the hundred of Evincar,
Kingsclere division of the county of Sournamrron, #§
miles (N. by W.) from Whitchurch, containing 457 in-
habitants. The living is a rectory, in the peculiar juris-
diction of the incombent, rated in the king's books at
£7.13. 9. The Earl of Carnarvon was patroun in 1825,
The church, dedicated to St. Michael, was rebuilt in
the time of Charles 1L by Sir Robert Sawyer, Attorney
General in that and the succeeding reign, who was
buried here. A National school has heen established,
and is®supperted partly by subscription, and partly
from an annuity of about £4. 4., the moiety of certain
dividends bequeathed by the Rev. Archibald Gardner.
Highclere is within the jurisdiction of the Cheyney
Court held at Winchester every Thursday, for the reco-
very of debts to any amount. It was anciently part of
the bishoprick of Winchester, and is recorded as such
in Domesday-book. The bishops had a palace here, in
which they occasionally resided, until the bailiwick held
by them was, in the reign of Edward VI., dismembered
by Bishop Poynet, and vested in the crown. Upon the
site of the originai edifice, which stood in a well-wooded
and beautiful park, upwards of thirteen miles in cir-
cumference, is a fine mansion, erected by the Hon,
Robert Herbert, and greatly enla.rged by the Earl of
Carnarvon, his descendant ; and just without the park
gate is Beacon hill, on the level summit of which is
an ancient encampment. Ona plain, about a mile from
thie camp, are some tumuli, or barrows, of consider-
able size, with three smaller ones. A mile and a half
eastward from Beacon hill, on an eminence called Ladle
Hill, is a circular intrenchment, enclosing an area of
about eight acres; southward from this are three. bar-
rows; and at a short distance towards the north-
north-east, on the declivity of thehill, is another small
ciceular work, pitched entirely with flint-stones. Dr.
Jeremish Miller, a leameduﬁqany mhamhu’em
1713; “he died in 1784.

HIGHEAD, or IVEGILL, & ehapairy in tlw parish.

of Davsron, ward and county of CuMBERTLAND, ¢ mniles

(8.by W.) from Dalston, canmiag 129 iahmu.
'ﬂu‘by!iv Ii‘: y-in the an
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liam L'Englise, -and anciently +to the lordsof
the manor: near it, situated on the brow of a .
eminence, are the gatewsy-tower, a terret, and othey
renfhins of Highead castle, the ancient residence bf
the Richmond family, now a farm-hom

HIGHGATE, a chapelry partly in the parigh of Sr.
Pancras, Holborn division of the hundred of Qssvr-
STONE, but chiefly in the parish of Honxsxy, Finsbury
division of the same hundred, county of MippLESEX, 4
miles (N.) from London. The population is returned
with the respective parishes in which it is situated. This

. village is =aid to have taken its name from a toll-gate

erected on the brow of the hill, near the site of an ancient
hermitage, by one of the bishops of London, on the
construction of a new road leading from the metropolis
towards the north of England. The ‘hill on which it
stands is four hundred feet above the summit of St.
Paul's cathedral, and it affords many extensive and beau-
tiful prospects of London and the neighbouring country.,
In the village and its vicinity are several handsome
houses aud detached villas : the streets, which are not
paved, are lighted with oil, and the inhabitants are sup-
plied with water chiefly from wells. After various at-
tempts to render the ascent up Highgate hill, over which
the old road passes, less diflicult and dangerous, by rais-
ing the road in some parts, and lowering it in others,
which produced only a partial improvement, a scheme
was projected in the year 1809, by Mr. Robert Vazie, an
engineer, for forming a subterraneous arched tumnel,
twenty-four fect wide, eighteen high, and three hundred
yards in length, through the body of the hill, and an act
of parliament was obtained, incorporating the proprie-
tors a body politic, by the style of *“ The Highgate Areh-
way Company,” and authorising them to raize £ 40,000,
by transferable shares of £50 each, with an additional
sum of £20,000, if necessary; the work was come
menced, and the tunnel constructed to the length of about
one hundred and thirty yards, when the whole fell in
with a tremendous crash, on the morning of the 13th of
April, 1812. The plan was then altered, and a road in
the line of the intended tunnel was formed : this road,
by which upwards of one hundred yands are saved, and
the hill and village both evoided, was opened on the
21st of Augugt,-1813: it passes under an arch,vver
which Hornsey-lane, an ancient cross road, is continted.
The foundation stone of the arch was laid Gctobe8ist,
1812 : it is built of stone, flanked with hmiak-nuk, and-
surmounted by three semi-arches ing & bridge,
with open battlements of stone, which the lsne:

pesees, and is about thirty-six feet in height, and haif as.
much in width. During the progress
for the tunnel, various fossils and:other
were discovered in the strata,

fosil teeth,
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fountied as:a chapel of ense 10 the church at Hornsey,
prior to 1568, the Bishop of London, as lord of
the manor of Homsey, and proprietor of the chapel,
granted it, with other property, in trust, to Sir thr
Cholmeley, for the endowment of ‘a free grammar school,
to which it has ever since been attached, the schoolmas-
ter being the minister of the chapel. An act of parlia-
ment has recently been passed for the erection of & new
church, and for making Highgete a separate district,
Here are places of worship for Baptists, Independents,
and Wesleyan Methodists, In 1565, Queen Elizabeth
issued lettera patent for the foundation of a free gram-
mar school, by Sir Roger Cholmeley, Chief Justice of
the Queen's Bench, who endowed it with landed pro-
perty vested in six wardens, or governors: the pre-
sent income is about £600 per annum, from which
the master receives a salary of £200, but the school
is conducted by an assistant with a small stipend : in
1619 a new school-room was erected, at an expense of
£697, in which ahout one hundred boys are instructed
on the National system : in 1822, proceedings were in-
stituted in the Court of Chancery against the governors
and the master, to compel them to restore the grammar
school to its original p ; and, in consequence of
the decree of the Lord Chancellor, that the institution
should be again made a free grammar school, it is ex-
pected that the Nationul school will be removed to some
other part of the village, and the free school re-esta-
hlished, according to the directions of its founders. A
charity school for girls was established in 1719, in
which twenty-six girls are educated, twenty of them
being also clothed from the funds of the charity, which
inclade £35 per annum, permanent revenue, and about
£76 per annum, arising from voluntary contributions :
the mistress har a salary of £26 per annum, besides oc-
casional gratuities. In Hornsey-lane is a National school
for girls belonging to Highgate and Holloway; and
there is also an infant school. Almshouses for six poor
women were founded pursuant to a bequest by Sir John
Waollaston, in 1658, and endowed with a rent-charge of
£18. 10.; and six more almshouses for poor women,
with an endowment of £30 per annum, were founded by
Edward Pauncefort, Esq,, who rebuilt the preceding
almshouses, and by will, in 1793, left property for the
sapport of this charity and the girls' school, with £10
per apnuin to the minister, which, with other benefac-
tions to the , is vested in the governers of the
free school. An hospital for lepers was foanded on the
lower part of Highgate hill, by William Poole, yeoman of
tha erown in the reign of Edward IV,, which continued
watil the time of Henry VIIL, and is supposed to have
ogeupied a site now called Lazarets, or Lazarcut-field,
.w‘;l I ﬂu

«atdne.
LAWS, a township in that part of the parish

tfBsarwunn which is in the western division of Moae«

m{"« ward, county of NomTmUM “midm’bi‘t}a&n miles
&) from/ Motpeth, containing 27 inhabitants.

R , 8 parigh in the handred of Spesswsone;

: The diving is a vicarage, in
‘ ‘ ; of -Balop, lﬂdﬂioea;d.’l{udm&,

ol ‘48 :5he ding's: hooks st £85. 10.° . Fleming,
LBuBwiun petton 42 1790 The church is dedicated
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dred of Hicu Prak, county of Deray, 3} miles V. by
W.) from Stoney-Middleton, containing 36 inhabitants.

HIGHNAM, a hamlet in that part of the parish of
Crurcuam which is in the lower division of the hun-
dred of Dunsrone und King's Bawrown, county of
GrovcesTeRr, 2% miles (N. W. by W.) from Gloucester,
containing, with the hamlets of Linton and Over, 252
inhabitants.

HIGHWAY, a pgrich in the hundred of Porrerne
and CanNiINGs, though locally in the hundred of Calne,
county of Wirre, 41 miles (N.E.) from Calne, contain-
ing 108 inhabitauts. The living is a perpetual curacy,
with the vicarage of Bremhill, in the archdeaconry of
Wilts, and diocese of Sulisbury. The church is dedicat-
ed to St. Peter.

HIGHWEEK, = parish in the hundred of Teixg.
BRIDGE, county of Devox, 1 mile (N, by W.) from
Newton-Abbots, containing 907 inhabitants. The living
i @ perpetual curacy with the vicarage of Kingsteing-
ton, in the archdeaconry of Totness, and diocese of
Excter. The church is dedicated to AN Saints, The
Stover canal passes through the parish.

HIGHWORTH, a parish in the hundred of Hrca-
worTH, CRICKLADE, and STapLE, county of WiLTs, com-
prising the market town of Highworth, the chapelries
of Broad Blunsdon, South Marston, and Sevenhamp-
ton, and the tythings of Fresdon, and Eastrop with Wes-
trop, and containing 3005 inhabitants, of which number,
1888 are in the tything of Eastrop with Westrop, and
the town of Highworth, 48 miles (N. by E,) from Salis-
bury, und 77 (W. by N.) from London. The name is
expressive of the elevated situation of the town, and the
extensive prospects which it commands, At the time of
the Norman survey this was part of the royal demesne,
hut the only historical event connected with the town,
transpired during the parliamentary war, on the 27th of
June, 1645, when Major Hen, the governor of a -royul
garrison here, who had fortified the church, was som-
moned to surrender by the parliamentary forces, who, on
their way to Taunton, had drawn up before it ; after a
short resistance, he yielded, and the besiegers took
seventy prisoners, with arms and a considerable booty.
In the following month a skirmish took place here, in
which great slaughter appears to have cnsued on both
sides ; for, on sinking a fence in a field to the west
of the church, about six years since, a vast number of
skeletons in high preservation was discovered, imbedded
in the sand, at the depth of five fect.

The town is situated between the Thames and Severn
canal, which passes about four miles to the north, and the
Wilts and Berks canal, about the same distance toward
eral are built of stone; the
streets are neither lighted nor paved, but the inhabitanta
are well supplied with water from springs. There is a'
smoal]l subscription library, Quarries of excellent lime-
stone exiat in the neighbourhood, where fossil remains

.are frequently discovered. The market is on Wednesday :

fairs are held on the 13th of August (old Lammas day),
for horses, cattle, and sheep, and the 11th of October,
-a statute fair, for hiring servants. The old market-hoase
was removed sbout twenty years since; a fixed pillory
is still preserved in the market-place. The precise pe-
riog when this togn was incorporated is unknown : at pre-
sent there is no corporate body;nor has théve been from
time immemorial; it is umdler the jurisdiction of the
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county magistrates, who meet weekly at Swindon. A
bailiff is appointed mnnually at the court’ held Ly the
steward for the “maunor of the borough of Highworth;"”
but his office is only to collect quit-rents: at this court
also constables are appointed for the town, and the duy
following a court for the hundred is usually held by the
steward for the manor, when the constables and tything-
men for the different parishes and places in the hundred
are appointed. He also holds, oncg in three weeks, a
court of pleas, or court baron, for the manor, or bo-
rough, and ancient hundred of Highworth, supposed to
have been established by charter of Edward I., in which
debts under 40s. are recoverable. This town probably
sent members to parliament at a very early period, as
a writ was addressed to the bailiffs in the 26th of Ed-
ward I., to which no return was made, nor does it ap-
pear that the elective franchise was ever afterwards ex-
ercised, though writs continued to be sent to the bailiffs
until the 24th of Edward IV.

The living is a vicarage, rated in the king's books at
£44. B. 4., in the peculiar jurisdiction and patronage of
the Prebendary of Highworth in the Cathedral Church
of Sarum, the Dean of Sarum possessing ordinary ju-
rigdiction. The church, dedicated to St. Michael, is an
ancient building, erected in the reign of Henry VI,
with a tower at the west end, which, as well as the
other parts of the church, is surmounted by an open
parapet : on the south side is a chantry, or monu-
mental chapel, hung round with pieces of ancient ar-
mour. "There is a place of worship for Independents, A
school for about seventy children is held in the vestry-
room of the church: the master has a stipend of £27.6.
per annum, the produce of various henefactions. There
are several charitable donations for apprenticing boys
and other purposes ; the principal is Batson's charity,
producing about £ 50 per annum, which is expended in
clothing the poor, and assisting them with small sums
of money,

HILARY (ST.), a parish in the hundred of PEnwiTs,
county of CorRNwALL, comprising the market town of
Marazion, and containing 2811 inhabitants. The living
is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Cornwall, and dio-
cese of Exeter, rated in the king's books at £ 11. 6. 04.
Mrs. Beard and others were patrons in 1814. The Rev.
John Penneck, in 1723, beyueathed £ 5 per annum for
the instruction of four children,

HILBECK, e township in the parish of Brovon,
East ward, county of WESTMORLAND, £ a mile (N, N.E.)
from Brough, containing 101 inhabitants. In old re-
cords this place is called Hellebeck, Helle, in Saxon, de-
noting water-falls, of which there are several among the
mountains in the neighbourhood. A cotton-mill was
erected by John Metcaif Carlton, Esq., but it has been
disused for many years. In the neighbourhood is a coal
mine ; not far from which, on an eminence commanding
an extensive view, is a building called Fox Tower.

HILBOROUGH, a parish in; the southemn division

of the hundred of GrrEnuox, county of Norrorx, 6
miles (8.) from Swaffham, containing 349 inhahbitants.
The living is a discharged rectory, in' the archdesconry
of Norfolk, and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's
bdks st £13. 6. 8., endowell with £200 private be-

#6660 in 1806, The church, dedlcated to Al Sais
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stone quoins, embattled and crowned with carved piiing-
cles ; in one of the east windows are some remains ‘of
stained glass, At the north-western extremity of the
village are the remains of an ancient chapel, dedictted
to St. Margaret, called the Pilgrims’' chapel, prabably
from having been visited by them on their way to Wal-
singham: it was richly endowed, having included among
ita possessions one hundred acres of land in this parish.

HILCOTT, a tything in the parish of NorTe NEw-
ToN, hundred of SwaANBOROUGH, county of Wirrs, 3§
miles (W. by 8.) froin Pewsey, The population is re
turned with the parish.

HILDENLEY, a township in the parish of AppLE-
TON le¢ STrREET, wapentake of Ryepare, North riding
of the county of Youk, 3 miles (W.8. W.) from Malton,
containing 23 inhabitants,

HILDERSHAM, a parish in the hundred of Cuir-
Forp, county of CamBRIDGE, 1§ mile (N. W. by N.)
from Linton, containing 193 inhabitants. The living is
a rectory, in the archdeacoury and diocese of Ely, rated
in the king's books at £15. 0. 5. The Rev. Charles
Goodwin was patron in 1806. The church is dedicated
to the Holy Trinity.

HILDERSTONE, a liberty in the parish of Stowg,
southern diviston of the hundred of PirEHILL, county of
STAFFORD, 3 miles (E.N.E,) from Stone, containing 1591
inhabitants. R.Bonrne, Esq. has recently erccted a cha-
pel at his own expense, to which he appoints the minister,

HILDERTHORP, a township in the parish of
BripLinGTon, wapentake of Dickering, East riding
of the county of York, 1§ mile (8.) from Bridlington,
containing 51 inhabitants,

HILFIELD, a chapelry in the parish of Sypryne-
St. Nicuoras, hundred of Cerne, Torcomar, and
Mopzaury, Cerne subdivision of the county of Domsgr,
9 miles (8.) from Sherborne, contajning 127 inhabitants,

HILGAY, a parish in the hundred of Crackcrosg,
county of NorroLK, 3§ miles (8. by E.) from Down-
ham-Market, containing 968 inhabitants, The living
is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese
of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £10. The
King presented in 1819. The church is dedicated to.All
Saints. Near the bank of the Ouse, in this parish, was ¢
small priory of Black manks, a cell to Ramsey abbey.;

HILL, a parish jn the lower, though locally in the
upper, division of the hundred of BerkEvLEy, county b
GLOUCESTER, 34 miles (N.N.E.) from Thornbuwy, toa-
taining 259 inhabitants, The living is e perpetna
curacy, in the atéhdeaconry and diocese of Gl 2
Miss Langley was patroness in 1819, The church is de.

dicated to St. Michael. The navigable river Severn runs
Frapeury, middle division of the hwmdred of Oswiis:
iniyg 295 inhabi )

through this parish, ] . : =
*"HILL, & joint township with: Moo, in the gt of
i AL
8LOW, county.of WORCESTER, 4*&11: (N.B. Dy R.)
oquiity of WORCEETRR, <~}
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baxy; 88 M-ofthﬂdhg’:hmchofﬂeytubwy.
The church is dedicated to St. Mary.

HILL-END, a tything in the parish of CumnER,
hundred of Hormzz, county of BErks, 4 miles (W.8.W.)
from Oxford, containing 102 inhabitants.

HILLAM, a township in the parish of Monk-
Frysron, lower division of the wapentake of Ban-
sTONE-Asu, West riding of the county of York, 3§ miles
(N.N. E.) from Ferry-Bridge, containing 269 inhabitants.

HILL-FARRANCE, a parish in the hundred of
Taunron and TaunTonN-DEAN, county of SoMERSET,
4} miles (W.) from Taunton, containing 483 inhabitants.
The living is a perpetual , in the archdeaconry of
Taunton, and diocese of Bath and Wells, endowed with
£200 private benefaction, and £400 royal bounty, and
in the patronage of the President and Fellows of Trinity
College, Oxford. Thechurchisdedicatedtothe Holy Cross.

HILL-HAMPTON, county of WorcesTER,— See
HAMPTON (HILL).

HILL-TOP, a township in that part of the parish
of WraGcBy which is in the upper division of the wa-
pentake of OscoLpcross, West riding of the county of
York, 5 miles (8.E.) from Barnesley, containing 97
inhabitants.

HILLERSDON, a parish in the hundred and county
of BuckingaAM, 35 miles (8. by W.) from Buckingham,
containing 247 inhabitants, The living is a perpetual
curacy, in the archdeaconry of Buckingham, and dio-
cese of Lincoln, endowed with £8 per annum private
benefaction, and £200 royal bounty, and in the patron-
age of the Dean and Canons of Christ Church, Oxford.
The church, dedicated to All Saints, was rebuilt about
1498, and exhibits some portions in the later style of
Egglish architecture, with a profusion of stained glass
in one of the castern windows, representing the legendary
history of St. Nicholas. The ancient manor-house, now
demolished, was held for the king in the parliamentary
war, but its garrison baving surrendered in 1643, it
was plundered, and its ownef, Sir Alexander Denton,
committed to prisen, where he died of a broken heart.

HILLESLEY, a tything in the parish of Hawkes-
BURY, upper division of the hundred of GrumBaLD's
Asn, county of GrovucestEr, 1§ mile (8.8.E.) from
Wotton under Edge, containipg, with Hillcott, Saddle-
wood, and Tresham, 800 inhabitants. Here was an-
ciently a chapel dedicated to St. Giles, but it has been
demolished. ;

HILLINGDON, & parish in the hundred of Ei-
[HORNE, county of MippLEsEX, N.miles (W. by N.)

London, comprising part of the market fown of
Uxbridge, and containing 5638 inhabitants. The living
Is & dischaged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Mid-
, and diogese of London, rated in the king's
pkaat £16, aad in the patronage of the Bishop of
e The church, dedicated to St. John t};ﬁ
plist, is principally in the later style of Engli

ectuy ?;ih:chpa:“embntﬂed  sb-gbe west end,

ns smong others, a fine inemament to the
Henry Earl of Uxbridge, oo died 3n.§748

ot s Shic s 46 Joka High, comegien.
0 parish in the Lynn division of the
G, county of 'gnmu, 4 mile

g, cdnteining .952 inhabitants,
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of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £18. 6. 8.,
and in the patronage of Sir W. B. Folkes, Bart. The
church, dedicated to St, Mary, has a8 Norman door of
great heauty,

HILLINGTON, a parish in the hundred of Lopoon,
county of Norrork, 63 miles (8.E.) from Norwich,
containing 63 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual
curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Norwich.
Sir Charles Rich, Bart. was patron in 1823, The church
is dedicated to St. John the Baptist.

HILLMARTON, a parish in the hundred of Krnos-
BRIDGE, county of WiLts, 3% miles (N.N.E.) from
Calue, containing 787 inhabitants, The living is 8
vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Salishury,
rated in the king's books at £20. 6. 8., and in the
patronage of the Crown. The church is dedicated to
St. Lawrence,

HILLMORTON, a parish in the Rughy division of
the bundred of Kxicurrow, county of Warwick,
3 miles (E.8.E) from Rughy, containing 779 inha-
bitauts. The living is a discharged vicarage, in the
archdeaconry of Coventry, and diocese of Lichfield and
Coventry, rated in the king's books at £6. 10. 6., en-
dowed with £400 parliamentary grant, and in the
patronage of Baroness Grey de Ruthyn. The church
is dedicated to St. John the Baptist. There is a place
of worship for Wesleyan Methodists. The Oxford canal
passes through the parish.

HILPERTON, a parish in the hundred of MeLxs-
HaM, county of Wivrts, 1§ mile (N.E.) from Trow-
bridge, containing 904 inhabitants. The living is a
discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Salisbury, rated in the king's books at £16 and in the

joint patronage of Richard Godolphin Long, John Long,
and Jones Long, Esqrs. The church is dedicated to
St. Michael. There are places of worship for Baptists
and Wesleyan Methodists. The river Avon, and the
Kennet and Avon canal, pass through the parish.

HILSTON, a parish in the middle division of the
wapentake of Horperness, East riding of the county
of York, 14 miles (E. by N.) from Kingston upon Hull,
contuining 39 inhabitants. The living is a discharged
rectory, in the archdeaconry of the East riding, and
diocese of York, rated in the king's books at £5. The
Rev. C. Sykes was patron in 1809. The church is de-
dicated to St. Margaret.

HILTON, a township in the parish of MirsTOoN
upon Dovg, hundred of AprLETREE, county of Densy,
SE miles (W.S.w.) from Derby, containing 533 inha-
bitants, A school-house was erected about 1655, by
Arthur and Thomas Hanison, and in 1781 the Com-
missioners of enclosures allotted land for the support
of a schoolmaster, whose annual income is £20, for
teaching all the poor chijdren of the parish,

HILTON, a parish in the hundred of WHITEWAY,
Cerne sub-division of the county of DorseT, 74 miles
(W. 8. W.) from Blandford-Forum, containing 610 inha-
bitants. The living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry

" of Dorset, and diocese of Bristol, rated in the king's

books at £8. 10. 5., and in the patronage of the Bishop
of Salisbury. The church is dedicated to All Saints.
A school-house has been erected by:Lady C. Damer,
which is supported by subscription. On Bulbarrow hill,
the highest in fhe peighbourhood, is a circular double
intrenchment, supposed 'to be of Danish formation.





